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GROUP PROFILE

About Fountain Set (Holdings) Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Fountain Set
Group” or the “Group”) (Stock Code: 00420.HK)

One of the world’s largest and long-established fabric manufacturers, the Fountain Set Group produces knitted
fabric and garments through vertically integrated operations in fabric knitting, dyeing, printing, finishing and
garment manufacturing, for many of the renowned apparel retailers and brands.

As a strong believer of research and development, we collaborate with brands and suppliers to develop
innovative and creative fabric and garment products to consumers all over the world. Headquartered in Hong
Kong and listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, the Fountain Set Group has 8 production
facilities in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”), Sri Lanka and Indonesia, with marketing and
representative offices in 5 countries and a global workforce of close to 10,000 strong.

Chinatex Corporation Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of COFCO Corporation, has become the largest
shareholder of the Company since 2012. COFCO Corporation is a state-wholly-owned enterprise established
in the PRC and a direct wholly-owned subsidiary of the State-owned Assets Supervision and Administration
Commission of the State Council of the PRC.

To learn more about Fountain Set (Holdings) Limited, please visit www.fshl.com
To learn more about Chinatex Corporation Limited, please visit www.chinatex.com
To learn more about COFCO Corporation, please visit www.cofco.com
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EXTENSIVE WORLDWIDE NETWORK
58 K IR BR A 4%

UNITED KINGDOM 3 &
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JIANGYIN ST ° SHAT’\%JE fgz £
NINGBO % K 4 - @ PRODUCTION FACILITY 4 2 & |
w.e HONG KONG & TRADING OFFICE % &

O\ MACAO 3279

° HO CHI MINH CITY #7585
COLOMBO T i 3

e
TRADING OFFICE « =2

JAKARTA HE inig ° e CHINA
Sales of Dyed Fabrics & &

Shenzhen Faun Textiles Limited
RINBHHBRERRATF

Shanghai Fubui Textiles Trading Co., Ltd.
FERESEBESERAF

HONG KONG & &

Raw Materials Sourcing [ £ % i
Highscene Limited

EBRBRAR
HEADQUARTERS » £ 25 B
Sales of Dyed Fabrics & &
* HONG KONG & & Fountain Set Limited
Fountain Set (Holdings) Limited BHEXARAA

EHEX (£B)ERAA R
Sales of Garments KK HE

— Hiway Textiles Limited
PRODUCTION FACILITY « £ ERE BESBAER AT

Oceanstar Textiles Intemational Limited

e CHINA F (] BEGBBERAERA
Knitting & Dyeing $t &8I R £ & Triumph Luck lelted
wn SE SN T
Jiangyin Fiur;ui Textiles Limited HEARAE
N Yo M 43 4 INF
;I@T”-E—Eiﬁ?/?lm Limited " MACAO 2T
gg%%g%ﬁ?ﬁ%ﬁgg%s imite Raw Materials Sourcing R % B
Prospe\rlinkleoaq Commercial Offshore) Limited
Knitting, Dyeing & Printing $t & - £ & RN EZECRMBFRERE)BERAR
Dongguan Shatin Lake Side Textiles =
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HEY RS M RERA T Fountain Set Limited
T_Vietna%ngepresentative Office
Garment Manufacturing & BHEEXEMRAF
p - HER AR

DoRg‘_Guan Fuyi Apparel Co., Ltd.
RERGRESR LA

*SEOUL EH
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FRARNRKARAT - Korean Liaison Office
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BEAMHEKRERAF - BERKRE
* JAKARTA HpfnE * TOKYO R K
Garment Manufacturing 1% Fc\)JuntainRSet Limited off
. - Japan Representative Office
P.T. Sandang Mutiara Cemerlang P i =% 2R A A
* COLOMBO i - BERARER
Knitting, Dyeing & Printing $t 4 - &K EN T ¢ UNITED KINGDOM
Ocean Lanka (Private) Limited Fountain Set (Europe) Limited
BFEER (BMA) BRRA T BHEZE (BN BRAGH

# Chinese names are only translations of their official English names. In case of inconsistencies, the English names shall prevail.
TXEBEABRSEIRANEGHIEX -HERE BARXEBR%E:
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STATISTICAL HIGHLIGHTS

2017 2016
HK$Mil 5 & & HKSMIl B &% T
Operating Results EEEE
Revenue E L 6,913.8 6,328.7
Financial Performance BRERR
Profit attributable to owners of the Company ARRIHBAEEERT 156.8 127.9
Profit margin BFIE 2.3% 2.0%
Earnings per share (HK cents) BREF (FBAL)
- Basic — &R 13.0 10.6
- Diluted -8 13.0 10.6
Dividends BE
(after inclusion of proposed final dividend) (EBERNZREREEA)
Per share (HK cents) S (BIL) 10.4 5.3
Dividend payout ratio B & 80.0% 50.0%
At 31 December At 31 December
M2H31R W12A31H
2017 2016
HK$Mil 5 & & HKSMIl B &% T
Financial Position at Year End REEALR 2 HEMRR
Net current assets MHEETE 2,096.1 1,962.0
Total assets EEHRAE 5,589.0 5,371.6
Non-current bank borrowings ERBRTEE 219.6 179.5
Total bank borrowings BRTEE 735.2 667.6
Net bank borrowings BIIEEFE (127.4) (210.9)
Total liabilities BERE 2,032.6 1,918.0
Net asset value per share (HK$) BREEFE(EL) 2.82 2.74
Capital expenditure NG 231.3 256.5
Financial Statistics G
Return on equity (%) BEERE (%) 4.9% 4.3%
Consolidated tangible net worth BEFENEE 3,124.3 3,067.8
Consolidated total bank debt to BEBRTARYEEFENEAELD
consolidated tangible net worth 0.2 0.2
Consolidated EBITDA to consolidated GAERTERBHANBEGEANE
interest expense Squngsdl] 18.1 17.9
Consolidated current assets to consolidated BARDEEHGARDEELH
current liabilities 2.2 2.2
Inventory turnover period (days) FERES(R) 86 92
Trade and hills receivables turnover period (days) EERZBRIGEREHS (B) 67 70
Trade and bills payables turnover period (days) EERZBRNFERAEH (B) 48 50
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FINANCIAL AND STATISTICAL HIGHLIGHTS
MBRETHE
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

BB E

A summary of the financial information of the Group for the last five
financial years, as extracted from the respective published audited
consolidated financial statements, is set out as below. This summary does

not form part of the audited consolidated financial statements.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

For the
year ended
31 December

HMEHEEE Q1
T BIIEBREERSEE

B e
REBmK
For the For the
year ended year ended

31 December

31 December

4%

L

For the
year ended
31 December

AEEBELEMRFRZMBERME (5
EREAMBRER)HIM
MBHERZ—

For the
year ended
31 December

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017

BZ2013F HE2014%F HZE2015% HZE2016% 220175

12A31BEEE  12A31BLEFE  12A31ALEEE  12A31HLEE  12B31HLEE

HK$'000 F&T — HK$'000 FEr  HK$'000 FEmr  HK$000 F/57r  HK$'000 F#T

Revenue EEH 6,942,807 6,891,133 6,653,051 6,328,714 6,913,785

Profit before taxation BB AT 2 A 86,398 123,829 152,207 168,068 212,250

Income tax FEH 14,290 (28,068) (24,133) (18,076) (36,304)

Profit for the year T EEEF 100,688 95,761 128,074 149,992 175,946
Attributable to: JE1h -

Owners of the Company KRREBA 91,304 90,590 99,860 127,903 156,846

Non-controlling interests FERER 9,384 5171 28,214 22,089 19,100

100,688 95,761 128,074 149,992 175,946




EEEL(EE)AHRRT 2017FFH

FINANCIAL SUMMARY
MBBRE

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 4 & B #& Ak R &

At At At At At
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
m12A31H R12A31H “12A31H “12A31H R12A31H
2013 2014 2015 2016 2017
HK$'000 F/&7T  HK$'000 F¥71  HK$000 F/&7T  HKS$'000 /57  HK$'000 FET
(Note) (i)
Non-current assets ERBEE 1,867,767 1,789,197 1,707,950 1,738,318 1,746,764
Current assets MEEE 4,264,878 3,776,536 3,722,604 3,633,297 3,842,207
Current liabilities REEE 2,271,639 1,957,936 1,809,609 1,671,279 1,746,107
Net current assets REEEFE 1,993,239 1,818,600 1,912,995 1,962,018 2,096,100
Total assets less current liabilities BEQERTDARE 3,861,006 3,607,797 3,620,945 3,700,336 3,842,864
Non-current liabilities ERBAE 582,359 282,174 226,189 246,691 286,488
Net assets EEFE 3,278,647 3,325,623 3,394,756 3,453,645 3,556,376
Capital and reserves BERRHE

Share capital R 240,609 862,211 865,716 865,716 865,716
Reserves i 2,876,611 2,320,317 2,364,829 2,432,336 2,536,545

Equity attributable to owners AAREBAELER
of the Company 3,117,220 3,182,528 3,230,545 3,298,052 3,402,261
Non-controlling interests R R 161,427 143,095 164,211 155,593 154,115
Total equity EnBE 3,278,647 3,325,623 3,394,756 3,453,645 3,556,376

Note: Certain reserves were transferred to share capital according to the requirement under the 2 : 289 £ 1B 12 R 201443 A3 8 4 k8 & 4 3% il 622
Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong) with effect from 3 March ERAER 2 B RKEERRA o
2014..
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AWARDS AND CERTIFICATIONS

RIERABH

No. Name of Award/Certification Issued by

X RIE AR ER BN

1 Certificate of Compliance in Organic Content Ecocert Greenlife S.A.S
Standard
EREEREREH

2 Certificate of Compliance in Global Organic Textile Ecocert Greenlife S.A.S
Standard

EIRB RGBT EREH

No. Name of Award/Certification Issued by

X REAIBER BHEN

1 Strategic Partner* Qiaodan (Xiamen) Limited*
B BE 2 VR RE SN (EMEBEXERAA

2 Excellent Supplier* Qiaodan (Xiamen) Limited*
BEHERS B (EMEXEERAA

3 2017 Innovation Award* ANTA Sports Products Limited*

2017 E BT R % 42 ZHEERRERR A




o=

Name of Award/Certification

R\ ABER

2016 Key and Major Enterprise of Jiangyin*
016F B IRMEMEHER

EBEEE(RE)ARSE

AWARDS AND CERTIFICATIONS
RERAE

Issued by

BN

Jiangyin Municipal Party Committee of Communist Party
of China, Jiangyin Municipal People’s Government*

hHTRTE IR TARBMA

2016 Foreign Trade Award*
2016 F EINE TR

Jiangyin High-tech Industrial Development Zone
Committee of Communist Party of China*

PHRIESHENEXRERTHFRZES

Administration Committee of Jiangyin High-tech Industrial
Development Zone*
TR EXREREREEZE S

2016 Outstanding Enterprise of Foreign
Investment*

2016 RN EIREREDLR

Jiangyin High-tech Industrial Development Zone
Committee of Communist Party of China*

PFHTIERMRMEXHAERTIFRR S

Administration Committee of Jiangyin High-tech Industrial
Development Zone*
TESHMRMEXRERERELZE S

2016 Outstanding Enterprise of Environment
Protection®
2016 F EIRBREFLEEM

Administration Committee of Jiangyin High-tech Industrial
Development Zone*

TREHRMEXRAERERELZES

2016 Top 100 Star Enterprise*
2016 FEARAEDRE

Jiangyin Municipal Party Committee of Communist Party
of China, Jiangyin Municipal People’s Government*

PHTIRME TERMARBA

2016 Top 10 International Enterprise*
2016F TEINE B

Jiangyin Municipal Party Committee of Communist Party
of China, Jiangyin Municipal People’s Government*

hHTRME IRMARBA

2016 Top 10 Outstanding Enterprise of Energy
Conservation and Emission Reduction*

2016F E HEMRER B R EDE

Jiangyin Municipal Party Committee of Communist Party
of China, Jiangyin Municipal People’s Government*

hHTRTE IR ARBMA

201748 9
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AWARDS AND CERTIFICATIONS
RIER

No. Name of Award/Certification Issued by
MHFY RERBEBR BN
8 2016 Safe Enterprise” Jiangyin Safe Enterprise Construction Work Leading
2016F E &b Group*
TEmPLeXalZIT(EREE/E
9 2016 Outstanding Enterprise of Blood Donation Jiangyin Blood Donation Administration Committee*
without Compensation* TEMENERZES
20165 E (BRI 5t & B (L
10 2016 Clean by Design International Finance Corporation
Environmental Improvement Program B S = N
RIBWERTE Natural Resources Defense Council
—BRIBNRFTEE BRERTELZE G
Sustainable Apparel Coalition
AR5 4B AR S Bk BR Y
11 2016 Watercraft unit* Jiangyin Environmental Protection Committee*
2016F EIRKIZ K EAL IEmRRERERZE S
12 The 2nd China Knitting Function (Multi-functional)  China Knitting Industry Association*
Product Excellence Award of 2017* PR TERS
igﬂi%:@ﬁiﬂ Bt (2 EmES
13 Oeko-Tex Standard 100 TESTEX AG, Swiss Textile Testing Institute
Oeko-Tex1% 4£100* TESTEX AG, ¥ # &% 4 7€ P #
14 Standardization of Safety Production (Grade II)* The Institute of Safety and Production Science in Jiangsu*

REEERENL (ZH)

TEA T2 EEMNBH KR




Name of Award/Certification

#®1E RAEEE

2016 Outstanding Enterprise of Safety
Production*®

EmEE(£E)FReS 201794% 11

AWARDS AND CERTIFICATIONS
RERAE

Issued by
BHEN

Management Office of Yancheng Economic-Technological
Development Zone and Integrated Duty-Free Area*

016FEREHELERE BERKERMTRERGFARTRERNAE
2016 Outstanding Enterprise of Fire Safety Fire Brigade of Public Security of Development Zone of
Management* Yancheng City*

2016 EH L= BB TIFuERE

BB 39 T 2 22K B3 32 P B 3 [ KB

2016 Citywide “Ankang Cup” Competition
Winning Unit*
2016 FE 2™ [REM | B EBE B

General Union of Yancheng City*

BymeTrs

Administration of Work Safety of Yancheng City*
BymTrEEEEERRB

Certified Laboratory

27 K = EA oo
REBERE

Intertek Group
R EE

Vice Chairman Member of Jiangsu Association of

Enterprises with Foreign Investment*
TEHAIERECENGRIGREN

Jiangsu Association of Enterprises with Foreign
Investment™

TEHANIDRECERE
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AWARDS AND CERTIFICATIONS
R IE N A

No.
X

Name of Award/Certification

RE/RABER

Issued by
BBy

1 2016 Top Ten Foreign Investment Enterprise in Tax  Chinese Communist Party Shatian Town Committee/
Payment of Shatian Town & Humen Port* People’s Government of Shatian Town/Chinese
2016F N HIE  RPIB MR - RINEDE Communist Party Humen Port Working Committee/

Management Committee of Humen Port*
REAPHEZE ] REmPHEARBN, P EEPME
IVE?E’%‘/% =MREMAEEZES

2 2016 Top Ten Enterprise in Annual Actual Export Chinese Communist Party Shatian Town Committee/
of Shatian Town & Humen Port* People’s Government of Shatian Town/Chinese
2016 HE EFABAEREOM+20% Communist Party Humen Port Working Committee/

Management Committee of Humen Port*
MESHEZE S RemPHBEARBN, R HREME
IHEE8g REMEFIBEELZES

3 15th Consecutive Year (2002-2016) Guangdong Guangdong Province Administration For Industry &
Province Enterprise of Observing Contract and Commerce*

Valuing Credit* BEREIB{ITHREER
HEE TR (2012-2016) ERE TR REREFEALE

4 Oeko-Tex Standard 100 TESTEX AG, Swiss Textile Testing Institute
Oeko-Tex1Z 4£100* TESTEXH 41 &ite £ B R A &

5 Oeko-Tex Standard 100 TESTEX AG, Swiss Textile Testing Institute
Oeko-TexiZ #£100* TESTEXm T #1 &% € B R A 7]

6 2017 accredited Certificate on the Environmental ~ Changcheng (Tianjin) Quality Assurance Center*
Management System* &k (R2E)EBERBR DO
0M7TERIREERAREERSE

7 2017 accredited Certificate — WWF Low Carbon World Wildlife Fund — Hong Kong Branch
Manufacturing Programme HtREAESE -BELE
017FRBRE - ABRESGRMBETZ

8 Oeko-Tex Standard 100 TESTEX AG, Swiss Textile Testing Institute

Oeko-TexiZ %#100*

TESTEXIG T# & E B R A F)*
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AWARDS AND CERTIFICATIONS
RERAE

o

No. Name of Award/Certification Date of issue Issued by

XHFE REREBER ik =R BBV

1 Marks & Spencer Premier Accreditation 6/7/2017 Marks & Spencer Group
Scheme SSTAaESE!

//Igﬁﬂié‘& b\nan‘l—iu

2 Level I+ Laboratory Accreditation Certificate 3/8/2017 adidas® Group & Intertek Group
I+ ERERAIFE" s T SR B R KA R @

3 Certificate of Compliance in Organic Content 1/9/2017 Ecocert Greenlife S.A.S
Standard
ZE] ERERE

4 Certlflcate of Compliance in Global Organic 1/9/2017 Ecocert Greenlife S.A.S

Textile Standard
2 IRA A iR R B

5 Laboratory Accreditation Certificate 9/9/2017 Columbia Sportswear
E\%ﬁiwb\ﬂuﬂxg# g}ﬁ%tbﬁ@@ﬁ&#

6 Oeko-Tex Standard 26/10/2017 TESTEX AG, Swiss Textile Testing Institute
Oeko-Texi% %£100* TESTEX¥n £+ #1 &% B R A 7

7 Laboratory Accreditation Certificate 31/10/2017 Columbia Sportswear
E\%ﬁ:l:wuuurmg# %{ﬁttﬁﬁibﬁ&#

8 Oeko-Tex Standard 100 14/11/2017 TESTEX AG, Swiss Textile Testing Institute
Oeko-Texi% % 100* TESTEX¥n £ #1 & i & B R A 7l

9 Oeko-Tex Standard 100 14/11/2017 TESTEX AG, Swiss Textile Testing Institute
Oeko-TexiZ 4£100* TESTEX3m L 4 &4 i A [k 2 &l

English names are only translation of their official Chinese names. In case of inconsistencies, the Chinese name shall prevail.
RNEBERENTIXEHZE-HAKE HATXERAE-

i Chinese names are only translation of their official English names. In case of inconsistencies, the English name shall prevail.
PREBERENRNEBZEN - WARE MURXEHRE-
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT
FREHRE

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board of directors of Fountain Set (Holdings) Limited (“we”
or “our”, and the “Board” respectively), | am pleased to present the audited
consolidated results of the Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) for
the financial year ended 31 December 2017 (“2017”), and to provide you
with an overview of the Group’s strategy and business outlook.

FINANCIAL AND BUSINESS REVIEW

According to the World Bank’s January 2018 Global Economic Prospects,
the global economy was experiencing a cyclical recovery, reflecting a
rebound in investment, manufacturing activity, and trade in 2017. This
improvement comes against the backdrop of benign global financing
conditions, generally accommodative policies, rising confidence, and
firming commodity prices. Global GDP growth is estimated to have picked
up from 2.4% in 2016 to 3% in 2017, above the June forecast of 2.7%.
The Producer Price Index of the United States (the “U.S.”) increased 2.6%
on average in 2017 while India’s rose by 0.24%. The recovery in global
trade coincided with strengthening investment, which is more import-
intensive than other components of aggregate demand. Nevertheless,
structural headwinds, including slower trade liberalization and value chain
integration, as well as elevated policy uncertainty, continue to weigh on the
outlook for trade.

According to the National Cotton Council of America, the price of cotton
was at the lowest in October 2017 and at the highest in May 2017.
During this period, cotton prices rose by about 3.7%. According to the
2017 China Cotton Index annual report published by the China Cotton
Association (R B {£1# € ), the price of yarns was at the lowest in
September 2017 and at the highest in March 2017. During this period,
yarn prices rose by about 6.8%. According to the information published
on the website of the China Cotton Association, the China cotton price
index CCINDEX2129B ( # Bl 1 {E B 15 #5 21 ) was RMB16,223/ton as
at 28 December 2017, compared to RMB16,136/ton as at 3 January
2017. When compared to a year before, the China cotton price index
CCINDEX2129B was RMB16,139/ton as at 30 December 2016, compared
to RMB13,555/ton as at 4 January 2016. The China cotton price index
was at the lowest in January 2017 at RMB16,116/ton and at the highest
in November 2017 at RMB16,516/ton. The China cotton price index
between 9 January 2017 and 3 November 2017 has increased 2.48%. The
US Cotlook A Index was at US85.42 cents/Ib as at 31 December 2017,
compared to US82.33 cents/Ib as at 31 January 2017. The US Cotlook A
Index was at the lowest in October 2017 at US78.60 cents/Ib and at the
highest in May 2017 at US88.64 cents/Ib. The US Cotlook A Index was at
US79.50 cents/Ib as at 31 December 2016, compared to US68.75 cents/
Ib as at 1 January 2016. The US Cotlook A Index between 1 January 2017
and 31 December 2017 has increased 3.75%. To conclude, cotton price
increased during the year under review, which in turn affected the cotton
yarn price that had a negative impact on our gross profit margin.

BERRK:

AANEREGEHEE (SE)ERAFESY
(DRIETEMIRIEES)MAREARD
AINEMBAR ([AEE])EHE2017F12A
S1BIEMBERE ([2017F | ) KER 2 IEA%E
EOTRHEEREEIEBEZZHME -

MBREREREDE

BIEHE RIEIT2018F1 AH (BEEERE) -
CONTHFRIE B2 AR EERK 18E &
EEHRESHTENKRBEFE - LB FE
B AREHBEKGAE ERBERIE K
EEOEBAREREREBERNIIRE 2K
AN A E A S R R A FA2016%F 192.4%
FE2017F H3% = R6 AR ATIEAIA2.7% ° 1
2017 XA EEBRIBE L IN2.6%
MENEEEEEBRIBHEIFHIEMN0.24% - 2
KEZMEHEAKEENMERMT BAFK
R EMAR IS ML ERIERE D - A -
HHRESERENEEREANMESAEELDN
THRAEZALBETABREERE N #EFE
FAIE5ER-
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE (“ESG”)
POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

To go green, we will only upload the 2017 ESG report on the respective
websites of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and the Company.
The 2017 ESG report details the Group’s progress in multiple ESG
areas, showing where we exceeded expectations and where we need
further improvement. We have embraced sustainable innovation as a
powerful engine for growth not only for our own business, but across
upstream and downstream partners in our industry. In 2016, we have
set up a “Sustainability Development and Enhancement Committee” (the
“Committee”) which consists of different subsidiaries and cross-functional
departments. The Committee not only helps drive the vision across the
Group, but also implements our sustainability objectives and goals. The
Committee challenges our business to understand our sustainability
impacts, sets ambitious targets to address them and overcomes obstacles
in meeting them.

Since 2016, we have started a revolutionary new business—centralized
heat supply project (the “Project”), of which the business model is a
pioneer in the industry. The Shatian Town Industrial Park (the “Park”) (for
electroplating, fabric printing and dyeing industry) is one of the seven
largest environmental industrial parks in Dongguan, China. It integrates and
assembles the industry’s enterprises within the Park and in other areas
in Shatian Town, which are required to be relocated. The Project, being
one of the ancillary projects of the industrial park development, is also a
key project of the implementation plan of the centralized heat supply in
Guangdong Industrial Park and Industrial Cluster Areas. The Project will
contribute to cleaner air for the community and neighborhood by reducing
the emission of nitrogen oxide, sulphur dioxide as well as smoke and dust
by replacing the remaining 28 coal-fired heaters within the district.

The Group will continue to invest in advanced technologies and install
additional equipment to prevent and reduce pollution. The Group provides
periodic training workshops to staff members regarding environmental
protection and pollution controls. The Group also invites qualified advisors
to visit its factories from time to time to evaluate whether the environmental
protection measures are up to standard and to give recommendations for
further improvement.

LOOKING FORWARD

In the year ahead, the global economy is likely to face a number of
challenges, including worries over possible trade barriers among nations,
possible interest rate hikes of the U.S., recovery of oil prices and volatilities
in the financial markets. Having said that, according to the World Bank,
the growth in emerging markets and developing economies is expected to
edge up to 3.1% in 2018 after a much stronger-than-expected 2017, as
the recovery in investment, manufacturing and trade continues.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT (continued)
ETRHKE (F)

According to The International Monetary Fund, global growth forecasts
for 2018 and 2019 have been revised upward by 0.2 percentage point
to 3.9%. The revision reflects increased global growth momentum and
the expected impact of the recently approved U.S. tax policy changes.
The U.S. tax policy changes are expected to stimulate activity, with the
short-term impact in the U.S. mostly driven by the investment response
to the corporate income tax cuts. The effect on the growth of the U.S.
is estimated to be positive through 2020, cumulating to 1.2% through
that year, with a range of uncertainty around this central scenario. Due to
the temporary nature of some of its provisions, the tax policy package is
projected to lower growth for a few years from 2022 onwards. The effects
of the package on output in the U.S. and its trading partners contribute
about half of the cumulative revision to global growth over 2018-19. Since
the primary market of our end-buyer is the U.S., we expect to be benefited
from the tax reform of the U.S.

We expect that 2018 is going to be another challenging year as the growth
of the Chinese economy is expected to slow down. We will continue to
control raw materials sourcing and finished textile products, reduce overall
cost, and speed up time-to-market.

We believe that all of our staff members will work hard to follow the
Board’s direction and objectives and implement the work plans set by
the Board, and to further map out our long-term development strategy.
With our spirit of “diligence, frugality, sincerity and integrity” and our
general direction to “stabilize operation and to enhance development”,
we shall keep on enhancing our efficiency and exploring the market
with persistent efforts for bringing the Group to a new level. We look
forward to completing our annual operating tasks and targets with
excellent performances, and creating brilliant returns and results for our
shareholders.

APPRECIATION

| am grateful for the excellent guidance and counsel from my fellow
Board members. We appreciate the ongoing support of our shareholders,
customers, suppliers, bankers and other partners. My gratitude is also
extended to the staff members of the Group as they work tirelessly to
ensure that the Group remains one of the top circular knitted fabric
suppliers in the world.

ZHAO Yao
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong
26 March 2018
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BUSINESS REVIEW

2017 was one of the most crucial years for the Group in the course
of its development. During the year, the operations of the Group were
affected by the non-demand related fluctuation of the price of raw
materials, insufficient orders in the industry, and the reduction of sales
entities in the end markets. With the additional impact of “double holiday
seasons” (meaning the Chinese new year holiday was being spread over
two calendar months), the difficulties in sales at the beginning of the
year created an accumulated loss in both January to February, 2017.
Thanks to the strong teamwork and unbeatable cohesiveness within the
Company, the Group eventually managed to increase its revenue by 9.2%
to HK$6,913.8 million for the year ended 31 December 2017 (2016:
HK$6,328.7 million). The growth rate was a strong 13.8% for the second
half of 2017 (“2H17”). The reason for this growth is the effective strategic
plan to capture more fabric orders from the existing customers as well as
new customers from the United States, Japan and the Europe. During the
year under review, the Group’s fabric year-on-year volume growth was
approximately 11.4% while the average selling price slightly declined by
2.5% year-on-year due to the change of product mix.

Due to the accumulated loss of the first two months, the Group’s gross
profit margin during 2017 was 10.9% (2016: 12.2%). The gross profit
margin of 2H17 was 11.7%, which was higher than 11.2% year-on-
year; the net profit margin of 2H17 was 2.8%, which was also higher
than 2.1% year-on-year, reflecting the momentum of our growth. Thanks
to the continuous tight internal cost control, the Group’s profit before
income tax expenses was HK$212.3 million (2016: HK$168.1 million)
for the year ended 31 December 2017, and it was a noticeable 26.3%
increment year-on-year that exceeds the revenue growth of 9.2%. Profit
for the year increased by 17.3% to HK$175.9 million (2016: HK$150.0
million). Profit for the year attributable to owners of the Company increased
correspondingly by 22.6% to HK$156.8 million (2016: HK$127.9 million).
Basic earnings per share was HK13.0 cents (2016: HK10.6 cents).

Facing such a difficult environment, the Board made concrete adjustments
to the Group’s operational strategy, optimally capitalized the Group’s
production capacity and devoted more effort to developing and refining
products, and adapting to the market changes. All staff members of the
Group had built team spirit and were determined to achieve the annual
operational targets for 2017 in the past three years, and the Group
achieved the best annual production output ever during the year under
review. Close to full utilization rate in our fabric production facilities was
successfully achieved over half of the year under review.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (continued)
EEENWRES N (F)

Substantial increase in profit for three consecutive years marked the
enhancement of our operating capability and management standards, the
significant upgrade of production techniques, and the gradual increase in
product development capability after three years of continuous reforms, the
Group has entered a new stage of growth.

(1) Enhancement of production capacity and management standards

A new production pattern of our three primary fabric production facilities,
namely Jiangyin Fuhui Textiles Limited (“Jiangyin Fuhui”), Dongguan Shatin
Lake Side Textiles Printing & Dyeing Co., Ltd. (“Dongguan Shatin”) and
Yancheng Fuhui Textiles Limited (“Yancheng Fuhui”), was established
preliminarily after three years of reforms and embodied “sophistication,
quality and uniqueness”. Our production capacity was enhanced
noticeably. We established an operation and management system focusing
on the integration of production, supply and sales, thereby laying a solid
foundation for the Group’s sustainable and steady growth as well as the
continuous enhancement of management standards.

Jiangyin Fuhui fabric mill was built in 2001 with a current monthly
production capacity of 12.50 million pounds of finished fabric. It is a
primary fabric mill of the Group. After streamlining processes, enhancing
lean manufacturing and management and upgrading equipment, it
has become a mill with extensive varieties, multi-batch, short delivery
timeframe and mass production plant that satisfies market demand with
high-quality products and services.

Dongguan Shatin fabric mill was built in 1998 with a current monthly
production capacity of 7.50 million pounds of finished fabric. It has
become a backbone fabric mill of the Group with comprehensive
capabilities of producing featured categories and structures, after
restructuring its production and management model and improving its
workshop of synthetics fabric printing, knitting and dyeing.

Yancheng Fuhui fabric mill was built in 2009 with a monthly production
capacity of 4.50 million pounds of finished fabric. Its key development
direction is to carry out product research and development, and
manufacture refined products in line with Japan and the PRC domestic
markets through upgrading equipment and improving production
techniques and product development standards.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (continued)

(2) The implementation of an operating model integrating production,
supply and sales, and the steady enhancement of operating results

In order to alter the traditional stand-alone management model of
individual manufacturers and convert them from “earning-focused” to
“cost-focused”, we have established an operating model that integrates
production, supply and sales that centers on five management systems
(namely integrated marketing, centralized procurement and supply,
unified production dispatching, integrated cost control and collaborated
technology) by integrating the resources of various subsidiaries of the
Company.

The operating model that integrates production, supply and sales
optimizes the allocation of operation resources and facilitates the sharing
of internal resources and advantages, with the Group as a market-oriented
operating entity and the overall operating targets as the core, thereby
maximizing the overall strength of the Group.

Meanwhile, the Group reformulated a management guideline for
standardized safety production to reinforce the management for safe
production. Safety production responsibility system and safety production
management system were improved, and the investigation of hidden
danger in production safety was carried out, so that each step of the
processes of knitting, dyeing, finishing, printing and garment manufacturing
of the subsidiaries of the Company complies with the laws, regulations and
requirements of safety production.

(38) Marketing Strategies

The Group made adjustments well in advance in our strategic plan based
on the changes in customers’ consumption structure and the structure
of product demand. The Group continued to implement the management
model which integrated production, supply and sales. We closely
monitored the short-term changes and long-term trend of the market, and
increased our efforts in marketing, centralized procurement, production
scheduling, cost control and production techniques. We also improved
the Group’s overall management capabilities and operational efficiency to
enhance the market competitiveness of the Group.

In 2017, the Group actively explored markets in Europe and Japan. With
the continuous effort of the business development team, we achieved
gratifying results in the growth of business volume and it contributed
much to the Group in achieving annual operation targets. In 2017, the
orders from the European market recorded a low double digits growth.
George, UNIQLO, GU and MUJI are our major new customers that we
have collaborated with recently, and we are confident that our continuous
collaboration will create a meaningful contribution to our revenue.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (continued)
EEENWRES N (F)

For the existing major end-buyer customers of the Group, the Group
adheres to the 80/20 rule (i.e. 80% of the sales income derives from
20% of the end-buyer customers) by allocating the quality resources
of production and services of the Group to our top 20 major end-
buyer customers to increase sales volume. Such a marketing strategy
has achieved remarkable results. Through the provision of targeted
and differentiated services to the target customers, we can maintain a
stable or slightly increase in business volume with such customers. We
can also conduct in-depth cooperation with key customers to achieve a
breakthrough in cooperative product development and the acceleration
of production cycle. In 2017, the proportion of sales volume from the
top 10 end-buyer customers increased to 60.0% (2016: 53.8%), and the
proportion of sales volume from the top 20 end-buyer customers increased
to 78.0% (2016: 75.6%).

For existing small and medium end-buyer customers of the Group, the
Group focuses on improving its service ability by actively cooperating with
the customers in product specification, quality, delivery and other aspects
to increase the volume.

(4) Strengthening internal management

In order to strengthen the ability of the Group in market trend analysis
and understand the market change as well as customers’ demand, the
Group shares, analyzes and discusses on market information with different
levels of operation through regular internal meetings. Under the operation
management model which integrates production, supply and sales,
we formulate relevant measures based on the market information. We
actively coordinate and cooperate with the procurement department and
production department to arrange the raw materials supply and production
schedule. We also ensure orderly and efficient daily production, operation
and management of the subsidiaries under the Group.

In addition, at the beginning of 2017, we have strengthened the
management and control of marketing plans. We have understood the
timing, extent and direction of policy adjustment. We also made timely and
effective adjustments to the marketing strategies based on the operation
principle of “prioritizing customers’ selection; focusing on major customers;
suiting the action to the word and completing every task”.

Due to the stringent credit control and strict credit management policy, the
Group’s account receivable has dramatically improved in 2017 compared
to that of 2016. The total overdue account receivable was greatly reduced
in 2017, resulting in a better cash flow as well as lower credit risk of the
Group.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (continued)

During the year, Balanced Scorecard and Sales Evaluation System (“SES”),
effective business performance management tools, were introduced to
all sales divisions. Under the SES, the Group can effectively transform
the priority of the annual marketing management target and result
requirements into detailed assessment criteria and weights, and make
regular comprehensive assessments on the quantity and quality of sales
targets of different business teams. By combining the SES assessment
results and the feedback from key customers, we can enhance the
accuracy of completion progress of operation plans for different levels.
We can also strengthen the implementation of the Group’s marketing
strategies by different levels of the sales department, and effectively
implement the Group’s market-oriented strategic plans. In addition, the
assessment results of the SES will be considered as one of the important
factors for the year-end bonus plan of the business department of the
Group.

In order to improve the Group’s production management, the Group has
implemented various management methods and reforming measures in
service and product quality to fully utilize their production capacity. In terms
of service quality, the Group has restructured the former production control
department by dividing it into the customer service team and production
management team, which are responsible for collection and delivery of
information and production scheduling to improve service quality, follow up
and adjust the production processes for each order, and ensure that the
orders are completed and delivered as required by the customers.

Based on this, we established a regular meeting system and utilized a
series of big data derived from the production management model to
identify problems related to production and solve them. We further ensure
the delivery and quality of products.

For product quality, our subsidiaries strengthened the mechanisms of
management, the control of raw materials, the quality inspection covering
the whole process and providing quick responses to enable the whole
process management before, during and after production. It helped us
strengthen the stability of product quality in each production process and
effectively enhance the overall production efficiency of our subsidiaries. In
addition to ensuring the overall production volume, most of our fabric mills
maintained their product inspection pass rate at above 99% throughout the
year of 2017.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (continued)
EEENWRS N (F)

(5) Accelerating product development

In 2017, in addition to strengthening the factory internal management and
enhancing the production stability, the Group will actively cooperate with
its upstream and downstream suppliers on research and development of
new high value-added fabric to continuously increase the number of orders
placed with the Group.

In 2017, new fabric will be developed based on the notion of “fashionable,
technological and green”, and produced with high-quality fiber with high
functionality in a smart, green and environmentally friendly manner. As
such, future products will be combined with new types of raw materials
(such as biomass synthetic fiber and ultra-spun cotton fiber). There may
also be knitted fabric and pattern designs which fully utilize the newly
acquired weaving, dyeing and sorting equipment. We aspire to develop a
series of comfortable, fashionable and environmentally friendly products
with functionality.

(6) Equipment upgrade

According to the requirements of Made in China 2025, Intelligent
Manufacturing Development Plan (2016 —2020) and the Standards
for Printing and Dyeing Industry (2017), key sectors in traditional
manufacturing industry shall mostly transit to digital manufacturing by 2020
with a penetration rate of 70% for utilization of digital tools for research
and development. The utilization rate of numerical control in key processes
shall be over 50% and the penetration rate of digital workshops and smart
factories shall be over 20%.

For the printing and dyeing industry, the Chinese government requires
the printing and dyeing industry in restructuring, transformation and
upgrade, thereby accelerating the high-end manufacturing development
of the PRC’s manufacturing industry. Printing and dyeing enterprises shall
accelerate the transformation and reform through innovation and optimize
the internal structure to respond to the challenges from the changes
in the external market environment on a case-by-case basis. Most of
the enterprises began to eliminate their existing production equipment
and gradually apply new digital, automated and intelligent equipment in
the production process to reduce the overall costs and produce newly
differentiated and high value-added products to capture the shares in their
respective market segments.

(5)  JIRE g7 &

R20174 - S B T E s mE Nk E g - 12
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (continued)

(7)  Dividend

In view of the financial results and cash flow situation of the Group, the
Board has recommended the payment of a final dividend of HK10.4 cents
per share for the year ended 31 December 2017 (2016: HK5.3 cents per
share). The total dividend for the year ended 31 December 2017 would be
HK10.4 cents per share (payout ratio: 80.0%) as compared with HK5.3
cents per share (payout ratio: 50.0%) for the year ended 31 December
2016. Subject to the approval of the shareholders of the Company (the
“Shareholders”) at the forthcoming annual general meeting to be held
on Thursday, 10 May 2018, it is expected that the payment of the final
dividend will be made on or before Thursday, 31 May 2018. Going forward,
the Group is committed to maintaining similar range of dividend payout
ratio as our dividend policy so as to provide rewarding investment return to
the Shareholders.

(8) Events after the Reporting Date

Save as disclosed in note 43 to the consolidated financial statements
of the annual report, the Group did not have any significant event after
reporting date (i.e. 31 December 2017) and up to the date of this annual
report.

EEENWRED N (&)
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (continued)
EEENWRS N (F)

FINANCIAL REVIEW Bt 7% 2] B8
The key operating and financial indicators of the Group for the year ended  ZAN&EE&FH E2017FE12A31BIEFEZFERLKE
31 December 2017 are set out below: R BEZEEI 0T
2017 2016
Statement of Profit or Loss ltems BHEKREE
(All amounts in HK$ thousands unless (BREFRIGERASNT B © 58
otherwise stated) BHIAFETIR)
Revenue BER 6,913,785 6,328,714
Gross profit E7 751,495 775,124
EBITDA* B8 K 8H B AR 406,833 350,009
Profit for the year EFEAF 175,946 149,992
Profit attributable to KRAFIHER ANEMLEAR
owners of the Company 156,846 127,903
Basic earnings per share (HK cents) EREAREF (BW) 13.0 10.6
Key Financial Ratios FTEHBHL R
Profitability ratios BFIBEL HE
Gross profit margin (%) F F = (%) 10.9% 12.2%
EBITDA* margin (%) BT E T 8 AR R (%) 5.9% 5.5%
Expenses as a % of revenue L A
Distribution and selling expenses NERIEEER 2.5% 2.6%
Administrative expenses THER 6.0% 6.7%
Finance costs B & AN 0.3% 0.3%
Asset efficiency BEMFE
Inventory turnover period (days) GFE@EHR(R) 86 92
Trade and bills receivables turnover period EERZEEWGIERSEEH (/)
(days) 67 70
Trade and bills payables turnover period EERERENFERES(H)
(days) 48 50
EBITDA means earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and amortisation * EBITDAREFE & 2. 54 3 B &2 3k 84 B A H

At 31 December At 31 December

M12H31H ®12H31H
2017 2016
Asset ratios BEHXE
Current ratio VeI S 2.2 2.2
Net debt/EBITDA ratio SFERS, BRI E N 8 AT R =& (0.3) (0.6)
Gearing ratio BEXEEHE
Total liabilities/Equity attributable to BERE KARABEB AREEZS

owners of the Company 0.6 0.6




EBEE(RE)ARSE

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (continued)

Revenue

The Group’s revenue for the year ended 31 December 2017 amounted to
approximately HK$6,913,785,000 (2016: HK$6,328,714,000).

Revenue by business segments

FY2017
2017845

86.8%

In current year, the Group’s core business, production and sales of dyed
fabrics and yarns, generated revenue of approximately HK$5,998,860,000
(2016: HK$5,461,209,000), accounted for 86.8% (2016: 86.3%) of the
Group’s total revenue. Revenue from production and sales of garments
was approximately HK$914,925,000 (2016: HK$867,505,000), accounted
for 13.2% (2016: 13.7%) of the Group’s total revenue.

Cost of Sales and Gross Profit Margin

For the year ended 31 December 2017, overall cost of sales of the Group
amounted to approximately HK$6,162,290,000 (2016: HK$5,553,590,000)
and overall gross profit margin was 10.9% (2016: 12.2%).

During the year under review, the Group’s revenue increased by 9.2%,
mainly caused by the increase in sales volume of fabric by approximately
11.4%. The decline in average selling price of fabric and the increase in
energy costs led to a decrease in gross profit margin as compared with last
year.

EEENWRESN (&)

B
EBEE2017F12A3MBIEFENEEELA
6,913,785,000% 7T (20164 : 6,328,714,000
BIT) e

EREREBIE

Production and Sales of Dyed Fabrics
and Yarns

BUERHE R RY

Production and Sales of Garments
BEREEKK

RAFE SERLEBR-RERBEERM
K4 By & ¥ 58 4) 55,998,860,0007% 7T (2016
% :5,461,209,0008 L) 5B EXEE
EH86.8% (20164 :86.3% ) - R IE R &
R H) & ¥ EE 4 £914,925,0005% 7T (2016
% : 867,505,000 70) S EE EBEED
18.2% (20164 : 13.7% ) °

HERERENR

EBEZ2017F12A31B I FE 2 BB
E R AH £6,162,290,000/8 7T (20164 :
5,553,590,000% 7T) - B EF X B10.9%
(20165 :12.2% )

REBEFEAN AEBNEXBREF9.2% T8
EHRREAEEEZMNN1.4% M EF EE
REF TEZRA[EHNFHEE TR KEE
DN
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (continued)
EEENWRES N (F)

Distribution and Selling Expenses

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group’s overall distribution
and selling expenses amounted to approximately HK$172,868,000 (2016:
HK$163,756,000), accounted for 2.5% (2016: 2.6%) of the Group’s total
revenue.

Administrative Expenses

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group’s overall administrative
expenses amounted to approximately HK$412,891,000 (2016:
HK$424,275,000), accounted for 6.0% (2016: 6.7%) of the Group’s total
revenue.

Earnings before Interest, Tax, Depreciation and
Amortisation (EBITDA)

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group’s EBITDA amounted to
approximately HK$406,833,000 (2016: HK$350,009,000) and the EBITDA
margin was 5.9% (2016: 5.5%).

Finance Costs

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group’s finance costs
amounted to approximately HK$22,533,000 (2016: HK$19,506,000),
representing 0.3% (2016: 0.3%) of the Group’s total revenue.

Capital Expenditure

During the year under review, the Group invested approximately
HK$231,326,000 (2016: HK$256,485,000) in additions of property, plant
and equipment. The Group expects its capital expenditure for the next
financial year to remain at an average of the past two years.

Income Tax Expense

For the year ended 31 December 2017, income tax expense of the Group
amounted to approximately HK$36,304,000 (2016: HK$18,076,000).

Profit Attributable to Owners of the Company

For the year ended 31 December 2017, profit attributable to owners of the
Company was approximately HK$156,846,000 (2016: HK$127,903,000)
and corresponding profit margin was 2.3% (2016: 2.0%).

PHEREHEEHR
EBHE2017F12831H L FE 2 BE D
NH#EE B4 A172,868,000/# 7T (20164 :
163,756,000/8 7T ) ' (H&EE & X EREN2.5%
(20165 1 2.6% ) °

THEHA
EEHZE2017F12A31BILFE 2 B
T E R Y A412,891,000/8 7T (20164 ¢
424,275,000/ 70 ) - fhEE & ¥ 5 A ER6.0%
(2016F :6.7% ) °

BB 4T 8 & # 85 51 X B (EBITDA)

EEBHE2017F12A31BILFE 2 BHMITE
K2 8 55 B R 4 58406,833,0005 7T (20164 -
350,009,000/ 7T ) + S8 9T & M ¥ 85 A A1) E X
55.9% (20165 :5.5% ) °

S5 N
EBEZ2017F12A3IB L FEZRE K
AN #922,533,0007% 7T (20164F : 19,506,000

BT HEEEEBBEMEROI% (20165F :
0.3%) °

EAXRAX

REEFAN  £EBEIRE X E231,326,000%8 7T
(20164 : 256,485,000/ 7T ) LA & Hn ¥ % - 1%
BEERB - EEBHE TV RFENEAME
1S HEFFIE B AW R I KT -

FrEHx i

EBEEHE2017F12A31BILEEZFAEH S H
#) 536,304,000/ 7T (20164 : 18,076,000/
JC) °

RARERAEBERF

SEEHZ2017F12A31B L FE 2 AR Al
A ANEEBEFNE A156,846,0007% 7T (2016
127,908,000 7T) - EHEBEEF X £2.3%
(20164F : 2.0% ) °
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (continued)

Inventory

As at 31 December 2017, the Group’s inventory amounted
to approximately HK$1,450,187,000 (31 December 2016:
HK$1,401,911,000). The inventory turnover period was 86 days, a
decrease of 6 days compared with 92 days in 2016.

Trade and Bills Receivables

As at 31 December 2017, the Group’s trade and bills receivables
amounted to approximately HK$1,261,584,000 (31 December 2016:
HK$1,209,330,000). Trade and bills receivables turnover period was 67
days, a decrease of 3 days compared with 70 days in 2016.

Trade and Bills Payables

As at 31 December 2017, the Group’s trade and bills payables amounted
to approximately HK$817,067,000 (31 December 2016: HK$752,140,000).
Trade and bills payables turnover period was 48 days, a decrease of 2
days compared with 50 days in 2016.

Liquidity and Financial Resources

As at 31 December 2017, the Group’s net assets amounted
to approximately HK$3,556,376,000 (31 December 2016:
HK$3,453,645,000). The key figures of financial position were as follows:

EEENWREDS N (&)

FE

£ B R2017F12A31HZTFEHN A
1,450,187,000% 7T (2016 12H318 :
1,401,911,000/% 7T ) < 17 & /A ¥4 2 R86K + £
2016F 92 R M LL Bk 6K ©

EERRERWNRE

EER2017F12A31H 2 B E N Z I EWFTE
#) /1,261,584,000/% jT (20165124318 :
1,209,330,000/8 70) - & X R EHEEWHIERE
#@HAG7R » E20164 70K HH EL B 23K o

EXRREBEERMNRE

SBER2017F12A8MH 2 2 £ R EB RN R
15 4 /817,067,000/% 7t (2016F12 431 H :
752,140,000 70 ) « &£ L REE N RIEFHE
Bl A48K 0 B12016F 50K ML IR V2K »

ETRBMERYBER

MR2017F12A31H S BEEFTEDH A
3,556,376,000/% ;T (201641273318 :
3,453,645,0008 70 ) - AR B E E E RN
T

At 31 December
M®12H318

2017

HK$’000 T &7

At 31 December
MW12A31H
2016

HK$'000 F&T

Non-current assets IEREBEE 1,746,764 1,738,318
Current assets mENEE 3,842,207 3,633,297
Total assets EEBE 5,588,971 5,371,615
Current liabilities REAE 1,746,107 1,671,279
Non-current liabilities ERBEE 286,488 246,691
Total liabilities BEEE 2,032,595 1,917,970
Net assets BEFE 3,556,376 3,453,645

The Group met its funding requirements in its usual course of operation
by cash flows from operations, as well as long-term and short-term bank
borrowings. Capital expenditure was mainly financed by long-term bank
borrowings.

SENEEMRRERNENBITHRERER
ENEEESFE MEARINETEZHEH
RITE BB -
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (continued)

EEENWEDIN (&)

As at 31 December 2017, the principal financial covenant figures/ratios
(according to the banks’ definitions) were as follows:

R2017E12A318 T ENHBRZHEE 't
R (RIBRITHTEER )LD T :

At 31 December
M12831H
2017

At 31 December
M®12H31H
2016

Consolidated tangible net worth HEFBREAE

Consolidated total bank debt to RAERIBITTAREY
consolidated tangible net worth REFBREELD

Consolidated EBITDA to e BT E KA

consolidated interest expense FE 4R S T E 2 Al
Consolidated current assets to REMEBEEY

consolidated current liabilities REREBEL A
Consolidated capital expenditure REEBEARAE

HK$3,124,272,000 HK$3,067,813,000

0.2 0.2
18.1 17.9
2.2 2.2

HK$231,326,000 HK$256,485,000

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group had complied with
all covenant ratios and undertakings.

As at 31 December 2016, the annual capital expenditure of the Group
exceeded the limit of general undertakings to a bank. The Group obtained
a waiver letter from a relevant bank not to demand for immediate
repayment of the bank borrowings.

Risk Management

The Group follows a stringent and prudent risk management policy to
manage foreign exchange and interest rate risks.

The sale and the purchase of raw materials of the Group were mainly
denominated in Hong Kong dollars (“HKD”), United States dollars (‘USD”)
and Renminbi (“RMB”). Since the Group mainly carries out production
in China, we are exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from RMB
exposure. The Group has been closely monitoring the exchange rate
fluctuation for USD and RMB and will continue to monitor the trend of the
exchange rate and adopt appropriate measures in order to mitigate the
foreign currency risk in a cautious manner.

In addition, bank borrowings of the Group were denominated in HKD and
USD and interests were mainly charged on a floating rate basis. Since
the market expects that the interest rates in the United States might rise
in the coming year, the Group will continue to monitor the interest rates
fluctuation in the market and will adopt appropriate measures to minimise
the interest rate risk.

REZE2017F12A31IHILFER - AEEE B
SPRTB AL E KRG -

R2016F12A31H AEBEFEEARAS B
H—RRITH—RAEAERB - AEECHEH
RITESREERRABERRITERE R

2 Bz E T2

& E 2 KIEBAS RFE R R E IR R
BEE R 7] & [l Bz o

SEZHEMRBRBUAETL ETRARYK
RE-MEENEEEMURFE - BFRA
REREEZIINERR KB -—BETBUEE

TRARBEXNES SRMEEN X

EREREZTNEY  ZHAENERLRE
LB o

AN REBRITEERETMET R EN

MEBEEBNFHFERAE BN IBEHXE
RREDAEMENAEE AEESEERST
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (continued)

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had 9,345 (2016: 9,900) full time
employees. The Group will continue to implement streamlined production
so as to further minimize its labour cost. The Group’s emolument policies
are formulated on the performance of individual employee and the salary
trends in various regions, which are reviewed regularly. Subject to the
Group’s profitability, the Group may also distribute a discretionary bonus to
its employees as an incentive for their contribution to the Group.

The Group has established share option schemes for its employees,
and also provides regular training courses and subsidies for continuing
education so as to improve the skills of its employees with respect to
production, selling and management.

OUTLOOK

The Group is strongly committed to increasing sales with existing quality
customers as well as growing new customers. On the other hand, the
Group is also dedicated in significantly reducing the overall costs to
maintain its competitiveness in the already challenging market. A series
of operational equipment upgrades in all our fabric mills will continue to
contribute greatly to the benefits of the Group in the long run. The Group
will maintain a prudent and pragmatic approach. The Board and the
management believe that the Group’s marketing and sales strategies and
the above operational measures can play a positive role in the long-term
business development and continuous efficiency improvement, so that the
Group can enjoy higher profitability, a stable financial position and a solid
foundation for better performance.

EEENWRED N (&)

EBERMEHRE

EBMN2017F12A31B 22 BEE A A
9,345 A (20164 : 9,900 A ) - AEE B HEEE
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
ERERRE

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard of corporate
governance practices and procedures. Throughout the year from 1
January 2017 to 31 December 2017 (the “Year”), except for the deviations
as disclosed in this report, the Company has consistently adopted
and complied with all the applicable code provisions of the Corporate
Governance Code (the “CG Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 to the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange” and the “Listing Rules”, respectively) as
guidelines to reinforce our corporate governance principles.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Board Composition

As at 31 December 2017, the board of directors of the Company (the
“Directors” and the “Board”, respectively) comprised 8 members, namely 3
executive Directors (the “EDs”), 2 non-executive Directors (the “NEDs”) and
3 independent non-executive Directors (the “INEDs”). The NEDs and INEDs
represented about 63% of the Board members thereat. During the Year
and up to the date of this annual report, the Board comprises the following
members:

EDs

Mr. ZHAO Yao (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. CHEN Minghong

Mr. LAN Jiang

NEDs
Dr. YEN Gordon
Mr. ZHANG Chong

INEDs

Mr. NG Kwok Tung
Mr. YING Wei

Mr. William LAM

The number of INEDs continuously represents one-third of the Board
as required by Rule 3.10A of the Listing Rules. The profile of all the
current Directors are set out on pages 49 to 53 of this annual report. The
relationships among the Board members (including financial, business,
family or other material or relevant relationships, if any) are also disclosed
there.

RARIBMAEFSKENGEERERLE
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EEEL(EE)AHRRT 2017FFH

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)

All Directors have entered into service contracts or letters of appointment
with the Company, subject to renewal, retirement by rotation and re-
election at the general meetings of the Company in accordance with the
articles of association of the Company (the “Articles”). Article 102(A) of the
Articles provides that at each annual general meeting of the Company (the
“AGM”), one-third of the Directors for the time being, or, if their number is
not three or a multiple of three, then the number nearest one-third or any
other number subject to such manner of rotation as may be required by the
statutes, the Listing Rules or other codes, rules, and regulations prescribed
from time to time by the applicable regulatory authority, shall retire from
office. Article 93 of the Articles also provides that any Director appointed to
fill a casual vacancy (who shall hold office until the next following general
meeting of the Company) or as an addition to the Board (who shall hold
office until the next following AGM) shall then be eligible for re-election,
but shall not be taken into account in determining the Directors who are to
retire by rotation at such meeting.

Roles and Responsibilities of the Board and Delegation to
the Management

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of the Company
and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) and is responsible for promoting
the success of the Group by directing and supervising the business
operations of the Group in the interests of the Company’s shareholders
(the “Shareholders”) by formulating strategic directions and monitoring the
financial and management performance of the Group.

The overall management of the Group’s business is vested in the Board.
The Board has delegated the day-to-day management of the Group’s
business to the executive management team, and focused its attention on
matters affecting the Group’s overall strategic policies, finances and the
Shareholders. The executive management team assumes full accountability
to the Board for the operations of the Group. A formal schedule has been
formulated and will be reviewed regularly to identify specific matters that
shall be reserved to the Board and those delegated to the management.
The Board has given clear directions to the management that certain
matters must be referred to the Board for consideration and approval. The
Board is the ultimate decision making body of the Company except for
matters requiring the approval of the Shareholders in accordance with the
Articles, the Listing Rules and other applicable laws and regulations.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)
EEERRE (&)

Practices and Conduct of Meetings

Four regular Board meetings at approximately quarterly intervals were held
during the Year. Each of the Directors has actively participated in each
meeting in person or via telephone or videoconferencing. Decisions were
made by majority vote at the Board meetings.

The dates of 2017 regular Board meetings had been determined in 2016
and any amendments to this schedule were notified to all Directors at least
14 days before the meetings. Appropriate arrangements were in place
to allow the Directors to include items in the agenda for regular Board
meetings.

All Directors had access to the services of the company secretary of the
Company (the “Company Secretary”) who regularly updated the Board on
governance and regulatory matters. Any Director, wishing to do so in the
furtherance of his respective duties, might take independent professional
advice (through the chairman of the Board (the “Chairman”)) at the
Company’s expense. The availability of professional advice extended to
three Board committees, namely the Audit Committee, the Remuneration
Committee and the Nomination Committee. Minutes of the Board meetings
were taken by the Company Secretary and, together with any supporting
documents, were available to all Directors. Draft and final versions of
the minutes were sent to all Directors for their comment and record
respectively.

If a Director had a conflict of interest in a transaction or proposal to be
considered by the Board and such transaction or proposal was determined
by the Board to be material, the individual Director had to declare his
interest and was required to abstain from voting on any matter in which
he or any of his associates (as defined in the Listing Rules) had a material
interest and that he would not be counted in the quorum present at
the Board meeting. Such matters were considered at a Board meeting
attended by the INEDs who had no material interest in the transaction or
proposal.

EREARAR

AEERN ARBBANBFTETEIHESS
@ MR- BEFEERY BREFAR

HERL2HER R - ETCTRIRTRENE
HERR-
017FEF S FHEeRMET A HE20164F

WEE T A AR HERD14RATEA
BEFE - ARABAEER RESRLD
WMERAMAE=ZTSEHEHEAEER-

NRAMEEREMREFTENEALRESTH
PMEEEHABERARAME ERNEEAHE
THRBEM(BBEIRF)SHLKBELEEXESR
ERAARAN -3RELELZRE (EREE
€ FHEREERERZES) NASKERE
R-EZgga A rfNEAERE 4
RERERTMERXH IR RETRAEES-
N AESHEN MRRERBEEFELCE
ZRe

FREFHEESERTERNRINERTF
BEZERR/EBEANGHRE B RHERE
EAPHNG MAEFERBRLETMHE
ALTERERBGEZHAESTERERMER
Z (M EMRBAFIA) B ALEZE
EEERLEEANBAN -FHRERAKESZS
ERER MREZFTARNRZAEZT I F
EEAMBEHBIIFNTESTHE



EmEE(%E)FRYS 201744 33

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)
EEERRE (H)

Directors’ Attendance at Board Meetings, Board BEENEESSE ES2ZESSE
Committee Meetings and General Meetings ERERE2HERR

Details of the attendance of the Directors at meetings of the Board, the AXEERXN EFERNEZ=ee EXETEee
Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination &% FTHEZE@ex% RELTEeeEZMKRE

Committee and the general meetings during the Year are set out in the K&WMEEFIBIEHNT&K:
following table:

Meetings attended/Meetings required to be attended during the Year
AEERESZHREAY EELEZER

Annual Extraordinary

Audit Remuneration Nomination General General
Name of Directors Board  Committee =~ Committee =~ Committee Meeting Meeting
EEnE EXe® ERZET HMZEE REEZET BRREFAT BRRENA®
EDs HiTEE
Mr. ZHAO Yao HEREE 4/4 - - 2/2 1/1 il
Mr. CHEN Minghong BRIEH LA 2/4 - - - 11 01
Mr. LAN Jiang BET4a4 4/4 - 2/2 - 1/1 11
NEDs HHTEF
Dr. YEN Gordon BE#ELT 4/4 - - - 1/1 1/1
Mr. ZHANG Chong RBLE 4/4 4/4 - - 1/ 11
INEDs BUHHNTEE
Mr. NG Kwok Tung HERLE 4/4 4/4 2/2 - 11 1/1
Mr. YING Wei EEEE 4/4 - 2/2 2/2 0/1 il
Mr. William LAM WEKTE 4/4 4/4 - 2/2 1/1 11
Date of the meetings 2% B8 23/3/2017 3/1/2017 16/3/2017 21/3/2017 22/6/2017 23/3/2017
22/6/2017 16/3/2017 20/11/2017 21/6/2017
24/8/2017 7/7/2017
20/11/2017 22/8/2017
Training of Directors EEEY

All Directors have been given relevant guideline materials regarding the FBESEHCREHEBETES BELS
duties and responsibilities as a Director as well as relevant laws, rules and (£ EARNES 2 AEEG - HBA RHO - 2
regulations applicable to the Directors, the duty of disclosure of interest HEETRAEEEK 2 BMEIE3I &L MR
and the business of the Group and induction materials will also be provided ¥ & EEZ(T AR ARES%  Te R
to newly appointed Directors shortly upon their appointment as Directors. ANEEREZENBER -
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All Directors have been updated from time to time on the latest
developments and changes in the Listing Rules and other applicable
regulatory requirements to ensure compliance and enhance their
awareness of good corporate governance practices.

Each of the Directors has confirmed that he had complied with code
provision A.6.5 of the CG Code on Directors’ training. Throughout the
Year, each of the Directors named below has participated in continuous
professional development by attending seminars/in-house briefing/reading
materials on the following topics to develop and refresh his knowledge and
skills and provided a record of training to the Company:

Name of Directors Topics of Training covered (Notes)
EDs

Mr. ZHAO Yao (a), (b) and (c)
Mr. CHEN Minghong (@), (b) and (c)
Mr. LAN Jiang (@), (b) and (c)
NEDs

Dr. YEN Gordon (a), (b) and (c)
Mr. ZHANG Chong (@), (b) and (c)
INEDs

Mr. NG Kwok Tung (@), (b) and (c)
Mr. YING Wei (a), (b) and (c)
Mr. William LAM (@), (b) and (c)
Notes:

(a) corporate governance
(b)  regulatory requirements or risk management
(c)  finance or business operation/management

BEEZFCETHALTRAINEMGEREER
K2BERNRBEBESRMER  EMBRAR
R MR REEREFOEERER ZER-

EECDRERAKCETAEHEESEI 2T
SFRAHEX EA6LG - AFEN UTHAEES
EEREFEBATNEBEZEHXKE " WBPHN
SEEMH2ARETXER NERREN
BE 2 MB R WE AR FREEIR
8

BEEns FrREZEal £/ (i)
HITEE

R EAE (@) (b)&(c)
PRIB LS & (@) (o)X (c)
EThA (@) (b)&(c)
HHITEE

BEHELT @+ (b))
RBLE (@~ (b))
BUHHNTEE

HEREE (@) (b)&(c)
JEREAE (@) (b) K (c)
WRR T E @ ()&
Biat -

(@ BEER

(b) EEZRHERERE

) BIBsiEBEE &R
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Directors’ Insurance

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance coverage in respect of
potential legal action against the Directors.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER (THE
“CEO”)

With effect from 23 January 2015, Mr. ZHAO Yao, the Chairman and an
ED, has taken up the position of CEO of the Company, details of which
were set out in the Company’s announcement dated 23 January 2015.
This deviates from code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, which stipulates
that the responsibilities of the chairman and chief executive officer
should be separate and should not be performed by the same individual.
However, having considered the current status of the Group, vesting the
roles of both Chairman and CEO in the same person enables the Group
to plan its overall strategy more efficiently and achieve the budgeted
target. The Board believes that the balance of power and authority under
this arrangement is adequately ensured by the Board which comprises
experienced, professional and high caliber individuals with sufficient
number thereof being INEDs.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

All the existing NEDs and INEDs were appointed for a specific term. Each
of the NEDs and INEDs has entered into a letter of appointment with the
Company for a term of one year, subject to renewal, retirement by rotation
and re-election at the general meetings of the Company in accordance with
the Articles.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received, from each of the existing INEDs, an annual
written confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules. The Board considers that all the INEDs are independent and at least
one of them has appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or
related financial management expertise in accordance with Rule 3.10(2) of
the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing
Rules (the “Model Code”) as its own code of conduct regarding Directors’
securities transactions. In response to the specific enquiries made by the
Company on all Directors, they have confirmed that they had complied with
the required standard set out in the Model Code throughout the Year.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board currently has established three committees, namely the Audit
Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee,
each with specific terms of reference. Their terms of reference have been
reviewed and approved by the Board and are updated by reference to the
CG Code from time to time. The terms of reference of each of the Audit
Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee
have been posted on the respective websites of the Stock Exchange and
the Company.

During the Year, these committees adhered to their principles, procedures
and arrangements set out in their respective terms of reference. The
respective committee secretaries took full minutes of the meetings of these
committees and the work of each of these committees was reported to the
Board regularly.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established an Audit Committee with written terms of
reference for the purposes of reviewing and providing supervision over
the Company’s financial reporting process, risk management and internal
control systems. The principal duties of the Audit Committee are to
consider the appointment and remuneration of the external auditors, to
monitor the integrity of the Group’s financial statements with a focus on
the changes in accounting policies and practices, major judgmental areas,
significant audit adjustments, going concern assumptions, and compliance
with accounting standards, the Listing Rules and other applicable legal
requirements, and to review the Group’s financial reporting system, risk
management and internal control systems.

As at the date of this annual report, the Audit Committee comprises a
NED, Mr. ZHANG Chong, and two INEDs, namely Mr. NG Kwok Tung and
Mr. William LAM and is chaired by Mr. NG Kwok Tung.

The Audit Committee held four meetings during the Year and details of
the attendance are shown in the table on page 33 of this annual report. A
summary of the work of the Audit Committee during the Year is set out as
follows:

e  provided recommendations to the Board on the re-appointment of
independent auditor, and approved the audit fee and the terms of
engagement of the independent auditor;
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° reviewed and monitored the independent auditor’s independence and
objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process in accordance
with applicable standards, and discussed with the independent
auditor before the audit commenced, the nature and scope of the
audit and the reporting obligations;

° reviewed the financial statements, interim report and annual report as
well as significant financial reporting judgments contained in them;

o reviewed the financial controls, internal control and risk management
systems;

e discussed the risk management and internal control systems with
management to ensure that the management had performed its duty
to have effective systems. Such discussion included the adequacy of
resources, staff qualifications and experience, training programmes
and budget of the Company’s accounting and financial reporting
function;

e  ensured co-ordination between the internal and external auditors, and
ensured that the internal audit function was adequately resourced
and had appropriate standing within the Company, and reviewed and
monitored its effectiveness;

° reviewed the financial and accounting policies and practices; and

o reviewed the independent auditor’s management letter, any material
queries raised by the independent auditors to management regarding
the accounting records, financial accounts or systems of control and
management’s response.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The fees paid/payable to BDO Limited, the Group’s independent auditor,
in respect of audit and non-audit services for the Year amounted to
approximately HK$3,065,000 and HK$870,000 respectively. The non-audit
services mainly consisted of review, consultancy and taxation services.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND AUDITOR FOR
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge the responsibilities for preparing the financial
statements of the Company. They were not aware of any material
uncertainties relating to events or conditions which may cast significant
doubt upon the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. The
independent auditor’s statement about its reporting responsibilities is set
out on pages 69 to 74 of this annual report.

There is no disagreement between the Board and the Audit Committee on
the re-appointment of the independent auditor, and they both have agreed
to recommend the re-appointment of BDO Limited as the Company’s
independent auditor for the ensuing year at the 2018 AGM for the approval
of the Shareholders.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established a Nomination Committee with written terms
of reference and its principal duties are 1) to review the structure, size and
composition of the Board at least annually; 2) to identify and recommend
suitably qualified candidates as new Director(s) or to fill Board vacancies
as they arise and to assess candidates proposed by the CEO as new
Senior Vice President(s) or to fill Senior Vice President vacancies as they
arise for the approval of the Board; 3) to assess the independence of the
INEDs; and 4) to make recommendations to the Board on the appointment
or re-appointment of Directors and succession planning for Directors, in
particular the Chairman and the CEO.

As at the date of this annual report, the Nomination Committee comprises
an ED, Mr. ZHAO Yao, and two INEDs, namely Mr. YING Wei and Mr.
William LAM and is chaired by Mr. ZHAO Yao.

The Nomination Committee held two meetings during the Year and details
of the attendance are shown in the table on page 33 of this annual report.
A summary of the work of the Nomination Committee during the Year is set
out as follows:

° made recommendations to the Board and determined the policy
on the selection of individuals nominated for a senior management
position of the Group, and re-appointment of Directors and assessed
the independence of the INEDs;

° reviewed the policy of diversity of the Board; and

° reviewed the size, structure and diversity of the Board, and assessed
the balance of skills and experience of the Board as expedient with
a diversity of perspectives appropriate to the requirements of the
business of the Group.

The Company follows a formal, fair and transparent procedure for the
appointment of new Directors to the Board. The Nomination Committee
will first consider necessary changes in respect of the structure, size
and diversity of the Board, identify suitably qualified candidates by
considering their professional knowledge and industry experience,
personal ethics, integrity and personal skills and time commitments,
and make recommendations to the Board for decision. The nomination
criteria also include the nominee’s skills and experience appropriate for
the requirements of the Group’s business and, for INEDs, the nominee’s
independence.
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THE POLICY OF DIVERSITY OF THE BOARD

The Company has adopted a policy of diversity of the Board (the “Policy”).
The criteria adopted by the Nomination Committee in considering whether
the relevant personnel are suitable as Directors include their qualifications,
experience, expertise, skills, knowledge, ethnicity, age, cultural background
and so on in view of the provisions of the Listing Rules and the particulars
of the Policy as adopted by the Board are summarised as follows:

Purposes:

1. toincrease diversity at the level of the Board;

2. to enhance the effectiveness of the Board and the quality of its
performance; and

3. to support the attainment of strategic objectives/plan and sustainable
and balanced development of the Group.

Measurable Objectives

The optimum composition of the Board will be based on a range of
diversity perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, professional qualifications, regional and industry
experience, skills, knowledge and other experience of the Directors. The
ultimate decision will be based on merit and contribution that the selected
candidate(s) will bring to the Board.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established a Remuneration Committee with written
terms of reference and its principal duties are 1) to make recommendations
to the Board on the remuneration policy of all Directors; 2) to review
and approve the Group’s remuneration policy proposed by the CEO and
make recommendations to the Board; and 3) to review and approve
the management’s remuneration and incentive assessment indicators
proposals by reference to the Board’s corporate goals and objectives
for the Board’s approval. The Group’s remuneration policy is to provide
a competitive level of remuneration in accordance with current market
conditions to attract and motivate the Directors and staff for their
contribution.
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As at the date of this annual report, the Remuneration Committee
comprises an ED, Mr. LAN Jiang, and two INEDs, namely Mr. NG Kwok
Tung and Mr. YING Wei, and is chaired by Mr. YING Wei.

The Remuneration Committee held two meetings during the Year and
details of attendance are shown in the table on page 33 of this annual
report. A summary of the work of the Remuneration Committee during the
Year is set out as follows:

° made recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages
of individual Directors and senior management, including benefits
in kind, pension rights and compensation payments, including
any compensation payable for loss or termination of their office or
appointment and assessed their performance;

e reviewed and approved the management’s remuneration and
incentive assessment indicators proposals by reference to the Board’s
corporate goals and objectives;

e considered and recommended the inclusion of the 2011 share option
scheme of the Company in the award mechanism for the Group's
management and employees; and

e ensured that no Director or any of the respective associates
(as defined in the Listing Rules) is involved in deciding his own
remuneration.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board has overall responsibility for the risk management and internal
control systems of the Group. The risk management measures and internal
control systems employed by the Group are designed to manage rather
than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve the business objectives of
the Group, and can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance
against material and/or financial misstatement or loss. The Board has
delegated the Audit Committee (“AC”) the following duties:

1. to review the Company’s financial controls, risk management and
internal control systems;

2. to discuss the risk management and internal control systems with
management to ensure that the management has performed its
duty to have effective systems. This discussion should include the
adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and experience, training
programs and budget of the Company’s accounting and financial
reporting function;

BEAFHAHY FNZEeMIRATES
KB B IFMITERMAK DI RE T RE
hEREERERLE ZEQTFEREER
/_:ED

AEERNFHEESRITT2REH  HEHB
IR AFRFIBAZEAN -FMEZBENAF
EANTIEMERBATER:

s HEFEEREREREZHMEFBERE
ZeRftEd BEeENE RARSE
MEBESR (BERBRRAARIEBBERE
EERE) RFERFZRR:

s HEEFEMICENIHLBEMEMSE
BEHFMEEREZEEES:

o FHELERIEART0MFHBRME S
ABRTEEEEABRESRBHES : &

s HMRENEFAZANTMAHEA (ER
R EMRA) AT RERERNEG 2 FBH

| B o R % PN B B 4

S22 RARAAFAKENEREE AR
EERG-AKEEAREREERABEIER
M BOR /B AEELERAMERNZE
EARXER EFRERMAERR KRR
BRE/RMBOEIBRERBRIEL SN
FBENRB-EFQCRTERZEEUT
BE:

1. BEARRMHKEE RREERAIE
AR

2. HEEETwWRBREENANBEZERS
REEECETREERIBMNERSL
AwmATEERE MY B RRBEE
EHNER HEEI2EERKERER
WoARZEETIRMEINEIRERE
MANREERLERE



EEEL(EE)AHRRT 2017FFH

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)

3. where an internal audit function exists, to ensure co-ordination
between the internal and external auditors, and to ensure that the
internal audit function is adequately resourced and has appropriate
standing within the Company, and to review and monitor its
effectiveness; and

4. to consider major investigation findings on risk management and
internal control matters as delegated by the Board or on its own
initiative and the management’s response to these findings.

The Company has established the Internal Audit Department (“IAD”) and
the Corporate Operation Management Department (“COMD”) to manage
the internal control and risk management issues of the Group respectively.
The COMD reports to both the AC and the CEO, while the IAD reports only
to the AC.

The AC and the CEO report to the Board periodically regarding material
controls, including financial, operational and compliance controls and
other risk issues of the Group identified by the AC and the CEO from time
to time. The Board reviews risk management and internal control matters
approximately once every six months. The Board and the AC are satisfied
with the effectiveness of the Company’s procedure for financial reporting.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The IAD is responsible for the internal control matters of the Group and
currently comprises four staff members. It is governed by an internal audit
charter and has established an internal audit approach for its internal audit
function. The IAD has prepared 19 internal audit reports during the year
ended 31 December 2017. The Board has confirmed that IAD had been
provided with adequate resources and budget and comprised qualified
staff with sufficient experience and training programs to perform its internal
audit function.

The missions of the IAD are:

— to evaluate and improve the Group’s risk management, control and
operation processes; and

— to assist the organization in achieving the best practice, thus
becoming the best managed company.
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The IAD is authorized to have unrestricted access to records, personnel,
and physical properties relevant to the performance of audits. Their
relevance depends on the nature and extent of the audits as well as
the audit environment, and is subject to the internal audit guideline on
the handling of sensitive information as endorsed by the AC. The IAD
is authorized to directly and regularly communicate with the senior
management and all executives in individual organization being audited to
discuss its major findings. All personnel within the Group are required to
assert full cooperation any time and in any place with the IAD necessary to
allow it to discharge its responsibilities.

RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group has established a comprehensive risk management framework
(“Framework”) since year 2016. The Framework is to execute the basic risk
management measures in various business sectors such as production,
operation and management, with the aim to (i) develop a group-wide, open
and proactive risk management culture, and (i) safeguard the strategic
development and current business operations of the Group.

The Framework consists of the following concepts:
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The Company has also established the guideline for the Framework
(“Guideline”). According to the Guideline, the risk management function of
the Group is made up of the Board, AC, CEO, senior management, COMD,
IAD and various subsidiaries of the Company.

The Framework is a tri-layer system. The first layer is mainly made up
of senior management and heads of various functional and operational
departments of the Group, who are the key players for minimizing potential
risks in advance. The second layer consists of the AC, CEO and COMD,
which is mainly responsible for the organization, co-ordination and planning
of the corporate risk management works and monitors the progress of
the risk management works. Thus, the second layer is vital during a risk
management crisis. The third layer is formed by the AC and the IAD to
review and audit the existing operation flow such as information system,
business flow and financial disclosure. The third layer is often the key to
mitigate risk factors in the aftermath of a risk management crisis.

The following diagram displays the relationship and interaction among the
three layers of the Framework:
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In 2018, COMD will continue to focus on the following risk management
issues:

1. to continue to refine the details of the Framework;

2. to consolidate the volume-based analysis and the nature-based
analysis; and

3. to continue to identify and categorize the potential risks faced by the
Group.

During 2017, the IAD and the COMD had reviewed the risk management
and internal control systems of the Group and reported their findings
to the AC. There was no significant defect found in respect of the risk
management or internal control system under review. The Board and
the AC are satisfied with the effectiveness and adequacy of the risk
management and internal control systems of the Group.

INSIDE INFORMATION POLICY

The Group has established a policy for ensuring that inside information
(“Inside Information”) is disclosed to the public in an equal and timely
manner in accordance with the Listing Rules and the Securities and
Futures Ordinance.

The senior management of the Group is to provide timely and accurate
information, to allow the Board to make an informed decision to determine
whether the information is Inside Information and/or whether the Company
has to disclose such information to the public. Senior management of the
Group must report to the Board and/or CEO any information they have
which they believe to be Inside Information and will trigger the Company
to discharge its disclosure duty. The Company Secretary will follow up
accordingly.

The Company Secretary is responsible for disclosing Inside Information
to the public and/or is authorised to collect any information from any
department and/or employee of the Group in order to help determining
whether the alleged information is Inside Information and/or whether
disclosure is required.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
Corporate Governance Duties

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance duties
of the Group, including (a) developing and reviewing the policies and
practices on (i) corporate governance and (i) compliance with legal and
regulatory requirements of the Company; (b) reviewing and monitoring
the training and continuous professional development of the Directors
and management; (c) developing, reviewing and monitoring the code of
conduct and compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and
Directors; and (d) reviewing the Company’s compliance with the CG
Code and disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report. The Board
has, amongst other matters, reviewed this Corporate Governance Report,
ensuring compliance with the Listing Rules.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. CHENG Wai Han, Charmaine (“Ms. CHENG”) joined the Group in
October 2003 and is currently a Joint Company Secretary and the Deputy
General Manager (Corporate Governance Department) of the Company.
She has over 17 years of extensive working experience specializing in
investor relations, credit management, company secretarial matters,
corporate affairs and insurance operation. Ms. CHENG obtained a
Bachelor’s degree of Commerce from Mount Allison University, Canada
and an Executive Master’s degree in Business Administration (EMBA) from
the Chinese University of Hong Kong. However, she does not possess the
specified qualifications for a company secretary as required by Rule 3.28
of the Listing Rules. Ms. CHENG has received no less than 15 hours of
relevant professional training in compliance with Rule 3.29 of the Listing
Rules during the Year.

Given the important role of the Company Secretary in the corporate
governance function of the Company, particularly in assisting the Company
and the Directors in complying with the Listing Rules and other relevant
laws and regulations, the Company has also appointed Mr. KWOK Siu Man
(“Mr. KWOK”) who meets the requirement under Rule 3.28 of the Listing
Rules as the other Joint Company Secretary with effect from 18 November
2015 to work closely with and provide assistance to Ms. CHENG in
discharge of the latter’s duties and responsibilities as a Joint Company
Secretary. Mr. KWOK was nominated by Boardroom Corporate Services
(HK) Limited (“Boardroom”) to act as a Joint Company Secretary and
Boardroom has been providing certain corporate secretarial services to
the Company pursuant to an engagement letter entered into between the
Company and Boardroom. The primary person at the Company with whom
Mr. KWOK has been contacting in respect of company secretarial matters
is Ms. CHENG.
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As Mr. KWOK was first appointed as the company secretary of a Hong
Kong Hang Seng Index constituent stock company in 1991 and has
been acting in such capacity for a number of other reputable companies
listed on the Stock Exchange at substantial times since then, he was not
required to have at least 15 hours of relevant continuous professional
development training under the Listing Rules for each of the five
consecutive years from 2012. Mr. KWOK has received no less than 15
hours of relevant professional training in compliance with Rule 3.29 of the
Listing Rules during the Year.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

The Board and the management of the Company endeavour to maintain
a continuing communication with the Shareholders and investors through
various channels, including the Company’s general meetings. Set out
below is a summary of how the Shareholders can convene a general
meeting and put forward proposals at such meetings.

Convening a general meeting

Pursuant to sections 566-568 of the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622
of the Laws of Hong Kong) (the “Companies Ordinance”), Shareholder(s)
holding at least 5% of the total voting rights of all the Shareholders having
a right to vote at general meetings may, by written request authenticated
by the Shareholder(s) making it (the “Written Request”) and sent to the
Company, require the Directors to call a meeting.

The Written Request (i) must state the general nature of the business to be
dealt with; and (ii) may include the text of a resolution that may properly be
moved and is intended to be moved at the meeting.

The Directors must call a meeting within 21 days after the date on which
they become subject to the requirement of the relevant Shareholder(s)
and such meeting must be held within 28 days after the date of the notice
convening the meeting.

If the Written Request received by the Company identifies a resolution that
may properly be moved and is intended to be moved at the meeting, the
notice of the meeting must include notice of the resolution. The business
that may be dealt with at the meeting includes a resolution that has been
included in such notice of meeting. If the resolution is to be proposed
as a special resolution, the Directors must include, in the notice of the
meeting, the text of the resolution and specifies the intention to propose
the resolution as a special resolution.
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If the Directors do not call a meeting as required by the Written Request,
the Shareholders who requested the meeting, or any of them representing
more than one-half of the total voting rights of all of them, may themselves
call a general meeting.

The meeting to be called by the Shareholders must be called (i) within
3 months after the date on which the Directors become subject to the
requirement to call a meeting and (i) in the same manner, as nearly as
possible, as that in which that meeting is required to be called by the
Directors.

Any reasonable expenses incurred by the Shareholders requesting the
meeting by reason of the failure of the Directors duly to call a meeting must
be reimbursed by the Company.

Procedures to put forward proposals at general meetings

Pursuant to sections 580 and 582 of the Companies Ordinance, a
Shareholder may request the Company to circulate a statement of
not more than 1,000 words with respect to a matter mentioned in any
proposed resolution or other business to be dealt with at any general
meeting.

To put forward proposals at the meeting, a Written Request must be made

y (i) Shareholder(s) holding at least 2.5% of the total voting rights of all the
Shareholders who have a relevant right to vote on a proposed resolution at
the meeting; or (i) at least 50 members who have a relevant right to vote
on a proposed resolution at the meeting.

The Written Request must identify the statement to be circulated, and
must be received by the Company at least 7 days before the relevant
meeting. The expenses of circulating such statement must be paid by the
Shareholder(s) who requested the circulation of the statement unless (i)
the Company resolves otherwise or (i) the meeting to which the requests
related is an AGM; and requests sufficient to require the Company to
circulate the statement are received in time to enable the Company to send
a copy of the statement at the same time as it gives notice of the meeting.
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Enquiries from Shareholders

Shareholders should direct their enquiries in respect of their shareholdings
or change of address or distribution instructions to the Company’s share
registrar, Boardroom Share Registrars (HK) Limited. Other Shareholders’
enquiries can be directed to the Investor Relations Representative of
the Company whose contact details are shown under “Shareholder
Information” of this annual report.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There was no change in the Company’s constitutional documents during
the Year.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (THE “EDs”)

Mr. ZHAO Yao
Chairman of the Board, ED and CEO
Chairman of Nomination Committee

Aged 54, was appointed as an ED on 27 November 2012, and as the
Chairman of the Board and the Chairman of the Nomination Committee on
14 November 2014. He was further appointed as the CEO of the Company
on 23 January 2015. Mr. ZHAO also holds directorships in certain of the
subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. ZHAO has almost 30 years of experience
in the textile industry. He joined China National Textiles Import and Export
Corporation* ( 7 B 45 #% fo # I8 O 48 2 7)) (“General Corporation”), the
predecessor of Chinatex Corporation Limited* (FREFR#HE B HR A F])
(“Chinatex”), a controlling shareholder of the Company, in 1987 and held
positions as the Assistant President of Chinatex, the General Manager
of Asset Management Department of Chinatex, Chairman and General
Manager of Chinatex Xinyuan Assets Management Co., Ltd.* (F#5{5&
BEEERBRAF), General Manager of Chinatex Tianyuan Property
Management Co., Ltd.* (BB R4 KITIHE AR A7), General Manager
of Chinatex Real Estate Administration Co., Ltd.* (FF##WEEREGR A
A]), Chairman of Chinatex (H.K.) Holding Limited, Chairman of Huasheng
Fujitec Elevator Co., Ltd.* (EFf & T EE#HERE A al), Chairman of
Shanghai Huasheng Fujitec Escalator Co., Ltd.* ( B8 EF & L EH
AR AF), Chairman of Shanghai Huade Photoelectron Science &
Technology Co., Ltd.* ( E/BZEEXERIZBRAF), Financial Manager
of Wah Gar Knitwear Factory Company Limited, General Manager of
Suzhou Zhongfa Property Management Co., Ltd.* (/W EFR D
A]) and Vice President of Chudai Trading Co., Ltd.* (B AR KK X&) |
a subsidiary of Chinatex. Mr. ZHAO graduated with a diploma in industrial
accounting from Renmin University of China in 1987. In December 20183,
Mr. ZHAO obtained a Senior Management Master’s Degree of Business
Administration awarded by University of Texas at Arlington in the United
States of America (‘USA”).

* For identification purpose only
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Mr. CHEN Minghong

Aged 51, served as a NED for the period from 6 June 2012 to 27
November 2012. He was appointed as an ED on 23 January 2015. Mr.
CHEN has almost 25 years of experience in the textiles industry. He is
currently the Deputy General Manager of Chinatex. Mr. CHEN joined
General Corporation, the predecessor of Chinatex, in March 1993. He
served successively as the Deputy Manager and Manager of the Cotton
Department of Chinatex Cotton Import and Export Corporation* ( & %548
L QA A]) (“Chinatex Cotton”), a subsidiary of Chinatex, Assistant
to General Manager, Deputy General Manager and General Manager of
Chinatex Cotton. Mr. CHEN graduated with a Bachelor of Arts degree from
the Department of Foreign Languages of Tsinghua University in 1989.

Mr. LAN Jiang
Member of Remuneration Committee

Aged 47, was appointed as an ED and a member of the Remuneration
Committee on 9 May 2016. Mr. LAN was appointed as the general
manager of Shenzhen Faun Textiles Limited, a subsidiary of the Company,
in January 2018. Mr. LAN has over 20 years of experience in the textiles
industry. He joined General Corporation, the predecessor of Chinatex, in
1994 and has held positions such as the Financial Manager of Chinatex
Shanghai Pudong Imp. & Exp. Co., the Financial Manager, Director
and Deputy General Manager of Chinatex (H.K.) Holding Limited and a
Director of Chinatex Capital Limited. He has served as a Director of the
Hong Kong General Chamber of Textiles Limited since January 2017.
Mr. LAN graduated with a Bachelor’'s Degree of Economics, majoring in
International Business Administration from the University of International
Business and Economics in China in 1994. Mr. LAN obtained a Master’s
Degree of Executive Master of Business Administration awarded by The
Chinese University of Hong Kong in 2015.

* For identification purpose only
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (THE “INEDs”)

Dr. YEN Gordon

Aged 48, has been a NED since 31 May 2013. Prior to that, he was the
Chief Financial Officer of the Group and an ED. He joined the Group
in 1999 and was then promoted to the role of ED in 2004 before re-
designating as a NED. Dr. YEN is currently the Managing Director of
Radiant Venture Capital Limited and the Managing Partner of Radiant Tech
Ventures Limited. He also serves as an independent non-executive director
and a member of each of the remuneration committee and audit committee
of Hopewell Holdings Limited, a company listed in Hong Kong. Dr. YEN
is a member of the Henan Province Committee of the Chinese People’s
Political Consultative Conference of the People’s Republic of China; a
director of GS1 HK Limited; and a director of the Hong Kong Chiu Chow
Chamber of Commerce. He holds a Bachelor’s degree in Manufacturing
Engineering from Boston University, USA; a Master of Business
Administration degree from McGill University, Canada and a Doctor of
Business Administration from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University.

Mr. ZHANG Chong
Member of Audit Committee

Aged 47, was appointed as a NED and a member of the Audit Committee
on 6 June 2012. Mr. ZHANG is currently the General Manager of
Agricultural Industrialization Department of Chinatex. Mr. ZHANG has
over 22 years of experience in the textiles industry. He joined General
Corporation, the predecessor of Chinatex, in 1995 and has held positions
such as the General Manager and the Deputy General Manager of Strategy
Department, General Manager of Investment Department, General Manager
of Investment Management Department, and Deputy General Manager
of Enterprise Management Department of Chinatex, as well as Officer
of Policy Research Office and Assistant of Manager Office of General
Corporation. Mr. ZHANG graduated with a Master’s degree in Business
Management from the Faculty of Business Administration, University
of International Business and Economics, China in 1995. Mr. ZHANG
completed an Executive Master’s degree in Business Administration
(EMBA) at China Europe International Business School (CEIBS) in 2014.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
(THE “INEDs”)

Mr. NG Kwok Tung
Chairman of Audit Committee
Member of Remuneration Committee

Aged 67, joined the Board in 1993 as an INED, also chairman of the
Audit Committee and a member of the Remuneration Committee. Mr. NG
is a practising accountant. He is also a non-executive director of Wah
Ha Realty Company Limited, a company listed in Hong Kong. He holds
a Bachelor of Commerce Degree and a Licentiateship in Accountancy
from McGill University, Canada and a Diploma in Chinese Law from the
University of East Asia, Macao. Mr. NG is a member of each of Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants, Institute of Chartered Professional
Accountants of British Columbia, Order of Chartered Professional
Accountants of Quebec, The Canadian Institute of Chartered Professional
Accountants, The Taxation Institute of Hong Kong, The Society of Chinese
Accountants and Auditors and the Society of Registered Financial Planners
in Hong Kong.

Mr. YING Wei
Chairman of Remuneration Committee
Member of Nomination Committee

Aged 51, was appointed as an INED, the chairman of the Remuneration
Committee and a member of the Nomination Committee on 1 January
2015. Mr. YING is a non-practising member of the Chinese Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. YING holds a Master’'s Degree in
Business Administration from the University of San Francisco and a
Bachelor’s Degree in Economics from the Zhejiang Gongshang University
(formerly known as Hangzhou Institute of Commerce). Mr. YING is the
managing director of CDH Investments. Mr. YING is currently holding
directorships in the following listed companies in Hong Kong, namely
an independent non-executive director of CHTC Fong’s International
Company Limited and Zhongsheng Group Holdings Limited, and a non-
executive director of New Focus Auto Tech Holdings Limited and China
Health Group Limited. Mr. YING was appointed as a director of Chongging
New Century Cruise Co., Ltd on 27 May 2016, a company listed on
Shenzhen Stock Exchange.
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Mr. William LAM
Member of Audit Committee
Member of Nomination Committee

Aged 59, was appointed as an INED, a member of the Audit Committee
and a member of the Nomination Committee on 9 May 2016. Mr. LAM
is a solicitor of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region and the
Supreme Court of England and Wales, and a civil celebrant of marriages
in Hong Kong. He graduated from the University of Manchester, England
in 1981 with a Bachelor of Science Degree in Electronics and Electrical
Engineering. His major subjects included Computer Design, Power
Transmission and Telecommunications. He is also a member of the Institute
of Electrical and Electronics Engineers (M.I.E.E.E.) in USA. After obtaining
his Bachelor's Degree, he studied laws at the Manchester Polytechnic
(now known as Manchester Metropolitan University), England and the
College of Law in Chester, England, respectively. Mr. LAM returned to Hong
Kong in 1984 to work in family business in Tai Sun Company (a member
of Hong Kong and Kowloon Textile), and Shing Fung Finance Company
Limited, both founded by his late father Mr. LAM Muk Kwong in 1958
and 1972, respectively. In 1992, Mr. LAM furthered his studies in laws
at the University of Hong Kong and obtained a Postgraduate Certificate
in Laws (PCLL) and was admitted as a solicitor of the Supreme Court of
Hong Kong in 1994 and then in the following year admitted as a solicitor
of the Supreme Court of England and Wales. In 1999, Mr. LAM founded
William Lam and Company, Solicitors to start his own practice in law. Mr.
LAM also serves in many areas. He is an executive committee member of
the Federation of Hong Kong Guangdong Community Organisations, the
president of the University of Manchester Alumni Association of Hong Kong
and a member of the InnoTech Committee of the Law Society of Hong
Kong and was a co-opted member of the Chinese Temples Committee
from 2009 to 2015. Mr. LAM has also acted as the legal advisor of various
organisations, such as the General Chamber of Textiles, the Chamber of
the Hong Kong Computer Industry, the Hong Kong Information Technology
Joint Council, the Hong Kong WEEE Recycling Association, the Hong
Kong Society of Medical Professionals, the Hong Kong Software Industry
Association, the Public Surgeons United, the Government Doctors’
Association, the Hong Kong Public Doctors’ Association and the Hong
Kong New Youth Energy Think Tank.
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The directors of the Company (the “Directors”) present the annual report
and the audited consolidated financial statements of the Company and
its subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2017 (the
“Year”).

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The Group is
principally engaged in the textile and garment businesses, including
the production and sales of knitted fabric and garments. Details of the
principal activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 35 to the
consolidated financial statements.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The Group’s financial performance for the Year and the financial position
of the Group as at 31 December 2017 are set out in the consolidated
financial statements on pages 75 to 172 of this annual report. No interim
dividend was declared for the six months ended 30 June 2017. The
board of Directors (the “Board”) has recommended the payment of a final
dividend of HK10.4 cents per share, amounting to HK$125,323,000, to the
shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”) whose names appear
on the register of members on Monday, 21 May 2018 and the retention of
the remaining profit for the Year.

Subject to the approval of the Shareholders at the forthcoming annual
general meeting of the Company (the “AGM”) to be held on Thursday, 10
May 2018, it is expected that the final dividend will be paid on or before
Thursday, 31 May 2018.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A fair review of the business and a discussion and analysis of the
performance for the Year and an indication of likely future development
in the business of the Group are provided in the Chairman’s Statement
and the Management Discussion and Analysis (the “MD&A”) of this annual
report. Description of the principal risks and uncertainties facing the
Group can be found throughout this annual report, in particular the Risk
Management and Internal Control section under the Corporate Governance
Report and the Possible Risks and Uncertainties section of this Directors’
Report. Particulars of important events affecting the Company that have
occurred since the end of the Year can be found in this annual report
and the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements. An analysis
using financial key performance indicators is provided in the Financial and
Statistical Highlights and the MD&A. Compliance with relevant laws and
regulations, which have a significant impact on the Group, can be found
throughout this annual report, in particular, the Corporate Governance
Report.
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In addition, discussions on the Group’s environmental policies and
relationships with the key stakeholders that have a significant impact on
the Group are contained in the Environmental, Social and Governance
Policies and Performance section in the Chairman’s Statement and MD&A
of this annual report.

RISK MANAGEMENT
POSSIBLE RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Group’s possible risks and uncertainties range from raw material risk,
market risk, operational risk, credit risk and financial risk.

Raw Material Risk

The Group’s business is dependent on the supply and cost of raw
materials, in particular cotton yarns and any disruption in the supply or
fluctuation in the prices of such raw materials, which could materially
and adversely affect the Group’s business, results of operations, financial
conditions and prospects.

Market Risk

The global financial markets have experienced volatility recently, which may
have a negative impact on the Group’s business operation. The financial
uncertainty may affect the global textile and garment industry, which in turn
may affect the business of major retail brands and garment manufacturers,
which are the principal customers of the Group.

Operational Risk

The Group’s fabric production facilities emit wastewater and other
pollutants and are subject to various environmental protection laws and
regulations in China and other countries where the Group’s production
facilities are located. Any change to, or failure by the Group to comply with,
environmental protection laws or regulations may cause the Group to incur
additional costs and expenses.

In addition, if the production facilities of the Group experience any power,
steam or water shortages, the Group’s business and results of operations
may be harmed.

EEEL(EE)AHRRT 2017FFH

DIRECTORS’ REPORT (continued)
EEERE (&)

AN REBMRERRMAEHAEEEE

FENIZFNENBENS R HERAX
FHRIFERENRE HEREARRERE
o KB E w4 o

2 B & 7
BERRBRAIAPEER

AREBHEE R R MR R R SRR
MRk EERR EERRNIETBEA

LA
()
2

R #1 #4 E BR

AEBEHNEBIORREME (CERBY)H
P B AR (1 L ER A ) o B SR AT RHE AR
HIRRBAIEEHAREMER KLEXE
BRI RERERTHZE -

o

™ 5 &k

EREMMBORPHETR LS AEE
MEBKEERTNEE SR TABRREA
EFERHOBEKKITE MEXEFEK
NEEREEKRAEER (BRAEENTIER
F )R-

& B E by

7R 5% [ ) TR AR AR B PR DR K R B Al )5 R
W) W78 S B R AN 5 [ A R R PR M RO L
B RO SEREREAV OERNBRR - RIFOE
BISOER E M Z B R A LB REEETREE
PIgER A AEBEERINERRMAX -

AN MASEONEERBLREMEN &
ABHKNP R AEBNEHEMEERERS

X8

55



56

Fountain Set (Holdings) Limited  Annual Report 2017

DIRECTORS’ REPORT (continued)
ExERE (&)

Credit Risk

Credit risk arises from the possibility that a customer in a transaction may
default. The Group identifies and manages credit risk by defining the target
market segment, formulating appropriate credit policies, and carrying out
credit assessment and monitoring asset quality. The Group has established
policies, procedures, and rating systems to identify, measure, monitor,
control and report on credit risk. They are reviewed and enhanced on an
ongoing basis to cater for market changes, statutory requirements and
best practices in risk management processes.

Financial Risk

For financial risk, please refer to the Risk Management section under the
MD&A and note 37(b) to the consolidated financial statements.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Details of the movements in the investment properties of the Group during
the Year are set out in note 13 to the consolidated financial statements.
Particulars of the Group’s investment properties are set out on page 68 of
this annual report.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

During the Year, the Group had additions of HK$231,326,000 to property,
plant and equipment, which were mainly used to expand and upgrade the
Group’s manufacturing facilities.

Details of the above and other movements in the property, plant and
equipment of the Group during the Year are set out in note 14 to the
consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the share capital of the Company during the
Year are set out in note 30 to the consolidated financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

The Company’s reserves available for distribution to the Shareholders as
at 31 December 2017, calculated under sections 291, 297 and 299 of the
Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong), amounted
to HK$1,351,580,000 (31 December 2016: HK$1,338,071,000).
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DIRECTORS

The Directors during the Year and up to the date of this Directors’ Report
were as follows:

Executive Directors (the “EDs”)

Mr. ZHAQO Yao (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. CHEN Minghong
Mr. LAN Jiang

Non-executive Directors (the “NEDs”)

Dr. YEN Gordon
Mr. ZHANG Chong

Independent Non-executive Directors (the “INEDs”)

Mr. NG Kwok Tung
Mr. YING Wei
Mr. William LAM

According to the articles of association of the Company (the “Articles”), Mr.
NG Kwok Tung, Mr. YING Wei and Mr. William LAM will retire and being
eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming AGM.

As at 31 December 2017, no Director proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming AGM had a service contract with the Company or any of
its subsidiaries, which is not determinable by the Group within one year
without payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

The biographical details of the Directors are set out on pages 49 to 53 of
this annual report.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SECURITIES

As at 31 December 2017, the interests and short positions of the Directors
and the chief executive of the Company in the shares, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (the “SFO”)), which were required:
(a) to be notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV
of the SFO (including interests and short positions which they were taken
or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO), (b) to be entered
in the register referred to therein (the “Register”) pursuant to section 352
of the SFO, or (c) to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of
Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix 10 to the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules” and the “Model
Code”, respectively), were as follows:

Long positions in shares of the Company (the “Shares”):
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2017, none of the Directors
and the chief executive of the Company had any interests or short
positions in any shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company
or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
SFO), (a) which had been notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests
and short positions which they were taken or deemed to have under such
provisions of the SFO), (b) which were recorded in the Register pursuant to
section 352 of the SFO or (c) as otherwise notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

The Company adopted a share option scheme on 25 January 2002 (the
“2002 Scheme”) and another share option scheme on 20 January 2011
(the “2011 Scheme”).

The 2002 Scheme

The 2002 Scheme was adopted by the Company at the extraordinary
general meeting held on 25 January 2002. The 2002 Scheme was to
expire on 24 January 2012 and was early terminated on 20 January 2011.
The primary purpose of the 2002 Scheme was to provide the Company
with a flexible means of giving incentives to, rewarding, remunerating,
compensating and/or providing benefits to the employees and for such
other purposes as the Board may approve from time to time. All the share
options granted under the 2002 Scheme lapsed in the year 2016.

The 2011 Scheme

The Company adopted the new 2011 Scheme pursuant to a shareholders’
resolution passed at the extraordinary general meeting held on 20 January
2011 (the “Adoption Date”). The purpose of the 2011 Scheme is to provide
the Company with a flexible means of giving incentive to, rewarding,
remunerating, compensating and/or providing benefits to the Participants
(as defined in the 2011 Scheme) and for such other purposes as the Board
may approve from time to time.

The Participants of the 2011 Scheme include (i) any directors or any
employees (whether full-time or part-time) of the Company and its
subsidiaries, associated companies, jointly controlled entities and related
companies from time to time (the “FSH Group”); (i) any discretionary
objects of a discretionary trust established by any directors or any
employees (whether full-time or part-time) of each member of the FSH
Group; (iii) any consultants, professional and other advisers to each
member of the FSH Group (including their employees or executives or
any persons, firms or companies proposed to be appointed for providing
such services); and (iv) any chief executives or substantial shareholders
of the Company, provided that the Board may have absolute discretion to
determine whether or not one falls within the above categories.
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The maximum number of Shares which may be issued upon exercise of all
options to be granted under the 2011 Scheme and the maximum number
of Shares which may be issued upon the exercise of all options to be
granted under any other share option schemes of the Company (if any)
are in aggregate equal to 10% of the total number of Shares in issue as
at the Adoption Date, i.e. 79,401,096 Shares. Under the 2011 Scheme,
share options comprising 3,352,000 Shares, 23,045,000 Shares and
26,100,000 Shares were granted on 18 May 2011, 18 August 2011 and 19
January 2018, respectively. The closing prices of the Shares immediately
before the dates of grant were HK$1.80 and HK$1.21 and HK$1.10 each,
respectively. Among those granted on 18 May 2011 and 18 August 2011,
share options comprising 1,980,000 Shares were exercised on 30 June
2015, and share options comprising 24,417,000 Shares lapsed due to
non-exercise thereof or resignation of grantees.

The total number of Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of the
share options granted and to be granted pursuant to the 2011 Scheme
and any other share option schemes of the Company to each Participant
(including exercised, cancelled and outstanding options) in any 12-month
period shall not exceed 1% of the total number of Shares in issue (the
“Individual Limit”). Any further grant of share options in excess of the
Individual Limit shall be subject to Shareholders’ approval with such
grantee and his associates abstaining from voting.

In addition, share options granted to a substantial shareholder (as defined
in the Listing Rules) of the Company or an INED or any of their respective
associates (as defined in the Listing Rules) in any 12-month period up
to and including the date of such grant in excess of 0.1% of the Shares
in issue and having an aggregate value, based on the closing price of
the Shares at the date of each grant, exceeding HK$5 million must be
approved by Shareholders in general meeting in advance.

The exercise price is determined by the Board at the date of grant and
should be the higher of (a) the average of the closing prices of each Share
as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of grant; and (b) the closing
price of each Share as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation
sheet on the date of grant. The amount payable on acceptance of the
share option granted is HK$1.00. The option period of the share option
granted is determined by the Board at the time of offering the grant and, in
any event, shall not be longer than 10 years from the date of grant.

The 2011 Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period of 10 years
commencing on the Adoption Date, after which period no further share
option will be granted.

As at 31 December 2017, there was no outstanding share option under the
2011 Scheme. Other particulars and movements of the Company’s share
option schemes during the Year are set out in note 32 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER

PERSONS’ INTERESTS

As at 31 December 2017, the following persons (other than a Director
or the chief executive of the Company)/entities had interests and short
positions in the Shares and underlying Shares as recorded in the
register of interests of the substantial shareholders required to be kept
by the Company pursuant to section 336 of the SFO (the “Substantial

Shareholders’ Register”).

Long positions in Shares:
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FERREHEMALIESE

R20175F12A318  REARRIRIEFLHE
GPIFEIB6HEMIFE 2 T ZMERM ([EER
REfM)R#E TIHAL(RARFAEFHRS
TTBRABRRIN) /BB RAB R T 5
BRBENARR:

R RIER

Approximate %

Number of of the issued
Name of substantial shareholders Shares held Capacity Shares
HNIEERTRE
TERRER FERGHE £ Bal
COFCO Corporation (“COFCQ”) 433,494,000 Interest of controlled corporations 35.97
RESEERAR ([HE]) (Notes 1 and 2) T EE NS
(HaE1k2)
Chinatex Corporation Limited (“Chinatex”) 433,494,000 Interest of controlled corporations 35.97
RERGEBERAR ([F4]) (Notes 1 and 2) L% E R E R
(Hriz1ke)
Chinatex Yieldfull Investment Co., Ltd. 409,036,000 Beneficial owner 33.94
(“Yieldfull’) (Note 1) ERBEAA
HHREREERERAR ([RE]) (Hiit1)
Chinatex Jinhui Investment Management 409,036,000 Interest of a controlled corporation 33.94
Co., Ltd.* (“Jinhui”) (Note 1) B ES
hHRBREERERETLA ([HE]) (Hizt1)
Mr. HA Chung Fong (“Mr. HA") 135,152,000 Beneficial owner 11.22
BEMEEE(TELRE]) (Note 3) EREEA
(B3
69,160,948 Other interests 5.74
(Notes 3 and 5) HitviE s
(H1it3Rs)

* For identification purpose only

* EHES)
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Approximate %

Number of of the issued
Name of substantial shareholders Shares held Capacity Shares
HEERITRS
TERRER BFERGHA £ BAk
Ms. TANG Kuen Mui 204,312,948 Spouse’s interests 16.96
Wigkzt (Note 3) i B
(Hfi3)
Super Brilliance Company Limited 69,160,948 Beneficial owner 5.74
(“Super Brilliance”) (Notes 4 and 5) EnHEBAA
(HritaR2s)
Island Treasure Investments Limited 69,160,948 Interest of a controlled corporation 5.74
(“lsland Treasure”) (Notes 4 and 5) FHEE B
(HritaR2s)
Onwide (H.K.) Limited (“Onwide”) 69,160,948 Trustee 5.74
ZH(BEB)ERDA ([ZH]) (Notes 4 and 5) REA
(HritaR2s)
Mr. WONG Tak Leung, Charles 69,160,948 Interest of controlled corporations 5.74
(“Mr. WONG”) (Notes 4 and 5) FHEE B
TERAE([E%E]) (HitaRs5)
Notes: Mt -

1.

Yieldfull is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Jinhui. Jinhui is a wholly-owned subsidiary of
Chinatex and Chinatex is a wholly-owned subsidiary of COFCO. Therefore, each of Jinhui,
Chinatex and COFCO is deemed to be interested in the Shares held by Yieldfull.

As at 31 December 2017, Chinatex (H.K.) Holding Limited held 24,458,000 Shares as
beneficial owner. Chinatex (H.K.) Holding Limited is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Chinatex
and Chinatex is a wholly-owned subsidiary of COFCO. Therefore, each of Chinatex and
COFCO is deemed to be interested in the Shares held by Chinatex (H.K.) Holding Limited.

Ms. TANG Kuen Mui, spouse of Mr. HA, is deemed to be interested in the Shares held by
Mr. HA.

Super Brilliance is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Island Treasure. Island Treasure is a
wholly-owned subsidiary of Onwide and Onwide is owned as to 100% by Mr. WONG.
Therefore, each of Island Treasure, Onwide and Mr. WONG is deemed to be interested in
the Shares held by Super Brilliance.

Onwide is the trustee of the HA Trust, a discretionary trust set up by Mr. HA for the benefit
of his family.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2017, the Directors were not
aware of any persons (other than a Director or the chief executive of the
Company) who/entities which had any interest and short position in the
Shares and underlying Shares, which were required to be recorded in the
Substantial Shareholders’ Register.
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ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the Year was the Company,
or its holding companies, or any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries a
party to any arrangements to enable the Directors to acquire benefits by
means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or
any other body corporate and no such arrangements subsisted as at 31
December 2017.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Articles, every Director shall be entitled to be indemnified
out of the assets of the Company against all losses or liabilities which he
may sustain or incur in or about the execution of the duties of his office.

The Company has arranged appropriate directors and officers liability
insurance in respect of relevant legal actions against the Directors.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Connected Transactions” in
this Directors’ Report below and note 42 to the consolidated financial
statements, no transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance
in relation to the Group’s business, to which the Company, or its holding
companies, or any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party and
in which a Director or an entity connected with a Director had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted as at 31 December 2017
or at any time during the Year.

DIRECTORS OF SUBSIDIARIES

The names of all directors who have served on the boards of the
subsidiaries of the Company during the Year or during the period from
1 January 2018 to the date of this Directors’ Report are available on the
Company’s website at www.fshl.com.

CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS’
CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in note 42 to the consolidated financial statements,
there was no contract of significance (whether for the provision of services
to the Group or not) in relation to the Group’s business to which the
Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which any controlling
shareholder (as defined in the Listing Rules) of the Company or any of its
subsidiaries had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted
at the end of the Year or at any time during the Year.

INTERESTS IN
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The Company’s independent auditor was engaged to report on the
Group’s continuing connected transactions (as defined in the Listing
Rules) (the “Continuing Connected Transactions”) in accordance with
the Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised)
“Assurance Engagements other than Audits or Reviews of Historical
Financial Information” and by reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s
Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing
Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
The independent auditor has issued a letter containing its findings
and conclusions in respect of the Continuing Connected Transactions
disclosed by the Group in note 42 to the consolidated financial statements
in accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A copy of the
independent auditor’s letter has been provided by the Company to the
Stock Exchange. The information in relation to the Continuing Connected
Transactions entered into during the Year is set out in note 42 to the
consolidated financial statements.

The Company’s independent auditor has confirmed that all of the
Continuing Connected Transactions (a) had been approved by the Board;
(b) were in accordance with the pricing policies of the Group, where
applicable; (c) had been entered into in accordance with the terms of the
agreements governing the transactions; and (d) had not exceeded the
respective cap amounts in respect of each of the Continuing Connected
Transactions.

The INEDs have also reviewed the Continuing Connected Transactions and
confirmed that the same had been entered into by the Group:

()  inthe ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

(i) on normal commercial terms or on terms no less favourable to the

Group than terms available to or from independent third parties; and

(i) in accordance with the terms of the agreements governing such
transactions that were fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
Shareholders as a whole.
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTION

None of the related party transactions disclosed in note 42 to the
consolidated financial statements constituted a one-off connected
transaction or continuing connected transaction under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules. The Company has complied with the disclosure requirements
for all the one-off connected transactions or continuing connected
transactions (as the case may be) in accordance with Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.

PURCHASE, SALE AND REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the Year, the Company had not redeemed its listed securities, nor
did the Company or any of its subsidiaries purchase or sell any of such
securities.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received from each of the INEDs an annual written
confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
The Company considered that all the INEDs meet the independence
guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and are independent in
accordance with the terms of the guidelines.

REMUNERATION POLICY

The remuneration policy of the employees (including key management) of
the Group was established by the management of the Group on the basis
of their merit, qualifications and competence. The remuneration committee
of the Board (the “Remuneration Committee”) will review and approve the
remuneration policy to be recommended to the Board for approval.

The remuneration of each of the Directors is reviewed and recommended
by the Remuneration Committee to the Board for approval, having
regard to the Company’s operating results, individual performance and
comparable market statistics. None of the Directors or executives, or any
of their respective associates (as defined in the Listing Rules), is involved in
dealing with his own remuneration.

The Company has adopted the 2002 Scheme and the 2011 Scheme as an
incentive to the Directors and eligible employees, details of which are set
out in the “SHARE OPTION SCHEMES” section above and note 32 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

During the Year, none of the Directors or their respective associates
(as defined in the Listing Rules) had any interest in any business which
competed or was likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the
business of the Group.

UPDATE ON THE DIRECTORS’ INFORMATION UNDER
RULE 13.51B(1) OF THE LISTING RULES

Pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules, change in the information
of the Directors since the date of the 2017 interim report of the Company
required to be disclosed in this annual report is as follows:

Mr. LAN Jiang was appointed as the general manager of Shenzhen Faun
Textiles Limited, a subsidiary of the Company, in January 2018.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts (except for the EDs’ service contracts) concerning the
management and administration of the whole or any substantial part of the
business of the Company were entered into or existed during the Year.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the Year, the aggregate revenue attributable to the Group’s five
largest customers was less than 30% of the total revenue for the Year.

During the Year, the aggregate purchases attributable to the Group’s five
largest suppliers accounted for 33.43% of the total purchases for the Year.
The amount of purchases from the Group’s largest supplier represented
approximately 15.09% of the Group’s total purchases.

None of the Directors nor any of their close associates (as defined in the
Listing Rules) nor any Shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the
Directors, owns more than 5% of the number of issued Shares) had any
beneficial interest in the Group’s five largest customers and/or five largest
suppliers during the Year.

DONATIONS

During the Year, the Group made charitable and other donations totaling
HK$470,000 (2016: HK$1,014,000).

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The principal corporate governance practices adopted by the Company
are set out in the Corporate Governance Report on pages 30 to 48 of this
annual report.
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EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENT

Save as the share options granted, no equity-linked agreements were
entered into by the Company during the Year or subsisted at the end of the
Year.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

From the information publicly available to the Company and within the
knowledge of the Directors, the Company has maintained a sufficient
public float of not less than 25% of the issued Shares throughout the Year
and the period thereafter up to the date of this Directors’ Report.

AUDIT COMMITTEE’S REVIEW

The Company has established an audit committee of the Board (the “Audit
Committee”) for the purposes of reviewing and providing supervision
over the Company’s financial reporting process, internal controls and risk
management. The Audit Committee presently comprises one NED and two
INEDs, and one of the INEDs acts as the chairman of the Audit Committee.
The Audit Committee has reviewed the audited final results and the
systems of internal control and risk management of the Company for the
Year.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

The Board has taken the Audit Committee’s recommendation that a
resolution will be submitted to the forthcoming AGM for the Shareholders’
consideration and approval to re-appoint BDO Limited as the independent
auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

ZHAO Yao
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong
26 March 2018

EEEL(EE)AHRRT 2017FFH

DIRECTORS’ REPORT (continued)
EEERE (&)

IR R 5 8 105 R

BERERTIN RREFEERK  ARAH
RT3 A7 AE o) AR o 17 2

HRABREFERE

AR AIEBGZAHERBREILESM
M ARBRBEAFERAEEZEREAY
HE-—BEAFTIRERITHRMN2%Z TR

BRI E -

BEREEEEHN
ARAERVEZEERZBS ([EKZE
gl BEUARSRERARTD ZHW KB HRE
FFoREEERERER BEREESHH1E
FRTEZR2BBUSFATEFTHEN UAE
TIRBUFATEFRECERZRECIR -F
REREBECEHARAAFE 2 EERRAE
M RS PR I E -

B BN
ERGRERZERHBRBERTBFAS
EISIR 2 REREREE B RAE N ERES
TEREEHDEEFBRAAAEATBY
BT -

RREES

izh S
FIERITHARZ

B3
201843 H26H

67



68

Fountain Set (Holdings) Limited  Annual Report 2017

PARTICU
BREWMZE

_ﬂ#El_

(]

ARS OF INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Particulars of investment properties held by the Group at 31 December 2017 are as follows:

MR2017F12A31H  AREBIKEMEMNFBLOT

The Group’s
Location Lease Use effective interest
i 2 HEFH A% rEBENER
Unit A2 on 5/F., & unit A1 on 7/F., Medium-term leases Warehouse and office 100%
Eastern Sea Industrial Building, FRERFEE EERRAE
29-39 Kwai Cheong Road, Kwai Chung,
New Territories, Hong Kong
BRI REBE S K29-395
REIXKE
SEA2E RTEATE
Office Units A3801, 03, 05, 06, 08-10 and Medium-term land Office 100%
12, Block A, United Plaza, Futian District, use rights RN
Shenzhen, the PRC HHA -t fE AR
Hr BRI T AR A IR DA B R R X RE R
e EHAMRIEE
A3801, 03, 05, 06, 08E10F112
Factory Nos. 5, 9 and 11 Medium-term land Factory and office 55.5%
No 66-68, Danxia Road, use rights BEERAE
Xiangshan Industry Zone, rh 8 £ i 5 R A
Ningbo, Zhejiang Province, the PRC
BT A B R TR L& T ¥ EE ) & #66-685%
B A5, QR 1155 R =
3/F and 5/F of Dormitory Block No. 3 Medium-term land Dormitory 55.5%
No 66-68, Danxia Road, use rights BE
Xiangshan Industry Zone, ER 5P R A
Ningbo, Zhejiang Province, the PRC
RETT A SR RILE T ¥ E R E¥K66-685
BEABEE=-"RE=MELRE
A pier located at west port dike of Baiqu Port, Medium-term land Pier 100%
near No. 9 Xiaoshun Road, High-tech Zone, use rights 558
Jiangyin, Jiangsu Province, the PRC o ER P R A
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S

Tel : +852 2218 8288
Fax: +852 2815 2239
www.bdo.com.hk

IBDO

ZE:E ¢ +852 2218 8288
{5H : +852 2815 2239
www.bdo.com.hk

TO THE MEMBERS OF FOUNTAIN SET (HOLDINGS) LIMITED
(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Fountain Set
(Holdings) Limited (“the Company”) and its subsidiaries (together “the
Group”) set out on pages 75 to 172, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2017, and the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2017, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSASs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the “Auditor's Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements” section of our report. We
are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s “Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants” (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)
Key audit matter

Impairment of inventories

Refer to note 20 to the consolidated financial statements

A degree of substandard products are typically produced during the normal
course of the Group’s production process. Moreover, inventories of the
Group will become aged and/or obsolete in the absence or cancellation
of orders. The Group maintains a sophisticated information technology
system to keep track of the aging and utilisation of inventories and
materials regarded as wastage for the estimation of net realisable value.

Based on the utilisation of inventories which became wastage and long-
aged, the Group made an accumulated provision of HK$195,251,000 as at
year end by reference to estimated net realisable value of inventories.

We identified the impairment of inventories as a key audit matter because
the estimates of net realisable value and how materials are regarded
as wastage on which this impairment entailed a significant degree of
management judgement.

Our response:

We performed audit procedures in relation to management’s impairment
assessment of inventories which included:

— evaluating the methodology and key assumptions adopted by
management in estimating the net realisable value and discussing
them with management;

— challenging the reasonableness of key assumptions based on our
knowledge of the business and industry;

— checking, on a sample basis, the accuracy and relevance of the input
data used by management in capturing the aging and utilisation of
inventories and estimate the net realisable value of those inventories;
and

—  testing controls over recording impairment of inventories.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (continued)

OTHER INFORMATION IN THE ANNUAL REPORT

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Company’s annual
report, but does not include the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the
other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion
thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information. We are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free
from material misstatements, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The directors are also responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process. The Audit Committee assists the directors in
discharging their responsibilities in this regard.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (continued)
BYRBERE (F)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. This report is made solely to you, as
a body, in accordance with Section 405 of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

° identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

e evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made
by the directors.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (continued)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(continued)

conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit.

We also provide those the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and
to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (continued)
BYZRBERE (F)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(continued)

From the matters communicated with the directors, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’'s report unless law
or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing
so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits
of such communication.

BDO Limited

Certified Public Accountants

Chow Tak Sing, Peter

Practising Certificate Number P04659

Hong Kong, 26 March 2018
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
REEakEMEEKER

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017 # £2017F12A31H It F &

2017

Notes ftiF HK$’000 F & T

2016

HK$'000 T &

Revenue BER 6 6,913,785 6,328,714
Cost of sales 85 E AR (6,162,290) (5,558,590)
Gross profit E X 751,495 775,124
Other revenue HAtb Y A 44,892 48,338
Other gains and losses HEaplhzm R 22,250 (48,452)
Distribution and selling expenses DiEKIHEE A (172,868) (163,756)
Administrative expenses THRER (412,891) (424,275)
Finance costs & AR 7 (22,533) (19,506)
Share of profit of an associate FE(R— R E Qa2 BF 17 1,905 595
Profit before income tax expense BRATBHEXHAIRR 212,250 168,068
Income tax expense FriS i & i 8 (36,304) (18,076)
Profit for the year EFEEAF 9 175,946 149,992

Profit for the year attributable to: EHEFERF:
Owners of the Company FiN/NEIE RSN 156,846 127,903
Non-controlling interests JEVERR = 19,100 22,089
175,946 149,992
HK cents &1l HK cents &l

Earnings per share BREF

— Basic TN 12 13.0 10.6
— Diluted —#E 12 13.0 10.6

20178 TH



76

Fountain Set (Holdings) Limited  Annual Report 2017

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

REBAEREMEERER

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017 # £2017412A31H 1L F &

2017
Note i  HK$°000 F & T

2016
HK$'000 T &

Profit for the year =EEREF 9 175,946 149,992
Other comprehensive income, Hib2m s (KBHBRHE)
net of tax
Items that may be reclassified HETEEF 2 EEBEREZ
subsequently to profit or loss: HA:
Net gain arising on revaluation of FREGRTHEESREE
available-for-sale financial assets EEZWEFE
during the year 272 1,410
Exchange differences arising on BREBINEBREEZ
translation of foreign operations EH =% 16,434 (16,051)
Release upon disposal of available- EEAHHESMEER
for-sale financial assets & (901) (3,012)
Reclassification adjustment Ei R NG )
of translation reserve upon HEZ2ENDBERAE
deregistration of a subsidiary 1,127 -
Other comprehensive income/ REEHMEZEWE (FAX)
(expense) for the year 16,932 (17,653)
Total comprehensive income EFEXHKBEE
for the year 192,878 132,339
Total comprehensive income EHtREEzEHKRSHEE:
for the year attributable to:
Owners of the Company KARER A 168,075 116,000
Non-controlling interests EI2lii gy 24,803 16,339
192,878 132,339




EBEEE(RE)ARSE

2017 FE#H  TT

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
mE BRI R

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2017 72017412 H31H

At 31 December

At 31 December

MW12A31H 12 A31H
2017 2016
Notes M1t HK$'000 F %7 HK$ 000 57T
Non-current assets ERBEE

Investment properties REME 13 60,775 67,410
Property, plant and equipment Mm% HEREE 14 1,509,246 1,463,317
Prepaid lease payments - non-current portion A EFE - B H 15 96,715 99,115
Other intangible assets HinEWEE 16 18,346 21,617
Interest in an associate R—faBEAE 2R 17 18,805 16,900
Investment in life insurance policies ASRBREZEE 19 - 20,050
Deferred tax assets ERHEAE 18 42,877 49,909
1,746,764 1,738,318

Current assets RBEE
Inventories BB 20 1,450,187 1,401,911
Trade and bills receivables EEREREWRRIE 21 1,261,584 1,209,330
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables BRME  Fe REMWERGE 22 261,728 136,420
Prepaid lease payments — current portion BNEEFE-RBHBH 15 2,604 2,600
Tax recoverable EEGEEE 3,500 4,479
Restricted bank deposits ZRHFITER 23 13,003 10,406
Short-term bank deposits RUETER 24 206,405 177,660
Bank balances and cash RITEBR RS 24 643,196 690,491
3,842,207 3,633,297

Current liabilities hBaE
Trade and bills payables EELERRNFE 25 817,067 752,140
Other payables and accruals HiERNRBERENER 26 307,442 322,845
Amounts due to non-controlling shareholders R R R IR 27 80,100 80,100
Amount due to an associate R—FB & N R FA 27 5,286 5,499
Deferred income - current portion ETRA-RBLD 28 1,622 1,592
Tax payable JER IR 18,984 20,912
Bank borrowings - due within one year BIEE-—FREIE 29 515,606 488,191
1,746,107 1,671,279
Net current assets RBEEFHE 2,096,100 1,962,018
Total assets less current liabilities EELERRBEE 3,842,864 3,700,336
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

mE BRI R

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2017 2017412 A31H

At 31 December

At 31 December

R12A318 W12H31R
2017 2016
Notes M1t HK$'000 F % 70 HK$'000 F¥ 7
Non-current liabilities kRBaE
Deferred income — non-current portion BERRA-FEREID 28 58,989 60,370
Bank borrowings - due after one year BITEE-—FR3H 29 219,623 179,453
Deferred tax liabilities BEHRBEERE 18 7,876 6,368
286,488 246,691
Net assets BEERE 3,556,376 3,453,645
Capital and reserves EXRfRE
Share capital i 80 865,716 865,716
Other reserves Hit % 2,536,545 2,432,336
Equity attributable to owners of the Company AREHBEANELER 3,402,261 3,298,052
Non-controlling interests I s 31 154,115 155,593
Total equity EEdaE 3,556,376 3,453,645

FISE1T2AMEREIIFMEZE N 2018F3A26

The consolidated financial statements on pages 75 to 172 were approved
and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 26 March 2018 and
are signed on its behalf by:

ZHAO Yao
ik 3
Director

EF

FREFSRELRZERN Y TIEER
REE

LAN Jiang
BT
Director

EF
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

REERBBX

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017 # £2017F12A31H It F &

Attributable to owners of the Company

ARREEAEE
Investment Share Non-
Share  revaluation  Translation options Statutory Retained controlling Total
capital reserve reserve reserve reserves earnings Total interests equity
RE REEHRFEE EiRE BRERE EERE RERR AR FERER EREE

HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK8'000
TET THET TET TET

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK8 000
THT TET TET THT TET

(note)
(M)

At 1 January 2016 R2016%E1A1H 865,716 2,231 (41,430) 7,459 97,414 2,299,155 3,230,545 164,211 3,394,756
Exchange differences arising on fﬁ}ﬁ\‘iﬁﬁ k2

translation of foreign operations - - (10,301) - - - (10,301) (5,750) (16,061)
Net gain arising on revaluation of ¢W§ E—Mﬁfd’iﬁzﬂﬁi

available-for-sale financial assets EZWEF

during the year - 1,410 - - - - 1,410 - 1,410
Release upon disposal of available- & E ] )&

for-sale financial assets SREEREL - (3,012 - - - - (8,012 - (3,012
Profit for the year =EERF - - - - - 127,908 127,903 22,089 149,992
Total comprehensive (expense)/)  REE2E (HX)/

income for the year YA - (1,602) (10,301) - - 127,908 116,000 16,339 132,339
Equity-settled share-based NEREERD AER 2

payments reverse 5] 'y\ﬁé@ - - - (292) - - (292) - (292)
Dividend recognised as distribution Eﬁgw PkZRE - - - - (48,201) (48,201) - (48,201)
Transfer from retained earnings to Tﬁfﬁﬁﬂﬂﬁﬁ%:@iiﬁﬁ &

statutory reserves - - - - 2,263 (2,263) - - -
Transfer from share options B E%Hx ERERRE

reserve to retained eamings T i - - - (6,352) - 6,352 - - -
Dividends paid to non-controlling ﬁﬁ SFHERRE

shareholders - - - - - - - (24,957 (24,957)
At 31 December 2016 20164612 A31R 865,716 629 (61,731) 815 99,677 2,382,946 3,298,062 156,593 3,458,645

Exchange differences arisingon 45§ 9\‘;@5‘%% k2

translation of foreign operations HER - - 10,731 - - - 10,731 5,703 16,434
Reclassification adjustment of FHE-HREARRER

translation reserve upon REZENHERE

deregistration of a subsidiary - - 1,127 - - - 1,127 - 1,127
Net gain arising on revaluation of ~ FREFAENECREE

available-for-sale financial assets &4 Z W& %

during the year - 272 - - - - 272 - 272
Release upon disposal of available- 5 & ] &

for-sale financial assets SREAEREL - (901) - - - - (901) - (901)
Profit for the year _EERT - - - - - 156,846 156,846 19,100 175,946
Total comprehensive (expense)/) ~ =EE2E (%) /

income for the year lisie - (629) 11,858 - - 156,846 168,075 24,803 192,878
Dividend recognised as distribution B #:2 - - - - - (63,866) (63,866) - (63,866)
Transfer from statutory reserves Eiﬁ EF

to retained earnings upon /im}ﬁ %?F]

deregistration of PRC subsidiaries %77 &7 - - - - (22,581) 22,581 - - -
Transfer from retained eamnings to ~ RETFAMBRZ AT HE

statutory reserves - - - - 5,494 (5,494) - - -
Transfer from share options reserve  H R EAEE

to retained earnings BRER - - - (815) - 815 - - -
Dividends paid to non-controling ~ EffI 8 F I:ERBE

shareholders - - - - - - - (25,447) (25,447)
Appropriation to non-controling ¥~ BARE SR T

shareholder upon deregistration ~ FE¥ZR I E

of a subsidiary - - - - - - - (834) (834)
At 31 December 2017 R2017E12 8318 865,716 - (39,873) - 82,590 2,493,828 3,402,261 154,115 3,556,376

Note: The statutory reserves represent the appropriation of certain percentages of profit
after taxation of certain subsidiaries in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) a
recommended by the directors of those subsidiaries as reported under the PRC statutory
financial statements. According to the provision of the articles of association of the
subsidiaries, the statutory reserves shall only be used for making up losses, capitalisation
into share capital, expansion of the relevant subsidiary’s operation and for the welfare of
the subsidiary’s staff and workers.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

GRERTMER

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017 # £2017%12A31R - FE

2017 2016
HK$'000 1 HK$'000 +/& 1
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES #EBEfENEERE
Profit before income tax expense BRETER S HAI &R 212,250 168,068
Adjustments for: RHE:
Government grants IR 4e3 B (3,493) (3,805)
Amortisation of deferred income BRI AR (1,607) (1,507)
Depreciation of investment properties BEMEITE 3,780 3,896
Depreciation of property, ME - WEREEITE
plant and equipment 181,497 174,756
Amortisation of other intangible assets HinE\PEE 2 8 3,271 3,271
Equity-settled share-based NESHEEURG A
payments reverse B AR - (292)
Finance costs RMERA 22,533 19,506
Interest income FIEMA (4,557) (4,587)
Loss on disposal/written-off of property, plant HE/FHENE BER
and equipment RECER 18,731 13,283
Share of profit of an associate i — Mg R F 2 & (1,905) (595)
Gain on disposal of available-for-sale REAHEESHEE  WE
financial assets (901) (751)
Impairment loss (reversed)/recognised on trade ~ 2 ¥R ZEERFEZ
and bills receivables, net RERX (BE),/ BREE (19,849) 21,401
Impairment loss reversed on other receivables — Eft BN HTE 2 B{E B K E R (89) (483)
Release of prepaid lease payments BRNEETIESEN 2,602 2,601
Loss on deregistration of a subsidiary AHE-ENEAREE 1,127 -
Operating profit before working EEESEB A CEERA
capital changes 413,390 394,762
(Increase)/decrease in inventories ‘rEZ M),/ R (43,975) 3,369
(Increase)/decrease in trade and BEREBEKTE (3BmM) /"B
bills receivables (9,045) 62,184
Increase in prepayments, deposits and BRFE e REMREYGIE 220
other receivables (125,002) (21,844)
Increase/(decrease) in trade and SERFRENTEZEM/ (FD)
bills payables 36,749 (74,505)
Decrease in other payables and accruals HENFEREFER 2R (15,461) (20,657)
Decrease in amount due to an associate R—EBEARRIE R (213) (1,581)
Cash generated from operations EEMEzEE 256,443 341,728
Hong Kong profits tax paid BAEBFEH (532) (5,947)
Overseas tax paid BN (28,747) (28,766)
NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES ~ #EBEfENESFE 227,164 307,015
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

RERTRER

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017 # £2017412A31H IFF &

2017 2016
Notes K1 i+ HK$°000 F% ¢ HK$'000 T
NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES #EZEERfENHEEE 227,164 307,015
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES REBEEEFENRERE
Interest received BUF S 4,523 4,487
Proceeds from disposal of property, MENE BERRERSHE
plant and equipment 1,247 2,433
Proceeds from disposal of RERHREECREEMBRE
available-for-sale financial assets 20,050 16,538
Purchase of property, BEME BERRE
plant and equipment 14 (231,326) (256,485)
Increase in restricted bank deposits ZRBIRTERIE M (2,597) (3,363)
Government grants received BB 46 B 3,749 5,056
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES ®REERFANEEZEE (204,354) (231,334)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES REEHFENRERE
Repayment of bank borrowings BERTEE 38 (1,534,107) (1,376,979)
Interest paid EAHE (21,402) (16,790)
Dividends paid to non-controlling shareholders BT 8 FIEE R R E (25,447) (24,957)
Dividends paid BATR S (63,866) (48,201)
New bank borrowings raised MESCROREE 38 1,600,618 1,389,965
Appropriation to a non-controlling shareholder ~ F#— M BRAAFIEF— %
upon deregistration of a subsidiary FERBR (834) -
NET CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES REEBEFANREFE (45,038) (76,962)
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH BeRERHSEENRD FE
EQUIVALENTS (22,228) (1,281)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT REFERRBNEERERARSER
BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 868,151 870,223
EFFECT OF EXCHANGE RATE CHANGES Ex2uHReRERALBEENSY
ON CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 3,678 (791)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE REFEALRNELRERRLER
END OF THE YEAR 849,601 868,151
ANALYSIS OF THE BALANCES OF CASH ReRERBRLERLERNAIN:
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS:
Short-term bank deposits RERTER 206,405 177,660
Bank balances and cash BOEBRRAS 643,196 690,491
849,601 868,151
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31 DECEMBER 2017 20174 12H31H

1. GENERAL

The Company is a public limited company incorporated in Hong Kong. Its
shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). The addresses of the registered office and the principal place
of business of the Company are disclosed in the Corporate Information to
the annual report.

The financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars (“HKS$”),
which is also the functional currency of the Company.

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The principal
activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 35.

The directors consider its immediate parent is Chinatex Yieldfull
Investments Co., Ltd. and ultimate parent is Chinatex Corporation Limited
(previously named as Chinatex Corporation and renamed as Chinatex
Corporation Limited with effect from 14 December 2017), a state-
owned enterprise under the direct supervision and administration of,
and is beneficially owned by, the State-owned Assets Supervision and
Administration Commission of the State Council of the PRC.

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

(a) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs - effective on 1
January 2017

Amendments to HKFRS 12,
Disclosure of Interests
in Other Entities

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle

Amendments to HKAS 7
Amendments to HKAS 12

Disclosure Initiative
Recognition of Deferred Tax
Assets for Unrealised Losses

The adoption of these amendments has no material impact on the Group’s
financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued)

(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are

not yet effective

The following new/revised HKFRSs, potentially relevant to the Group’s
financial statements, have been issued, but are not yet effective and have
not been early adopted by the Group. The Group’s current intention is to
apply these changes on the date they become effective.

HKFRS 9
HKFRS 15
HKFRS 16
HK(IFRIC) 22
HK(IFRIC) 23

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle
Amendments to HKFRS 2
Amendments to HKFRS 9
Amendments to HKFRS 15
Amendments to HKAS 28

Amendments to HKAS 40

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 28

Financial Instruments'

Revenue from Contracts with Customers!

Leases?

Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance
Consideration’

Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments?

Amendments to HKAS 28, Investments in
Associates and Joint Ventures'

Amendment to HKAS 23, Borrowing Costs?

Classification and Measurement of Share-based
Payment Transactions'
Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation?

Revenue from Contracts with Customers
(Clarifications to HKFRS 15)!

Long-term Interests in Associates and
Joint Ventures?

Transfers of Investment Property"

Sale or Contribution of Assets between
an Investor and its Associate or
Joint Venture®

1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019

3 The amendments were originally intended to be effective for periods beginning on or after
1 January 2016. The effective date has now been deferred/removed. Early application of
the amendments continues to be permitted.
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2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued)

(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are
not yet effective (continued)

HKFRS 9 - Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 introduces new requirements for the classification and
measurement of financial assets. Debt instruments that are held within
a business model whose objective is to hold assets in order to collect
contractual cash flows (the business model test) and that have contractual
terms that give rise to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal amount outstanding (the contractual cash
flow characteristics test) are generally measured at amortised cost. Debt
instruments that meet the contractual cash flow characteristics test are
measured at FVTOCI if the objective of the entity’s business model is both
to hold and collect the contractual cash flows and to sell the financial
assets. Entities may make an irrevocable election at initial recognition to
measure equity instruments that are not held for trading at FVTOCI. All
other debt and equity instruments are measured at FVTPL.

HKFRS 9 includes a new expected loss impairment model for all financial
assets not measured at FVTPL replacing the incurred loss model in HKAS
39 and new general hedge accounting requirements to allow entities to
better reflect their risk management activities in financial statements.

HKFRS 9 carries forward the recognition, classification and measurement
requirements for financial liabilities from HKAS 39, except for financial
liabilities designated at FVTPL, where the amount of change in fair value
attributable to change in credit risk of the liability is recognised in other
comprehensive income unless that would create or enlarge an accounting
mismatch. In addition, HKFRS 9 retains the requirements in HKAS 39 for
derecognition of financial assets and financial liabilities.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued)

(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are
not yet effective (continued)

HKFRS 15 - Revenue from Contracts with Customers

The new standard establishes a single revenue recognition framework. The
core principle of the framework is that an entity should recognise revenue
to depict the transfer of promised goods or services to customers in an
amount that reflects the consideration to which the entity expects to be
entitled in exchange for those goods and services. HKFRS 15 supersedes
existing revenue recognition guidance including HKAS 18 Revenue, HKAS
11 Construction Contracts and related interpretations.

HKFRS 15 requires the application of a 5-step approach to revenue
recognition:

e Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer

e Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the contract

e Step 3: Determine the transaction price

e Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to each performance obligation
e Step 5: Recognise revenue when each performance obligation is

satisfied

HKFRS 15 includes specific guidance on particular revenue related topics
that may change the current approach taken under HKFRS. The standard
also significantly enhances the qualitative and quantitative disclosures
related to revenue.
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2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued)

(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are
not yet effective (continued)

HKFRS 16 - Leases

HKFRS 16, which upon the effective date will supersede HKAS 17
“Leases” and related interpretations, introduces a single lessee accounting
model and requires a lessee to recognise assets and liabilities for all leases
with a term of more than 12 months, unless the underlying asset is of low
value. Specifically, under HKFRS 16, a lessee is required to recognise a
right-of-use asset representing its right to use the underlying leased asset
and a lease liability representing its obligation to make lease payments.
Accordingly, a lessee should recognise depreciation of the right-of use
asset and interest on the lease liability, and also classifies cash repayments
of the lease liability into a principal portion and an interest portion and
presents them in the statement of cash flows. Also, the right-of-use asset
and the lease liability are initially measured on a present value basis. The
measurement includes non-cancellable lease payments and also includes
payments to be made in optional periods if the lessee is reasonably certain
to exercise an option to extend the lease, or to exercise an option to
terminate the lease. This accounting treatment is significantly different from
the lessee accounting for leases that are classified as operating leases
under the predecessor standard, HKAS 17.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued)

(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are
not yet effective (continued)

HKFRS 16 - Leases (continued)

In respect of the lessor accounting, HKFRS 16 substantially carries forward
the lessor accounting requirements in HKAS 17. Accordingly, a lessor
continues to classify its leases as operating leases or finance leases, and
to account for those two types of leases differently.

As at 31 December 2017, the Group’s total future minimum lease
payments under non-cancellable operating lease of HK$323,743,000
as disclosed in note 40. A preliminary assessment indicates that these
arrangements will meet the definition of a lease under HKFRS 16, and
hence the Group will recognise a right-of-use asset and a corresponding
lease liability in respect of all the leases unless they qualify for low value
or short-term leases upon the application of HKFRS 16. In addition, the
application of new requirement may result changes in measurement,
presentation and disclosure as indicated above.

HK(IFRIC) Int 22 - Foreign Currency Transactions and
Advance Consideration

The Interpretation provides guidance on determining the date of the
transaction for determining an exchange rate to use for transactions that
involve advance consideration paid or received in a foreign currency and
the recognition of a non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability. The
Interpretations specifies that the date of the transaction for the purpose of
determining the exchange rate to use on initial recognition of the related
asset, expense or income (or part thereof) is the date on which the entity
initially recognises the non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability arising
from the payment or receipt of advance consideration.
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31 DECEMBER 2017 20174 12H31H

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued)

(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are
not yet effective (continued)

HK(IFRIC) Int 23 - Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments

The Interpretation supports the requirements of HKAS 12, Income Taxes,
by providing guidance over how to reflect the effects of uncertainty in
accounting for income taxes.

Under the Interpretation, the entity shall determine whether to consider
each uncertain tax treatment separately or together based on which
approach better predicts the resolution of the uncertainty. The entity shall
also assume the tax authority will examine amounts that it has a right to
examine and have full knowledge of all related information when making
those examinations. If the entity determines it is probable that the tax
authority will accept an uncertain tax treatment, then the entity should
measure current and deferred tax in line with its tax filings. If the entity
determines it is not probable, then the uncertainty in the determination
of tax is reflected using either the “most likely amount” or the “expected
value” approach, whichever better predicts the resolution of the
uncertainty.

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle -
Amendments to HKAS 28, Investments in Associates and
Joint Ventures

The amendments issued under the annual improvements process make
small, non-urgent changes to standards where they are currently unclear.
They include amendments to HKAS 28, Investments in Associates and
Joint Ventures, clarifying that a Venture Capital organisation’s permissible
election to measure its associates or joint ventures at fair value is made
separately for each associate or joint venture.

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle -
Amendments to HKAS 23, Borrowing Costs

The amendments clarify that if a specific borrowing remains outstanding
after the related qualifying asset is ready for its intended use or sale, it
becomes part of the funds and entity borrows generally.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued)

(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are
not yet effective (continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 2 - Classification and Measurement
of Share-based Payment Transactions

The amendments provide requirements on the accounting for the effects
of vesting and non-vesting conditions on the measurement of cash-
settled share-based payments; share-based payment transactions with a
net settlement feature for withholding tax obligations; and a modification
to the terms and conditions of a share-based payment that changes the
classification of the transaction from cash-settled to equity-settled.

Amendments to HKFRS 9 - Prepayment Features with
Negative Compensation

The amendments clarify that prepayable financial assets with negative
compensation can be measured at amortised cost or at fair value through
other comprehensive income if specified conditions are met — instead of at
fair value through profit or loss.

Amendments to HKFRS 15 - Revenue from Contracts with
Customers (Clarifications to HKFRS 15)

The amendments to HKFRS 15 included clarifications on identification of
performance obligations; application of principal versus agent; licenses of
intellectual property; and transition requirements.

Amendments to HKAS 40 - Transfers of Investment Property

The amendments clarify that to transfer to or from investment properties
there must be a change in use and provides guidance on making this
determination. The clarification states that a change of use will occur when
a property meets, or ceases to meet, the definition of investment property
and there is supporting evidence that a change has occurred.

The amendments also re-characterise the list of evidence in the standard
as a non-exhaustive list, thereby allowing for other forms of evidence to
support a transfer.
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2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued)

(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are
not yet effective (continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 - Sale or
Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate
or Joint Venture

The amendments clarify the extent of gains or losses to be recognised
when an entity sells or contributes assets to its associate or joint venture.
When the transaction involves a business the gain or loss is recognised in
full, conversely when the transaction involves assets that do not constitute
a business the gain or loss is recognised only to the extent of the unrelated
investors’ interests in the joint venture or associate.

The Group has already commenced an assessment of the impact of
adopting the above standards and amendments to existing standards to
the Group. Except as HKFRS 16 described above, the directors of the
Company anticipate that the application of other new and amendments to
HKFRSs and an interpretation will have no material impact on the Group’s
financial performance and positions and/or the disclosures to the financial
statements of the Group.

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION
(a) Statement of compliance

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with all
applicable HKFRSs, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and
Interpretations (hereinafter collectively referred to as the “HKFRSs”) and
the provisions of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. In addition, the
financial statements include applicable disclosures required by the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange (‘the Listing
Rules”).

(b) Basis of measurement

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost
basis except for certain financial instruments that are measured at fair
values.

(c) Functional and presentation currency

The financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars (“HKS$”),
which is the same as the functional currency of the Company.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(a) Business combination and basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements
of the Company and its subsidiaries (“the Group”). Inter-company
transactions and balances between group companies together with
unrealised profits are eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated
financial statements. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of impairment on the asset transferred, in
which case the loss is recognised in profit or loss.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the year
are included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income from the dates of acquisition or up to the dates of
disposal, as appropriate. Where necessary, adjustments are made to the
financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into
line with those used by other members of the Group.

Acquisition of subsidiaries or businesses is accounted for using the
acquisition method. The cost of an acquisition is measured at the
aggregate of the acquisition-date fair value of assets transferred, liabilities
incurred and equity interests issued by the Group, as the acquirer. The
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed are principally measured
at acquisition-date fair value. The Group’s previously held equity interest in
the acquiree is re-measured at acquisition-date fair value and the resulting
gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss. The Group may elect, on a
transaction-by-transaction basis, to measure the non-controlling interests
that represent present ownership interests in the subsidiary either at
fair value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net
assets. All other non-controlling interests are measured at fair value unless
another measurement basis is required by HKFRSs. Acquisition-related
costs incurred are expensed unless they are incurred in issuing equity
instruments in which case the costs are deducted from equity.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer is
recognised at acquisition-date fair value. Subsequent adjustments to
consideration are recognised against goodwill only to the extent that they
arise from new information obtained within the measurement period (a
maximum of 12 months from the acquisition date) about the fair value
at the acquisition date. All other subsequent adjustments to contingent
consideration classified as an asset or a liability are recognised in profit or
loss.
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REVBHERMEE (&)

31 DECEMBER 2017 20174 12H31H

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(a) Business combination and basis of consolidation
(continued)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the profit or loss on disposal
is calculated as the difference between (i) the aggregate of the fair value
of the consideration received and the fair value of any retained interest
and (ii) the previous carrying amount of the assets (including goodwill),
and liabilities of the subsidiary and any non-controlling interest. Amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income in relation to the
subsidiary are accounted for in the same manner as would be required if
the relevant assets or liabilities were disposed of.

Subsequent to acquisition, the carrying amount of non-controlling interests
that represent present ownership interests in the subsidiary is the amount
of those interests at initial recognition plus such non-controlling interest’s
share of subsequent changes in equity. Total comprehensive income is
attributed to such non-controlling interests even if this results in those non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance.

(b) Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an investee over which the Company is able to exercise
control. The Company controls an investee if all three of the following
elements are present: power over the investee, exposure, or rights,
to variable returns from the investee, and the ability to use its power
to affect those variable returns. Control is reassessed whenever facts
and circumstances indicate that there may be a change in any of these
elements of control.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, investments in
subsidiaries are stated at cost less impairment loss, if any. The results of
subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividend
received and receivable.
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EEEL(EE)AHRRT 2017FFH

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(c) Associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant influence and
that is neither a subsidiary nor a joint arrangement. Significant influence is
the power to participate in the financial and operating policy decisions of
the investee but not control or joint control over those policies.

Associates are accounted for using the equity method whereby they
are initially recognised at cost and thereafter, their carrying amount are
adjusted for the Group’s share of the post-acquisition change in the
associates’ net assets except that losses in excess of the Group’s interest
in the associate are not recognised unless there is an obligation to make
good those losses.

Profits and losses arising on transactions between the Group and its
associates are recognised only to the extent of unrelated investors’
interests in the associate. The investor’s share in the associate’s profits
and losses resulting from these transactions is eliminated against the
carrying value of the associate. Where unrealised losses provide evidence
of impairment of the asset transferred they are recognised immediately in
profit or loss.

Any premium paid for an associate above the fair value of the Group’s
share of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities acquired
is capitalised and included in the carrying amount of the associate. Where
there is objective evidence that the investment in an associate has been
impaired, the carrying amount of the investment is tested for impairment in
the same way as other non-financial assets.

(d) Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held either to earn rentals or for
capital appreciation or for both, but not held for sale in the ordinary course
of business, use in the production or supply of goods or services or for
administrative purposes.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including any directly
attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment
properties are stated at cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation
and subsequent accumulated impairment losses, if any. Depreciation
is charged so as to write off the cost of investment properties net of
expected residual value over the estimated useful live using straight-
line method. The useful life, residual value and depreciation method are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

REUBHERME (&)

31 DECEMBER 2017 2017412 A31H

4, TESTTHE (HF)
(c) B&E QT

BERNREAKRBERYETEEAZE N M
VIMBRARKNALER I CER -EAXE
NIEASBWEBRE 2B REBRERZRE
BRREGRAERENZERRZES -

B R R A A AR IRIBE DA - REAA
AR ANHERR - B 1% HRREER B AN K EEWE
BoEBERREEFENEIETAE H
BRAEEAEREQARTNEENBEITE
MR BRIFAERBHEMERER AEAR-

AEEEEBENF AN HMEELNRR
TR BEERNEREREEEBRZR
AlzEm REERERZEFRIMELENE
R E AR Ba R E QA REEL - N
ARERBRIEHMEBREE ZREZFRE RIS
BN B RAER -

ET U R B & R R 2 AR TR B AN SR B B A6 FT IR
BOAdMEE AERIRABENAFER
WED & TLABERE At Al E QB NERE
BE-HEEBREBRATRBERAZRECK
BE ARENRAESNREMIFSREE

FARI ) 75 3 TR 3 -
(d) REWE

REVER/FIERDESHE L ERME F*
B MIREEEHBREPRIELE AL
EXRHEEmBRS NETRAZNME-

BREVENIARAS (BREMNEREERX)
AE-RVTHERR REVEUAXNNBER
RETERERAFBERE (0E) K- &
B 2 I B TR E A E A B F SR H
EHFBREER KEREMIBERAR A £
RER FREERFTET AN S RE HRE
TREEREE BN ML FE-

93



94

Fountain Set (Holdings) Limited  Annual Report 2017

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

REVBHERMEE (&)

31 DECEMBER 2017 20174 12H31H

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(e) Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including buildings held for use in the
production or supply of goods or services, or for administrative purposes
(other than construction in progress and freehold land) are stated at cost
less subsequent accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses, if any.

The cost of property, plant and equipment includes its purchase price and
the costs directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable
that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the
Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying
amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All other repairs and
maintenance are recognised as an expense in profit or loss during the
financial period in which they are incurred.

Property, plant and equipment (other than construction in progress and
freehold land) are depreciated so as to write off their cost or valuation net
of expected residual value over their estimated useful lives on a straight-
line basis. The useful lives, residual value and depreciation method are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.
The useful lives are as follows:

Freehold land Nil
Leasehold land and buildings Shorter of 20 - 50 years or
period of the lease term

Furniture, fixtures and equipment 3 - 10 years
Plant and machinery 5—-10 years
Motor vehicles 3'/s — 5 years
Construction in progress Nil

Freehold land is carried at cost less any recognised impairment loss.
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EEEL(EE)AHRRT 2017FFH

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(e) Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Construction in progress is stated at cost less impairment losses.
Cost comprises direct costs of construction as well as borrowing
costs capitalised during the periods of construction and installation.
Capitalisation of these costs ceases and the construction in progress is
transferred to the appropriate class of property, plant and equipment when
substantially all the activities necessary to prepare the assets for their
intended use are completed. No depreciation is provided for in respect of
construction in progress until it is completed and ready for its intended
use.

An asset is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if its
carrying amount is higher than the asset’s estimated recoverable amount.

The gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is
the difference between the net sale proceeds and its carrying amount, and
is recognised in profit or loss on disposal.

(f) Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease
transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee.
All other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit or loss on a
straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Initial direct costs
incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the
carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.

The Group as lessee

The total rentals payable under the operating leases are recognised in
profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the lease term. Lease incentives
received are recognised as an integrated part of the total rental expense,
over the term of the lease.
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REVBHERMEE (&)

31 DECEMBER 2017 20174 12H31H

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(g) Leasehold land and building

When a lease includes both land and building elements, the Group
assesses the classification of each element as a finance or an operating
lease separately based on the assessment as to whether substantially
all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of each element have
been transferred to the Group. Specifically, the minimum lease payments
(including any lump-sum upfront payments) are allocated between the land
and the building elements in proportion to the relative fair values of the
leasehold interests in the land element and building element of the lease at
the inception of the lease.

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments can be made reliably,
interest in leasehold land that is accounted for as an operating lease is
presented as “prepaid lease payments” in the consolidated statement of
financial position and is amortised over the lease term on a straight-line
basis.

(h) Inventories

Inventories are initially recognised at cost, and subsequently at the lower of
cost and net realisable value. Cost comprises all costs of purchase, costs
of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their
present location and condition. Cost is calculated using the first-in first-out
method. Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less the estimated costs necessary to make
the sale.
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EEEL(EE)AHRRT 2017FFH

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(i) Intangible assets (other than goodwill)
(i) Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are initially recognised at cost.
Subsequently, intangible assets with finite useful lives are carried at cost
less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses.

Amortisation is provided on a straight-line basis over their useful lives as
follows. Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are carried at cost
less any accumulated impairment losses. The amortisation expense is
recognised in profit or loss and included in administrative expenses.

Software Shorter of 5 — 10 years or period of the contract term

(ii) Impairment

Intangible assets with finite lives are tested for impairment when there is an
indication that an asset may be impaired. Intangible assets with indefinite
useful lives and intangible assets not yet available for use are tested for
impairment annually, irrespective of whether there is any indication that
they may be impaired. Intangible assets are tested for impairment by
comparing their carrying amounts with their recoverable amounts (see note
4(n)).

If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be less than its
carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its
recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised as an expense
immediately.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of
the asset is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount;
however, the carrying amount should not be increased above the lower of
its recoverable amount and the carrying amount that would have resulted
had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. All
reversals are recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income immediately.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(j) Financial instruments
() Financial assets

The Group classifies its financial assets at initial recognition, depending on
the purpose for which the asset was acquired. Financial assets are initially
measured at fair value plus transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition of the financial assets. Regular way purchases or sales
of financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis.
A regular way purchase or sale is a purchase or sale of a financial asset
under a contract whose terms require delivery of the asset within the time
frame established generally by regulation or convention in the marketplace
concerned.

Loans and receivables

These assets are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active market. They arise principally
through the provision of goods and services to customers (trade
debtors), and also incorporate other types of contractual monetary asset.
Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables (including trade
and bills receivables, other receivables, amounts due from subsidiaries,
bank deposits and bank balances and cash) are carried at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less any identified impairment losses.

Available-for-sale financial assets

These assets are non-derivative financial assets that are designated as
available-for-sale or are not included in other categories of financial assets.
Subsequent to initial recognition, these assets (including investment in
life insurance policies) are carried at fair value with changes in fair value
recognised in other comprehensive income, except for impairment losses
and foreign exchange gains and losses on monetary instruments, which
are recognised in profit or loss.

For available-for-sale equity investments that do not have a quoted market
price in an active market and whose fair value cannot be reliably measured
and derivatives that are linked to and must be settled by delivery of such
unquoted equity instruments, they are measured at cost less any identified
impairment losses.
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EEEL(EE)AHRRT 2017FFH

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(1) Financial instruments (continued)
(ii) Impairment loss on financial assets

The Group assesses, at the end of each reporting period, whether there
is any objective evidence that financial asset is impaired. Financial asset is
impaired if there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or
more events that has occurred after the initial recognition of the asset and
that event has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial
asset that can be reliably estimated. Evidence of impairment may include:

e significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

e a breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in interest or
principal payments;

e granting concession to a debtor because of debtor’s financial
difficulty;

o it becoming probable that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or other
financial reorganisation.

For loans and receivables

For certain categories of financial asset, such as trade receivables,
assets that are assessed not to be impaired individually are subsequently
assessed for impairment on a collective basis. Objective evidence of
impairment for a portfolio of receivables could include the Group’s past
experience of collecting payments, an increase in the number of delayed
payments in the portfolio past the respective credit period and observable
changes in national or local economic conditions that correlate with default
on receivables.

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss when there is objective
evidence that the asset is impaired, and is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted at the original effective interest
rate.
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31 DECEMBER 2017 20174 12H31H

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
() Financial instruments (continued)
(ii) Impairment loss on financial assets (continued)

For loans and receivables (continued)

The carrying amount of the loans and receivables is reduced by the
impairment loss directly for all loans and receivables with the exception
of trade receivables, where the carrying amount is reduced through the
use of an allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount of the
allowance account are recognised in profit or loss. When a trade receivable
is considered uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance account.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited to
profit or loss.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss decreases and
the decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after the
impairment loss was recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss
is reversed through profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of
the asset at the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed what the
amortised cost would have been had the impairment not been recognised.

For available-for-sale financial assets

Where a decline in the fair value constitutes objective evidence of
impairment, the amount of the loss is removed from equity and recognised
in profit or loss.

Any impairment losses on available-for-sale debt investments are
subsequently reversed in profit or loss if an increase in the fair value of
the investments can be objectively related to an event occurring after the
recognition of impairment loss.

For available-for-sale equity investment, any increase in fair value
subsequent to an impairment loss is recognised in other comprehensive
income.

For available-for-sale equity investment that is carried at cost, the amount
of impairment loss is measured as the difference between the carrying
amount of the asset and the present value of estimated future cash flows
discounted at the current market rate of return for a similar financial asset.
Such impairment loss is not reversed.
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EEEL(EE)HRRT 2017FFEH

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(1) Financial instruments (continued)

(iii) Financial liabilities

The Group classifies its financial liabilities, depending on the purpose for

which the liabilities were incurred. Financial liabilities at amortised costs are
initially measured at fair value, net of directly attributable costs incurred.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost including trade and bills payables,
other payables, amounts due to subsidiaries/non-controlling shareholders/
an associate, bank borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised
cost, using the effective interest method. The related interest expense is
recognised in profit or loss.

Gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are
derecognised as well as through the amortisation process.

(iv) Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost
of a financial asset or financial liability and of allocating interest income
or interest expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments through
the expected life of the financial asset or financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period.

(v) Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at the proceeds
received, net of direct issue costs.

(vi) Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to
the future cash flows in relation to the financial asset expire or when the
financial asset has been transferred and the transfer meets the criteria for
derecognition in accordance with HKAS 39.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation specified in the
relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or expires.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

REVBHKRMEE (&)

31 DECEMBER 2017 20174 12H31H

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(k) Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and
cash equivalents comprise short-term bank deposits, bank balances
and cash are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and
have a short maturity of generally within one year when acquired, which
are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Group’s cash
management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statements of financial position, cash
and cash equivalents comprise short-term bank deposits, bank balances
and cash which are not restricted as to use.

() Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable assurance
that the Group will comply with the conditions attaching to them and that
the grants will be received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on a systematic basis
over the periods in which the Group recognises as expenses the related
costs for which the grants are intended to compensate. Government
grants related to depreciable assets are recognised as deferred income in
the consolidated statement of financial position and transferred to profit or
loss over the useful lives of the related assets.

(m) Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing or amount when
the Group has a legal or constructive obligation arising as a result of a past
event, which it is probable will result in an outflow of economic benefits
that can be reliably estimated.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation is
disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, the existence of which
will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or
more future events, are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(n) Impairment of assets (other than financial assets)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying amounts
of the following assets to determine whether there is any indication that
those assets have suffered an impairment loss or an impairment loss
previously recognised no longer exist or may have decreased:

o investment properties;

o property, plant and equipment;
o prepaid lease payments;

° other intangible assets; and

e interest in an associate;

If the recoverable amount (i.e. the greater of the fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use) of an asset is estimated to be less than
its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its
recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised as an expense
immediately.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of
the asset is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, to
the extent that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised as income immediately, unless the relevant asset is carried at a
revalued amount under another HKFRS, in which case the reversal of the
impairment loss is treated as a revaluation increase under that HKFRS.

Value in use is based on the estimated future cash flows expected to be
derived from the asset, discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset or cash generating unit.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

REVBHRMEE (&)

31 DECEMBER 2017 20174 12AH31H

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(o) Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or
receivable and represents amounts receivable for goods sold and services
provided in the normal course of business, net of returns, discounts and
sales related taxes.

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the goods are
delivered and title has passed, at which date the following conditions are
satisfied:

e the Group has transferred to the buyer the significant risks and
rewards of ownership of the goods;

e the Group retains neither continuing managerial involvement to the
degree usually associated with ownership nor effective control over
the goods sold;

e the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

e it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the
transaction will flow to the Group; and

e the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the transaction can
be measured reliably.

Rental income under operating lease is recognised on a straight-line basis
over the term of the relevant lease.

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is probable that
the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the amount of revenue
can be measured reliably.

(p) Capitalisation of borrowing costs

Borrowing costs attributable directly to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets which require a substantial period of time
to be ready for their intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the
cost of those assets. Income earned on temporary investments of specific
borrowings pending their expenditure on those assets is deducted from
borrowing costs capitalised. All other borrowing costs are recognised in
profit or loss in the period in which they are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(g) Income taxes

Income taxes for the year comprise current tax and deferred tax.

Current tax is based on the profit or loss from ordinary activities adjusted
for items that are non-assessable or disallowable for income tax purposes
and is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes
and the corresponding amounts used for tax purposes. Except for
goodwill and recognised assets and liabilities that affect neither accounting
nor taxable profits, deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable
temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which
deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Deferred tax is measured
at the tax rates appropriate to the expected manner in which the carrying
amount of the asset or liability is realised or settled and that have been
enacted or substantively enacted at the end of reporting period.

An exception to the general requirement on determining the appropriate
tax rate used in measuring deferred tax amount is when an investment
property is carried at fair value under HKAS 40 “Investment Property”.
Unless the presumption is rebutted, the deferred tax amounts on these
investment properties are measured using the tax rates that would apply
on sale of these investment properties at their carrying amounts at the
reporting date. The presumption is rebutted when the investment property
is depreciable and is held within a business model whose objective is to
consume substantially all the economic benefits embodied in the property
over time, rather than through sale.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences
arising on investments in subsidiaries, associates and jointly controlled
entities, except where the Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will
not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Income taxes are recognised in profit or loss except when they relate to
items recognised in other comprehensive income in which case the taxes
are also recognised in other comprehensive income or when they relate
to items recognised directly in equity in which case the taxes are also
recognised directly in equity.

REUBBERME (&)

31 DECEMBER 2017 2017412 A31H

4, TESHHE (8E)
(q) FAEH
EE AN RN EREERE-

REEHENREASEHZRFXERE #
BRSBTS BARB AN TN 2 EE
BORREMKCEGRER LD EMORE
o

BERERBEAARYEREBNZEERAR
MEREREARHEENZARSEZEHNE
RERMER REEARTTESTHER
HAENNERRBEERAGBN SRMERR
MERZEBRIAECHARE -BEERAEE
KA R LB AR AN Al M E 8
MIBERTHER -BEHRANZEREELRN
BEAEREENTARLRBRE LS RM
FEELORAMNBERRXRGTE-

R EECHESEFANETEARHEN
—BREMS  B—EHIINER  BIREYEE
REBEBBGFERNFW0R REVEIMEA
FEEIR -RIEZBRERER SRLFR
BEMENREERBECEENEELERENE
RATEMMREARZER TS HHNEEE
MitE -EREVMERARITELRE—@E
BERAMBA MZEGRANBNIHEE
SRR HE R M OB Z M X PR B K D &
M (MAREBHE) R ZBRENBHES -

MHBLAE BMEARARAREFHNERNRE
HENERRERZE@ WA RELERIAR
B HEEAKEAEHERERZNERRRA
RGET &K E R ZZBDAIRRIN -

FRB MR IBRRAER  RIFZFHIAER
HttzmPas sk BN EsNERERNERSR
B HEUBERT ZERATDAREME2E
o g B B R R RERR

105



106

Fountain Set (Holdings) Limited  Annual Report 2017

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

REVBHKRMEE (&)

31 DECEMBER 2017 20174 12H31H

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(r) Foreign currencies

Transactions entered into by group entities in currencies other than the
currency of the primary economic environment in which they operate
(the “functional currency”) are recorded at the rates ruling when the
transactions occur. Foreign currency monetary assets and liabilities are
translated at the rates ruling at the end of reporting period. Non-monetary
items carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date when the fair value was
determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items, and on
the translation of monetary items, are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they arise. Exchange differences arising on the retranslation
of non-monetary items carried at fair value are included in profit or loss
for the period except for differences arising on the retranslation of non-
monetary items in respect of which gains and losses are recognised in
other comprehensive income, in which case, the exchange differences are
also recognised in other comprehensive income.

On consolidation, income and expense items of foreign operations are
translated into the presentation currency of the Group (i.e. Hong Kong
dollars) at the average exchange rates for the year, unless exchange
rates fluctuate significantly during the period, in which case, the rates
approximating to those ruling when the transactions took place are
used. All assets and liabilities of foreign operations are translated at the
rate ruling at the end of reporting period. Exchange differences arising,
if any, are recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated
in equity as foreign exchange reserve (attributed to minority interests as
appropriate). Exchange differences recognised in profit or loss of group
entities’ separate financial statements on the translation of long-term
monetary items forming part of the Group’s net investment in the foreign
operation concerned are reclassified to other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity as foreign exchange reserve.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative exchange differences
recognised in the foreign exchange reserve relating to that operation up to
the date of disposal are reclassified to profit or loss as part of the profit or
loss on disposal.
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EEEL(EE)HRRT 2017FFEH

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(s) Employee benefits

(i) Short term employee benefits

Short term employee benefits are employee benefits (other than
termination benefits) that are expected to be settled wholly before twelve
months after the end of the annual reporting period in which the employees
render the related service. Short term employee benefits are recognised in
the year when the employees render the related service.

(ii) Defined contribution retirement plan

Contributions to defined contribution retirement plans are recognised as an
expense in profit or loss when the services are rendered by the employees.

(iii) Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised on the earlier of when the Group
can no longer withdraw the offer of those benefits and when the Group
recognises restructuring costs involving the payment of termination
benefits.

(t) Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

The fair value of services received determined by reference to the fair
value of share options granted at the grant date is expensed on a straight-
line basis over the vesting period, with a corresponding increase in equity
(share options reserve).

At the end of the reporting period, the Group revises its estimates of the
number of options that are expected to ultimately vest. The impact of the
revision of the estimates during the vesting period, if any, is recognised in
profit or loss, with a corresponding adjustment to share options reserve.

At the time when the share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in the share options reserve will be credited to share capital.
When the share options are forfeited after the vesting date or are still not
exercised at the expiry date, the amount previously recognised in the share
options reserve will be transferred to retained profits.
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31 DECEMBER 2017 20174 12AH31H

(i

(i)

(i)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(vili)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Related parties

A person or a close member of that person’s family is related to the
Group if that person:

has control or joint control over the Group;

has significant influence over the Group; or

is a member of key management personnel of the Group or the
Company’s parent.

An entity is related to the Group if any of the following conditions
apply:

The entity and the Group are members of the same group (which
means that each parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to
the others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or an
associate or joint venture of a member of a group of which the other
entity is a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other entity is an
associate of the third entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of the
employees of the Group or an entity related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person identified in (a).

A person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence over the entity or is
a member of key management personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity).

The entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part, provides
key management personnel services to the Group or the Group’s
parent.
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EEEL(EE)AHRRT 2017FFH

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(u) Related parties (continued)

Close members of the family of a person are those family members who
may be expected to influence, or be influenced by, that person in their
dealings with the entity and include:

()  that person’s children and spouse or domestic partner;
(i) children of that person’s spouse or domestic partner; and

(i) dependents of that person or that person’s spouse or domestic
partner.

5. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

The key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are
as follows:

Useful lives and residual values of items of property, plant
and equipment

In determining the useful lives and residual values of items of property,
plant and equipment, the Group has to consider various factors, such
as technical or commercial obsolescence arising from changes or
improvements in production, or from a change in the market demand for
the product or service output of the asset expected usage of the asset,
expected physical wear and tear, the care and maintenance of the asset,
and legal or similar limits on the use of the asset. The estimation of the
useful life of the asset is based on the experience of the Group with similar
assets that are used in a similar way. Additional depreciation is made if
the estimated useful lives and/or the residual values of items of property,
plant and equipment are difference from previous estimation. Useful lives
and residual values are reviewed at each financial year end date based on
changes in circumstances.
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REVBHKRMEE (&)

31 DECEMBER 2017 20174 12H31H

5. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(continued)

Estimated impairment of trade receivables

When there is objective evidence of impairment loss, the Group takes
into consideration the estimation of future cash flows. The amount of
the impairment loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows
(excluding future credit losses that have not been incurred) discounted at
the financial asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e. the effective interest
rate computed at initial recognition). Where the actual future cash flows are
different from expected, a material impairment or reversal may arise.

Allowance for inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value. The
Group regularly reviews its inventory levels in order to identify slow-moving
and obsolete merchandise. When the Group identifies items of inventories
which have a market price that is lower than its carrying amount, the
Group estimates the amount of write-down of inventories as allowance for
inventories. If the market price of inventories of the Group becomes lower
than its carrying amount subsequently, an additional allowance may be
required.

5. THREMMGFHEERR (&)

LREWFEN MGEHRE

ERAEBRBEERLARERL AEEEE
BHEFAARRERE - REBREBNREE
FHEARSREERLEERNE (BIV) £
REFENERENZ) BANMGRKBASR
B (TERERAEENAREEBE)RENE
BAE-ZERARRERERAEHMERE
REELBEARERRED-

FERE
FETERARATERFENREKEEE K
SEEHRATEFENRT  ABHRIEHENRE
AmoMAKREERFERENMEERER
HE AAKEGFFEMRANSERTER
- MARENFENEZREREREE"
Ak ZA(E R ME R -



6. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

EEEL(EE)HRRT 2017FFEH

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

The board of directors of the Company, i.e. the chief operating decision
maker, regularly reviews the operating results and financial information
based on distinct geographical areas of location of customers, including
Hong Kong (place of domicile of the Group), the People’s Republic of
China (the “PRC”), Taiwan, Korea, Sri Lanka, America, Europe and Others
(i.e. representing other geographical locations mainly Bangladesh, Vietnam,
Singapore and Macau). All of these geographical areas are operating
segments except “Others” which is an aggregation of operating segments.

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and profit from the
production and sales of dyed fabrics, yarns and garments and results by
reportable segment for the year.

REVBBERME (&)

31 DECEMBER 2017 2017412 A31H

6. EXERIEEHR

ARBEFR (X ELZERKRE)RERP
PR TR I B F B K2 RE N
MIEER BREE (AKEMEL)  FEA
REME ([FE]) 588 #BE HEHK X
M- BOM R E i (AR Mg £ 2
A E IR EE BN MORFT) o PR A R F i
BUEREENE MIEME]AFEEZ

EES

NTRASERRFEREMERFEERH
W RRKIE A Ry BB D 2 B KB RAN A
R EEPTEZ DT -

2017 20174
Segment
Hong Kong  The PRC Taiwan Korea  Sri Lanka America Europe Others total Eliminations Consolidated
B TE A BE HEEF EM B EtHE SEAE baf &8
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TET FET FET FET FET FET FET FET FET FET
Revenue 25HE
External sales HMEE 1,552,586 1,430,586 654,260 1,024,772 723,035 513,969 51,417 963,160 6,913,785 - 6,913,785
Inter-segment sales (notg) PEMEE (M) 4,772,958 2,682,576 - - 333,261 - - 146,873 7,935,668  (7,935,668) -
Total segment revenue PREEREE 6,325,544 4,113,162 654,260 1,024,772 1,056,296 513,969 51,417 1,110,033 14,849,453  (7,935,668) 6,913,785
Results EE
Segment profit APEEF 127,896 144,589 55,507 86,945 51,406 41,170 4,357 80,884 592,754
Interest income FEmA 4,557
Unallocated income RARHRA 23,051
Depreciation and amortisation FEREE (191,150)
Other unallocated EkpiEsi
expenses (196,334)
Finance costs BERK (22,533)
Share of profit of il AN
an associate &l 1,905
Profit before income tax expense [ 1S %: 3 31 & 7 212,250
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

REVBHRMEE (&)

31 DECEMBER 2017 20174 12AH31H

6. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

(continued)
2016 20164
Segment
Hong Kong The PRC Taiwan Korea  SriLanka America Europe Others total  Eliminations Consolidated
E% HE AiE HE  HET EM B EtuE  HBEE H# &a
HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$'000
FET FET FET Fér FET FET FET FET FET FET FET
Revenue BEE
External sales HIMEE 1,439,830 1,119,663 631,045 1,166,770 751,178 407,387 48,589 764,252 6,328,714 - 6,328,714
Inter-segment sales (70tg) PEMBE (Hit) 4414472 2,369,402 - - 362,057 28,732 - 152,250 7,326,913  (7,326,9193) -
Total segment revenue PEEEREE 5,854,302 3,489,065 631,045 1,166,770 1,113,235 436,119 48,589 916,502 13,655,627  (7,326,913) 6,328,714
Results B3
Segment profit PREF 133,033 108,964 54,950 101,603 73,728 38,005 4,248 69,442 583,973
Interest income FIEHA 4,587
Unallocated income RARRA 2,997
Depreciation and amortisation FEREH (184,524)
Other unallocated EfRAHRZ
expenses (220,054)
Finance costs BERK (19,506)
Share of profit of Er-BHEARZ
an associate R 595
Profit before income tax expense [ 5% 2 Al &2 7 168,068

Note: Inter-segment sales are charged at price by reference to the prevailing market rates.

The accounting policies of the reportable segments are the same as
the Group’s accounting policies described in note 4. Segment profit
represents the profit earned by each segment without allocation of central
administration costs and other expenses (including non-production related
employee benefits expenses, directors’ emoluments, bank charges, etc.),
depreciation and amortisation, interest income, loss on disposal/written-
off of property, plant and equipment, gain from disposal of available-for-
sale financial assets, finance costs, share of profit of an associate, loss
on deregistration of a subsidiary, etc. This is the measure reported to the
board of directors of the Company for the purposes of resource allocation
and performance assessment. No analysis on segment assets and
liabilities is disclosed as it is not presented to the board of directors of the
Company.

i D EMEEZERND2RERS 2 W SERMETE -

AERHmO B G IR AN E4pT il 2 A& HE
SETERAER - D BAE M IHE S BT REE
BF BB ARRITEAANREME R
(BREFELERBZRERERNFAS EFH
2 RTERSE) HEREHE FEKA U
E/EHEME BRERRBEE BEAH
HESREE 2 W BERAK  EI5—RHE
BRA BN FH-FAMNBARZERS-
WA ERIELRERFEMARNRAANESTS
EHRzEE-HOBREENABIRAIELD
FRE AZERRERARRAREZE27-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
REMBRRME (F)

31 DECEMBER 2017 2017412 A31H

6. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 6. EXHERSEER (&)
(continued)
Other segment information HthrBEER
Amounts included in the measure of segment profit: EEEAESEREMN & :
Hong Kong The PRC Taiwan Korea Sri Lanka America Europe Others  Consolidated
Eit hE aE B2E HEMF EM B Rt E 248

HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK8 000 HK8 000 HK$ 000 HK8 000 HK8 000 HK$ 000 HK8 000
TET THT TET TET THT TET TET THET TET

2017 20175
Impairment loss (reversed)/ EELEBER
recognised on trade and REZRBERE
bills receivables, net (BB)/BBIE (350) (13,513) 170 (822) (59) 30 = (5,305) (19,849)
2016 20164
Impairment loss (reversed)/ BERZEER
recognised on trade and REZRBERE
bills receivables, net (BE)/®AZE 292 15,822 (1,007) 1,355 (153) (22) (1) 5,115 21,401
Revenue from the Group’s products AEBERZEXE
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue from external A TAKRERZHAEEEEINPES L LR
customers by products: DT
2017 2016
HK$’000 F#E&7t HK$'000 F & T
Production and sales of dyed fabrics ENHEEEHRY
and yarns 5,998,860 5,461,209
Production and sales of garments 235 K §HE A K 914,925 867,505

6,913,785 6,328,714
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REVBHKRMEE (&)

31 DECEMBER 2017 20174 12H31H

6. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(continued)

Geographical information

The following is an analysis of geographical location of the Group’s non-
current assets (hote) at the end of the reporting period:

6. EXHERIBEHN (H)

b 35 &

R|BERR ANEBZERBDEE (HiF) i

BfIEZomT

At 31 December
M12A31H

2017

HK$’000 T &7

At 31 December
»W12A31A8
2016

HK$'000 F& 7T

The PRC s 1,506,890 1,470,256
Hong Kong BB 36,752 39,832
Sri Lanka HEBFR 159,620 158,086
Others H b= 625 185

1,703,887 1,668,359

Note: Non-current assets excluded deferred tax assets and investment in life insurance policies.

Information about major customers

No revenue from individual customer contributed over 10% of the total
revenue of the Group for the years ended 31 December 2017 and 31
December 2016.

7. FINANCE COSTS

Bz ERDEETEBECRBEERASRBRE R

&o

FHRETEFEFZESN

HZE2017F12H31H k201612 A31H It 4
B REENEFPzEEBNAEEEERT

HEHIB10% °
7. AE KA

2017
HK$’000 T & T

2016
HK$'000 T &7

RITEE

Finance costs on:
Bank borrowings

22,533

19,506




8. INCOME TAX EXPENSE

EmEE(%£E)FRes  201794% 115

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
mEMBHRME (F)

31 DECEMBER 2017 2017412 A31H

8. FrEHxXH

2017
HK$’000 F %

2016
HK$'000 F%T

Current tax: EFERIE:
Hong Kong BB 1,523 2,371
The PRC A 22,440 15,893
Other jurisdictions HAth B A [@ 3,222 7,604
27,185 25,868
Under/(over) provision in prior years: BAFERERR, (BREEE) :
Hong Kong BB (81) (40)
The PRC H 407 1,717
Other jurisdictions B el At @ 820 59
1,146 1,736
28,331 27,604
Deferred tax (note 18): EERRIE (B7a£18) -
Hong Kong BB 441 291
The PRC H 7,368 (10,319)
Other jurisdictions H fth &A= 164 500
7,973 (9,528)
36,304 18,076

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% (31 December 2016: 16.5%)
of the estimated assessable profit for the year.

Under the law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT Law”)
and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax rate of the PRC

subsidiaries is 25%.

Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations in Sri Lanka, the tax rate of

Sri Lanka subsidiary is 12%.

Taxation arising in other jurisdictions is calculated at the rates prevailing in

the respective jurisdictions.

Details of the deferred tax are set out in note 18.

o

= o
>t

BRABZMER12% °

B2 B E -

EEMNEGRDERRFE M EBRT AT LA
16.5% (2016F12A31H : 16.5% ) 2 & & &t

BEPRCEMGSH E([EEMERE]) X
TEMBREAERKA  PEMMB AR ZHE
B25% o

REHNERRAEBIERIER HEH MW

HihREMEZ HBERN ARSI BRVERE

BRABRTEHRE 2 FBHNHE18 -
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REVBHRMEE (&)

31 DECEMBER 2017 20174 12AH31H

8. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)

The tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the profit before income

tax expense per the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other 1 Eipf

comprehensive income as follows:

. FiEBixt (&)
%ErcﬁaﬁA&ﬁmiﬁm SR BIA

BHH AT EERMNT

2017
HK$’000 F &7

2016
HK$'000 T &7

Profit before income tax expense B P15 8 2 AT & A 212,250 168,068
Tax at domestic rates applicable to profits or  Z BB AR E A NIBH 2

losses in the jurisdiction concerned B ERTENRIE 35,255 15,177
Tax effect of expenses not deductible BERTENBRNBRETE

for tax purpose 10,501 14,167
Tax effect of income not taxable WA B AR T 522

for tax purpose (2,486) (1,669)
Under provision in prior years BEFERETR 1,146 1,736
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised MIBBEREERNBBETE 3 1,783
Tax effect of other deferred tax not recognised £ f i JE % T8 A& 4 #E 22 MO i 75 0 &2 1,555 9,746
Utilisation of tax losses previously ERABAREERNTIEEE

not recognised (7,132) (19,172)
Utilisation of other deferred tax previously ERBTREERNEMELTHIE

not recognised (2,846) (3,850)
Effect on opening deferred tax balances BRABERRDERELERIE

resulting from a decrease in My &

applicable tax rate - 455
Deferred tax provided/(reversed) on AN B AR FENFELH

withholding tax on overseas subsidiaries EEFR BB, (@) 298 (298)
Others E A 10 1
Tax charge for the year EFEMRBESH 36,304 18,076

The weighted average applicable tax rate for the year increased
significantly which is caused by changes in profitability of the Group’s
subsidiaries in respective countries they are operating.

w2 B2
‘‘‘‘‘‘‘ BB -

REEMEFHERREAE LA THERAE
ANRELLEMESE Z BN
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
mEMBHERME ()

31 DECEMBER 2017 2017412 A31H

9. PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

=FEAR

2017
HK$’000 F %

2016
HK$'000 F%T

Profit for the year has been arrived at
after charging/(crediting):

EFEEBMEIRE, (FFA)
KR E

Amortisation of deferred income' R JE UL A BB 5 (1,607) (1,507)
Amortisation of other intangible assets Hithimp EE 2B (Hit16)°

(note 16)° 3,271 3,271
Auditors’ remuneration 1ZBRAD 2 7 BN 3,065 3,063
Cost of inventories sold (note i) GFEHEEXAN (HiEi) 6,162,290 5,553,590
Depreciation of investment properties WEMEZIE (Ki13)

(note 13) 3,780 3,896
Depreciation and impairment of property, Y HaEkEE 2 ITENRRE

plant and equipment (note 14) (Hiit14) 181,497 174,756
Employee costs (including directors’ EENAE (BREEHNWE102

emoluments set out in note 10) EFHe) 961,823 947,128
Gain on disposal of available-for-sale BEHIEES/MEE 2 W

financial assets? (901) (751)
Government grants (note ij)’ AT 48 B (A 7 )1 (3,493) (3,805)
Impairment loss reversed on F b e W GRIR 2 R (B 18 K 5 B (B2

other receivables, net? (89) (483)
Impairment loss (reversed)/recognised EENMEERKFRIAEL

on trade and bills receivables, net? MERK (BE) HERFE? (19,849) 21,401
Interest income' FLEM AT (4,557) (4,587)
Loss on deregistration of a subsidiary? HE—FHMB AR EE 1,127 -
Loss on disposal/written-off of property, HE GEEYE HRERRE R

plant and equipment? 18,731 13,283
Net exchange (gain)/losses? FE 5 (Yzk), BiE R E? (21,269) 15,002
Net rental income from investment properties’ % & ¥ EMHA S W AEE" (9,655) (10,156)
Release of prepaid lease payments FENEEREED 2,602 2,601
1 Included in other revenue 1 BEEEMKRARN
2 Included in other gains and losses 2 BEEEMKEREER
3 Included in administrative expenses 3 BEETHRERR
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31 DECEMBER 2017 20174 12AH31H

9.

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR (continued)

Notes:

Cost of inventories sold includes HK$1,666,095,000 (2016: HK$1,598,598,000) of staff
costs, depreciation, subcontracting fee, provision/(reversal) of write-down of inventories
and other manufacturing overheads, which are also included in the respective total
amounts disclosed above for each of these types of expenses.

Government grants mainly represent grants of HK$2,109,000 (2016: HK$3,092,000)
received from the PRC local government authority as subsidies to the Group for
(a) acquiring certain property, plant and equipment for energy saving scheme and
environmental protection scheme implemented by the PRC local government; (b) incentive
of foreign trade; and (c) incentive of steady growth of business.

There were no restrictions with the use of such government grants.

10. INFORMATION REGARDING DIRECTORS’ AND

EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS

(a) Directors’ emoluments

Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to Section 383 of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622) (the Ordinance) and
the Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of Directors)
Regulation (Cap. 622G) (the Regulation) are as follows:

9.

=EERFN (&)

By it -

(i

7 & 86 Ak A 8 #1,666,095,0005 7T (20164 -
1,598,598,000/8 L) B TR A #r&E - I T &M - 785
GEZEEG/ (BB RAMEEER LEEE D
BREEENERESERA 2 BEBER-

BA#MEIZEKRIREFEERBRARERDN
2,109,000/ 7T (20164 : 3,092,000/ 7T ) £ /3 2~ &
@ATHEERRNEE & RIRRAEMBER
BT BBERERE OBBINE R)SBIEBIE
FEHE R HHE

% U BRI A (5 R IR I

10.EEREEMEER

(a) EEM=
RBEB QRGN (58622%) (#&HI) E3831%

ARl (BREFHNDER) AP ($622GF)

(RPN BEENEEHELT :

2017 20174
ZHAO YEN NG Kwok William ZHANG CHEN YING LAN
Yao Gordon Tung LAM Chong  Minghong Wei Jiang Total
fich 3 BEH EER WER (3 BRIg St K’ EI #E
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FET FET FET FET FET FET FET FET FET
Fees we - 200 250 200 - - 200 200 1,050
Other emoluments Hffe
Salaries and other benefits e REMEF 3,304 - - - - - - - 3,304
Discretionary bonuses* Wi~ 1,525 - - - - - - - 1,525
Retirement benefits scheme RIRBHE BN
contribution 18 - - - - - - - 18
4,847 200 250 200 - - 200 200 5,897
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

10. INFORMATION REGARDING DIRECTORS’ AND
EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (continued)

(a) Directors’ emoluments (continued)

REUBBERME (&)

31 DECEMBER 2017 2017412 A31H

10.EEREEMEEHR (&)

(a) EEM= (&)

2016 2016%F
CHOW Wing
HA Kam YEN GONG ZHAO NG Kwok Kin, William ZHANG CHEN YING LAN
On, Victor Gordon Zhengyi Yao Tung Anthony LAM Chong Minghong Wei Jiang Total
EfiR R BiEE HiE BER Zh3 R ] R&# i3 EI @
HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK8000
FET FET FiEr FET FET FEr FEr T FiEn FEr FiEn FiEn
(note ) (note i) (note i) (note i) (note v)
( (Hiti) (Hidtii) (Hitiv) (Hitv)
Fees 221 200 - - 250 100 129 - - 200 129 1,229
Other emoluments
Salaries and other benefits - - 870 3,304 - - - - - - - 4174
Discretionary bonuses” - - - 1,625 - - - - - - - 1,525
Equity-settled share-based IEEEENRG
payments RER A - 51 - - - - - - - - - 51
Retiement benefits scheme RIVEFIHEIER
contribution 9 - 9 18 - - - - - - - 36
230 251 879 4,847 250 100 129 - - 200 129 7015

*

The basis of the discretionary bonus is based on the profitability of the Group.

Notes:
(i) Mr. Ha Kam On, Victor resigned as Executive Director on 19 May 2016.
(ii) Mr. Gong Zhengyi retired as Executive Director on 24 June 2016.

(i) Mr. Chow Wing Kin, Anthony, SBS, JP retired as Independent Non-Executive Director on
24 June 2016.

(iv)  Mr. William Lam was appointed as Independent Non-Executive Director on 9 May 2016.
(v)  Mr. Lan Jiang was appointed as Executive Director on 9 May 2016.
During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group to any director as

an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for
loss of office. No directors waived any emoluments in the year.

* HERENEREENRARERNES -

[0) BT EER2016F5A19REENITES -
(i) EEELER2016F6H24AERITHITES -

(i) AL AE REHEE X F4#H1THA2016F6 5248
BRABUIENTES-

(iv)  #REKEAER2016F50R EZEABILIERTE
$o

(v)  ETRER2016F580BEZFANTES
AEFE AEEVEREANEEIHHE

PAYE 7% hn B8 7 52 [ S pn A AN SR (B By 1) 22 B B
BBmE REFEEMESEHETAME -
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REVBHRMEE (&)

31 DECEMBER 2017 20174 12AH31H

10. INFORMATION REGARDING DIRECTORS’ AND
EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (continued)

(b) Employees’ emoluments

The five highest paid employees included one (31 December 2016: one)
director, whose emoluments are set out in note (a) above. Emoluments of
the remaining four (31 December 2016: four) employees are as follows:

10.EEREEMEER (&)

(b) EEME

== e 5% EE BIE1A (2016512 A31
A1) EE EHMESFBEN Ll @) -
2 T 407 (20165 12H31H 1 46) R E BN &
R

2017 2016
HK$’000 F/&7  HK$'000 T8

Salaries and other benefits e kHMmER 9,425 8,113
Retirement benefits scheme contributions RRRE R B R 187 168
Discretionary bonuses g e 3,123 3,339

12,735 11,620

Their emoluments were within the following bands:

BEZBE N FATER

2017 2016
HK$1,500,000 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,0007% 7T 2,000,000/ 7T = 1
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,500,001;% 7T £3,000,000# 7T 2 1
HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000 3,000,001 JL £3,500,000/% 7T 1 1
HK$3,500,001 to HK$4,000,000 3,500,0017% 7t £4,000,000/% 7T 1 1

(c) Senior management’s emoluments

The emoluments paid or payable to members of senior management were
within the following bands:

(c) EREEEM=

ENRENSREEEXNEZMEN FIATA
Al

2017 2016

Below HK$1,000,000 471,000,000 7T

HK$4,000,001 to HK$5,000,000 4,000,0017% 7t £5,000,000/% 7T 1 1
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11. DIVIDENDS

REUBBERME (&)

31 DECEMBER 2017 2017412 A31H

1. RE

2017
HK$’000 F %

2016
HK$'000 F%T

Dividend recognised as distribution EFEEEER
during the year:

2016 final dividend of HK5.3 cents
(2015 final dividend of HK4.0 cents)

per share

R IR BB

20164 R H % B & A%5.378 1
(2015F RHARR & : 4.07810)

63,866 48,201

No interim dividend was paid or proposed for both years.

The final dividend of HK10.4 cents in respect of the year ended
31 December 2017 (2016: HK5.3 cents) per share, amounting to
approximately HK$125,323,000 (2016: HK$63,866,000) in total, has been
recommended by the directors of the Company and is subject to the
approval of the shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting of
the Company.

12. EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic earnings and diluted earnings per share
attributable to owners of the Company is based on the following data:

P 4 2 3 8 B A SR P RS -

ARAREFEZZRMNEZ2017F12A8318 1k
FEZRBAKESR10.481 (20164 : 5.3
AL - A £ #9125,323,0008 7T (20164 ¢
63,866,000/8 7T ) * WARFREA AN B EE R
HIEFRE EHtfE-o

12. B8R EF
AATEE AEGSRERRF REERAT
BT St

2017
HK$’000 F &7

2016
HK$'000 T8 7T

Earnings &R
Profit for the year attributable to owners of
the Company for the purposes of

basic earnings and diluted earnings per share

LAt E B RERE T & EE R P A
ZARRAFEBEARERFERN

156,846 127,908

2017 2016

Number of shares RHEE
Weighted average number of ordinary shares
for the purposes of basic earnings and

diluted earnings per share

ZEBBRNEF A

Lt BB RERE T & #E RN P A

1,205,026,960 1,205,026,960
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REVBHRMEE (&)

31 DECEMBER 2017 20174 12AH31H

12. EARNINGS PER SHARE (continued)

The computation of diluted earnings per share for the years ended 31
December 2017 and 31 December 2016 does not assume the exercise of
the Company’s outstanding share options because the adjusted exercise
prices of those options calculated in accordance with HKAS 33 “Earnings

Per Share” are higher than the average market price of the shares for both

years.

13. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

12.8REF (&)
ARRIBEEASSHERNFEIBR [FRAEF] 5
B2ARAMRITEEREZCARTEES
RBEODAMEFTFEZFHImE AT EHE
20179 12H318 Kk2016F12831H It FE 2
EREEEMNFTEBRRZSEREDET
fif o

13. REY%E

HK$'000 F %

Cost AR

At 1 January 2016 R2016%F1 A1H 80,936
Currency realignment SN E E R (3,986)
Reclassification from buildings e 2 5L 8 1 280
At 31 December 2016 2016512 431 H 77,230
Currency realignment INEMEEEE 2,427
Reclassification to buildings B EEEY (5,661)
At 31 December 2017 201712 A31H 73,996
Depreciation e

At 1 January 2016 R2016F1 A1H 6,385
Currency realignment INES IR R (461)
Provided for the year EFERE 3,896
At 31 December 2016 K2016F12H31H 9,820
Currency realignment INEE I BT = R 407
Provided for the year EFERE 3,780
Reclassification to buildings FREEEY (786)
At 31 December 2017 MR2017%F12H31H 13,221
Carrying values REE

At 31 December 2017 2017512 A31H 60,775
At 31 December 2016 M2016F12 H31H 67,410
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

13. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

The Group’s investment properties consisted of leased properties
and leased pier. The fair value of the Group’s investment properties
at 31 December 2017 was HK$202,102,000 (31 December
2016: HK$189,436,000). The fair value of leased properties was
HK$179,507,000 (31 December 2016: HK166,574,000) and the fair value
of leased pier was HK$22,595,000 (31 December 2016: HK$22,862,000)
which have been arrived at based on a valuation carried out by RHL
Appraisal Limited, an independent property valuer.

The valuation of leased properties was determined by direct comparison
method, which is based on the principle of substitution, where comparison
is made based on prices realised on actual sales and/or asking prices
of comparable properties. Comparable properties of similar size, scale,
nature, character and location are analysed and carefully weighed against
all the respective advantages and disadvantages of each property in order
to arrive at a fair comparison of market value.

The valuation of leased pier was determined by Depreciated Replacement
Cost approach, which is based on an estimate of the market value for
the existing use of the land, plus the current cost of replacement of the
improvements less allowance for physical deterioration and all relevant
forms of obsolescence and optimisation. The key input of Depreciated
Replacement Cost approach is the building construction cost per square
metre. A significant increase/decrease in building construction cost per
metre used would result in a significant increase/decrease in the fair value
of the leased pier.

The valuation of leased properties takes into account the characteristics
of the investment properties, which include the location, size, shape, view,
floor level, year of completion and other factors collectively, to arrive at the
unit market price. The key input of direct comparison method is the unit
market price. A significant increase/decrease in the market price would
result in a significant increase/decrease in the fair value of the leased
properties.

The fair value of investment properties is a level 3 recurring fair value
measurement. The fair value measurement is based on the above
properties’ highest and best use, which does not differ from their actual
use.

The above investment properties are depreciated on a straight-line basis
over the shorter of 20 to 50 years or period of the lease term.

All of the investment properties of the Group are held to earn rentals or for
capital appreciation.

REUBBERME (&)
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13. REMWE (&)

AEENREDERENEDERAER
HoAREEKEWHENR2017F12A318 K
N FE1E A202,102,0005 7t (20164128
31H :189,436,0008 L) - HHEWMENH A
F{E{E A179,507,000/% T (2016412 A 31
H:166,574,0008 L) R EBEH QA F
B 18 222,595,000/ 7L (2016 12H31H :
22,862,000/ 7T) * JhFTE Y E G ERMXFTT
FEBEMAERAREITHHETESH-

MEMEN A REEL R REERE
RITTEEE - Bt - LR EERHEER 2 Bif
B/ A B E 2 REE - A R
M R B 2 AT R T IR
%2 EBAEET DN T BEE A
BAFTELS

HEBENGEDRTEEERNNEETE %
TEDREI MR EREY M EED G
MEBRMEBEENKAREELBREERN
ERBEANRERBLAE - HEEENX
KENEEBARBEREF I KA RERA -
FF RO RERAKE LT/ TR S EE
EWBR s NTVEEKRE LA T

HEMEHESSERRENVEZEERIE
BRUE RT FEK-S8B BE BEXEN
REMAZR WEHEMLMSER BERLR
EZEBRABBEREMTSER -MHER
RELEFA/ THHEEBEEN(R 2 A TFEEK
i EF TR

BRENMEZ R TFEERBEINEE L FEER
E-RNFEEFEDUUNEMEZ SR REE
RaERRE EEMXZ2ERRGTEER -

LR E MR ABRER20E505 S HE F 1
(ABEERE)ITE-

AEEMERENETFIERRAS HNE AIE
o
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14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14. Y% - HBERKRE
Freehold and Furniture,
leasehold fixtures and Plant and Motor  Construction
land Buildings equipment machinery vehicles in progress Total
KABER BRC#EBR
HEHLH BEY RE HEREE EH HRIR “E
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FAT FET FET
Cost B
At 1 January 2016 R2016%F1A1R 21,548 941,736 807,676 2,248,651 24,054 16,081 4,059,746
Currency realignment HEBE T 2 (3,998) (5,622) (2,894) (139) 2,155) (14,806)
Additions #m - 12 10,623 115,536 3,341 126,973 256,485
Reclassifications to: ARZE:
- investment properties ~-RENE - (408) - - - - (408)
- others —Hft - 39,164 38,162 10,662 - (87,988) -
Disposals/written-off e /i - - (29,015) (41,643) (3,155) (9,030) (82,843)
At 31 December 2016 R2016%F12A31R 21,550 976,506 821,824 2,330,312 24,101 43,881 4,218,174
Currency realignment NEMEZE 18 3,481 7,064 4777 162 1,884 17,386
Additions Em - 64 13,594 129,453 1,678 86,537 231,326
Reclassifications from: RAEE:
- investment properties ~-REME - 4,875 - - - - 4,875
- others —Hit - 15,962 66,950 6,184 - (89,096) -
Disposals/written-off HE/HH# - - (17,151) (51,575) (2,417) - (71,143)
At 31 December 2017 R2017%F12A31R 21,568 1,000,888 892,281 2,419,151 23,524 43,206 4,400,618
Depreciation and HERAE
impairment
At 1 January 2016 R2016%F1A1R 12,445 364,915 612,370 1,637,824 20,072 - 2,647,626
Currency realignment NEMEZE - (1,319) (2,031) (1,269) (92) - (4,705)
Provided for the year =EERE 215 40,144 27,457 105,254 1,686 - 174,756
Eliminated on reclassification ABREREMERHH
to investment properties - (128) - - - - (128)
Eliminated on disposals/ &/ FHEHH
written-off - - (23,037) (36,702) 2,953) - (62,692)
At 31 December 2016 R2016%F12A31R 12,660 408,612 614,759 1,705,113 18,713 - 2,754,857
Currency realignment BB EE - 1,175 2,082 2,813 113 - 6,183
Provided for the year =EERE 215 42,049 35,304 102,433 1,496 - 181,497
Eliminated on disposals/ e/ FHEHE
written-off - - (13,861) (35,070) (2,234) - (51,165)
At 31 December 2017 R2017%F12A31R 12,875 446,836 638,284 1,775,289 18,088 - 2,891,372
Carrying values BHE
At 31 December 2017 20174124317 8,693 554,052 263,997 643,862 5,436 43,206 1,509,246
At 31 December 2016 R2016F12A31A 8,890 572,894 207,085 625,199 5,388 43,881 1,463,317
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14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued) 14. Y3 - R R RE (F)

The cost of above items of property, plant and equipment are depreciated, it % - #EBRHE IR AR AR E 7 4
after taking into account of their estimated residual values, on a straight- RIS EBEBIABGEITE -

line basis.

15. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS

15. B HERIE
At 31 December At 31 December
MR12831H MW12A31H
2017 2016

HK$000 T3t HK$'000 F&T

The Group’s prepaid lease payments
comprise:

Leasehold land situated outside Hong Kong

7 55 (8 B 98 1 7

ERBERE:

R BEBUININNHEE L 99,319 101,715

Analysed for reporting purposes as:

Current assets
Non-current assets

RERM S DM

2,604 2,600
96,715 99,115

99,319 101,715
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16. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS 16. HtEEEE

Software
B4
HK$'000 F & T
Cost A
At 1 January 2016 ®20164F1 818 31,267
Additions 0 -
At 31 December 2016 7R2016%F12A31H 31,267
Additions 0 -
At 31 December 2017 R2017F12A831H 31,267
Amortisation 6
At 1 January 2016 7R2016F1 A1H 6,379
Provided for the year T FERE 3,271
At 31 December 2016 H2016F12A31H 9,650
Provided for the year EFERE 3,271
At 31 December 2017 2017912 A31H 12,921
Carrying values REE
At 31 December 2017 20179 12A31H 18,346
At 31 December 2016 M20166F127331H 21,617

17. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE

At 31 December
M12A831H

2017

HK$’000 T &

17. R —EBE LT 2R

At 31 December
®12A831H
2016

HK$'000 F & T

Unlisted shares, at cost FEETRRD - AR AN H 16,204 16,204
Share of post-acquisition profit JE A s B 12 2 T 2,601 696
18,805 16,900
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31 DECEMBER 2017 2017412 A31H

17. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE (continued) 17. A—RBE N T oS (E)

Particulars of the associate of the Group at 31 December 2017 and 31  ZN £ BB < A 7 R2017F12 A31H 201645

December 2016 is as follows: 12A31H ZF BT :
Percentage of
ownership
Form of interests/voting
business Place of Place of operation and rights/profit
Name structure incorporation principal activities share
it EE R
RE®
=X EBERBEN T @ EERMEBRIEER BB
REMEKBBRA A Corporation The PRC Construction and managing 30%
of sewage treatment plant
in the PRC
A s AR R
BRI KERIE M

The primary business of B ZEE/KE AR A F is engaged in construction B2 EKEEAR AN T ELEEINERS
and managing of sewage treatment plant in Dongguan of Guangdong R ZemiiER N EIE T /KER B -
Province.

The above associate is accounted for using the equity method in the  FiliB¢& QAT DR ER G AT B RET
consolidated financial statements. AR -

Summarised financial information of an associate that are not individually {ARIZEBEE 2Bt = A5 2 B ER L -
material:

2017 2016
HK$’000 F#E7T  HK$'000 T&7T

Profit from continuing operations RELEEB BT 1,905 595
Other comprehensive income Hih2mE W= - -

Total comprehensive income HEWEEE 1,905 595
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18. DEFERRED TAX

The major deferred tax liabilities/(assets) recognised by the Group and
movements thereon during the current and prior reporting periods are as
follows:

Accelerated

18. IEZEFi 18
AEBRARE R M BERSE AREROE
EREHBAE (BE)RAEHWT

tax
depreciation Tax losses Others Total
RAIBIERE HIEEE Hith “wE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$ 000
FET FiET FET FET
(note)
(H7t)
At 1 January 2016 ®2016%F1 A1H 13,294 (4,999) (41,812) (33,517)
Charged/(credited) to profit or 825 R A%, (5t A)
loss 263 535 (10,326) (9,528)
Currency realignment SNEE R = R 4 - - 4
At 31 December 2016 72016412 A31H 13,561 (4,464) (52,138) (43,041)
Charged/(credited) to profit or RIBZEEER A, (5 A)
loss (764) 756 7,081 7,973
Currency realignment HNEE A Z5R 67 - - 67
At 31 December 2017 2017412 A31H 12,864 (3,708) (44,157) (35,001)

Note: The amount represents mainly deferred tax assets arising from unrealised profit on
inventories, unrealised gain on transfer of plant and equipment between subsidiaries and
deferred tax liabilities arising from withholding tax charged on a PRC/overseas subsidiary
at the amounts of HK$2,105,000 (31 December 2016: HK$4,206,000), HK$1,976,000
(31 December 2016: HK$2,034,000) and HK$323,000 (31 December 2016: HK$25,000)
respectively.

Mat: BEFEETEAFENAEBERF LB AR 2 MK
BREHEABROREEREAEENECHRBEE
LA R —FE AR BV OB B8 1 R0 BR O TB 0B T £ )
ELERIBEE 9 5142,105,000/8 T (2016412 A31
H : 4,206,000/ 7T) ~ 1,976,000/ 7T (2016412 A31
A :2,034,0007% Jt ) }323,0007% st (2016412 531
H :25,00087T) °



EEEL(EE)AHRRT 2017FFH

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

18. DEFERRED TAX (continued)

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had unused tax losses of
approximately HK$108 million (31 December 2016: HK$216 million)
available for offset against future profits. A deferred tax asset has been
recognised in respect of approximately HK$23 million (31 December
2016: HK$27 million) of such losses, which represent tax losses incurred
by certain of the Company’s subsidiaries as it is considered by the
management that future taxable profits will be available against which the
tax losses can be utilised. No deferred tax asset has been recognised
in respect of the remaining HK$85 million (31 December 2016: HK$189
million) tax losses due to the unpredictability of future profit streams. As
at 31 December 2017, of the above tax losses, an aggregate amount
of approximately HK$17 million (31 December 2016: HK$56 million) can
be carried forward for five years following the year when the losses were
incurred. Other tax losses may be carried forward indefinitely.

In addition, at 31 December 2017, the Group had other deductible
temporary differences of approximately HK$60 million (31 December 2016:
HK$73 million) mainly consist of unrealised gain on transfer of plant and
equipment between subsidiaries, unrealised profit on inventories, allowance
for doubtful debts and inventories and interest capitalisation. No deferred
tax asset has been recognised in relation to such deductible temporary
differences as it is not certain that taxable profits will be available against
which the deductible temporary differences can be utilised.

According to the EIT Law, starting from 1 January 2008, 10% withholding
income tax will be imposed on dividends relating to profits earned in
the calendar year 2008 onwards to foreign investors for the companies
established in the PRC. For investors incorporated in Hong Kong and
holds at least 25% of the equity interest in the PRC company, reduced
rate of 5% will be applied. Deferred tax has not been provided for in the
consolidated financial statements in respect of temporary differences
attributable to retained profits of the PRC subsidiaries amounting to
HK$260,247,000 (31 December 2016: HK$210,494,000) as the Group
is able to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences
and it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future. Besides, no deferred tax has been provided for in the
consolidated financial statements in respect of the temporary differences
attributable to such loss amounting to HK$37,262,000 (31 December
2016: HK$40,784,000).

REUBBERME (&)
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18. IEE R E (&)

M2017512A31H - R&E B 7] BEHE 5K K
2 F B K & A F78 E5 18 49 2108,000,000% JT
(2016412 A31H 216,000,000 7T ) ° M It
T8 &5 18 7 923,000,000/ 7T (2016412 A 31
H : 27,000,000 70 ) EERAE—HELEHIEE
E - WDARRETHEARMEEANHIER
B EEREERRARRAERYEF K
5 L B TR 5 18 - 82 T A9 B 18 5 18 /485,000,000
7 7T (20164E12 A31 H : 189,000,000 7t )
REEFEABRHBFKEMABERBEL
FRIBEE - 20179128318 Ll Fi A K48
MR 484 %8 4917,000,000% 7T (2016412 A 31
H : 56,000,000/ 70 ) AIRNELXBEFEEER
5F o b B THE B 1] s R Bitb 82 15 -

It FR2017F 12 A31H » AN B H 4th 7] 308
R 2 849 560,000,0005 7T (2016412 A 31
H :73,000,0007T) FEBEMEBEAR M
BENIEABORBRA RS FTENRER
B REMGFEBEEUARFEE R AX
BE TE E FE SR K 2R A5 AT (R 3K 88 b 1Y 0B A 2=
B oM AEBRZAUNBERZZABEERIE
BE-

RIED TS A A2008F1A1H R A
Bl AKX S A B A 3R AME B &R 35 EE 2008
A FEHATEBRHREARMI0O%EN
I8 -MNEBAMRIBAEEFEQFZD
5% MILE L BBEAERTES% - AR
AN E2 (3] A) LA R I R 2 B D] 2 R R i RS
ZBRBAENA RBRAEER - I A5+
BlM B A aRFRAHN 2 ERE£260,247,000
¥ 7T (2016512 A31H : 210,494,000/ 7T )
FERETEREAELECH BRI
BAEVBREATERZEBERELENY
B & #237,262,000/8 7T (20165F12H31H
40,784,000/ 7T ) 1E H B FE B TE B 4 -
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18. DEFERRED TAX (continued)

As at 31 December 2017, the Group provided the deferred tax in full in
respect of the withholding tax attributable to the undistributed profits after
1 January 2008 of a PRC subsidiary amounting to HK$11,653,000. The
reduced rate of 5% applied.

As at 31 December 2016, the Group provided the deferred tax in full in
respect of the withholding tax attributable to the undistributed profits of
an oversea subsidiary amounting to HK$995,000. The rate applied is the
domestic income tax rate.

For the purposes of presentation in the consolidated statement of financial
position, certain deferred tax assets and liabilities have been offset. The
following is an analysis of the deferred tax balances for reporting purposes:

18. IELEHLIH ()

R2017F12A31H  AEBEEH® — B EH
BB A RIR2008F1A1HEARADREF A
11,653,000/ 7T 2 TE N F 2 HGT 12 15 1 5 18
HoEAERMBESY -

R2016F12A31H  AEBEE M —E/EINH B
Nal AP IRE R AE995,0004 T 2 A 2 8
FHREETIERE MERA K BZI T
SR o

AEAMBIRRRNESME & TRELEKREA
BENBECEBE -ATERE2RM S VET
IR A8 R D AT -

At 31 December
M12A31H

2017

HK$’000 T &7

At 31 December
Mm12H31R
2016

HK$'000 F& 7T

Deferred tax assets RIETRIE A = (42,877) (49,909)
Deferred tax liabilities REFHIBEE 7,876 6,868
(35,001) (43,041)

19. INVESTMENT IN LIFE INSURANCE POLICIES

In prior period before 2016, the Group entered into two contracts with
two insurance companies, which contain seven life insurance policies to
insure against the death of seven key members of management of the
Group, with an aggregate insured sum of approximately US$18.8 million
(equivalent to approximately HK$145.8 million). Under these contracts, the
beneficiary and policy holder is the Company. The Company has made
upfront payments of HK$36,178,000 in prior period. The monthly insurance
costs and administrative charges determined by the insurance companies
will be deducted from the account value. The insurers will declare interest
(including the guaranteed interest) to the Company on a monthly basis,
based on the amount of account value, at a rate to be determined at their
own discretion.

19. AERBREZRE

R2016F 5 2 i@ E B - AN £ B EH R E R R
NARIYMEREN BFREEth ASREIR
B AAEBRLEZETEEERENEZEHNER
TR RIREFEA £ 4 A18,800,000% 7T (48
£ #)145,800,00008 7T) - IRIEZEAH T
TARREFBEAABRNRT - ANAFREEH
BB X B 1B 36,178,0008 L - & A X+t
MRERRBARETCHITHRERBLEFE
EFR -RBRARSAATREERFEERE
BIERAE 2 REAQRBEIRFNE (BIFERE
FE) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

19. INVESTMENT IN LIFE INSURANCE POLICIES
(continued)

In 2016, the Group terminated a contract which contained five life
insurance policies. A gain on disposal amounting to HK$751,000,
which included a reclassification from other comprehensive income of
HK$3,012,000, has been recognised in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss in 2016.

During the year, the Group terminated the remaining contract which
contained two life insurance policies. A gain on disposal amounting to
HK$901,000, which included a reclassification from other comprehensive
income of HK$901,000, has been recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss for the year.

20. INVENTORIES

REUBBERME (&)
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19 ASRBREZRE (H)

R2016F  AEBKIF—REPD(EFREER
MASRBRE) B EWEZ A751,000/ 7T
(B FEAM E b 2 Uk 25 59 3,012,000 ) B
R2016F R A BmAR NER -

RER AEBRIEBTZEH (EPREMHG
ASREIRE) BB Wz A901,0008 7T (£
PR H b 2 T U 25 8 BE901,00008 T ) B R =
BirABERNER -

20. &
At 31 December At 31 December
M12H31H W12A31H
2017 2016

HK$000 Tt HK$'000 F&T

Spare parts w1
Raw materials Rt
Work-in-progress FH M
Finished goods BRI

42,995 44,992
624,626 646,164
441,275 397,563
341,291 313,192

1,450,187 1,401,911
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31 DECEMBER 2017 20174 12AH31H

21. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES

N EEREBEEWFRE

At 31 December
M12A31H

2017

HK$’000 F&7T

At 31 December
M12H31H
2016

HK$'000 F&T

Trade receivables & ¥ eI 5 E 965,409 941,500
Bills receivables ZEEEWIA 324,358 316,860
Less: allowance for doubtful debts B RERE (28,183) (49,030)

1,261,584 1,209,330

The Group allows a credit period ranging from 30 days to 60 days to its
trade customers. The following is an ageing analysis of trade and bills
receivables based on the payment due dates net of allowance for doubtful
debts:

AEBERENFIORECOREEHTHEER
P-2XRREBRRBYGKEREMN XA (K
EBRREEG) ORERDITAT

At 31 December
MA12A831H

2017

HK$’000 F 7T

At 31 December
W12A31H
2016

HK$'000 F# T

Not yet due REIER 1,121,989 743,201
Overdue 1-30 days i1 891-30K% 90,821 228,570
Overdue 31-60 days B HAZ1-60K 24,211 114,875
Overdue >60 days 0 HA B 860K 24,563 122,684

1,261,584 1,209,330
Before accepting any new customer, the Group assesses the potential AEBERERTOHEZLH @ EXELER

customer’s credit quality and defines its credit limits. Credit sales are
made to customers with satisfactory trustworthy credit history. Credit limits
attributed to customers are reviewed regularly. Trade receivables that are
neither past due nor impaired have good track records with the Group.

FREEEZRATREERBE-FEHER
BRTEECRRENEFP TP EEREE
My -ARBERERRTERENE X
FEUWRIR A RIFEE R -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

21. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (continued)

Included in the Group’s trade and bills receivables balance are debtors
with an aggregate carrying amount of HK$139,595,000 (31 December
2016: HK$466,129,000) which was past due at the end of the reporting
period for which the Group has not provided for impairment loss, as
there is no significant change in credit quality and the amounts are either
settled subsequently or still considered recoverable based on the historical
experience. The Group does not hold any collateral over these balances.

No interest is charged on the overdue trade receivables. The Group has
fully provided for all trade receivables over 360 days as, based on historical
experience, trade receivables that are past due beyond 360 days are
generally not recoverable. Trade receivables between 60 days and 360
days have been provided for based on estimated irrecoverable amounts,
determined by reference to past default experiences.

Movements in the allowance for doubtful debts are as follows:

REUBBERME (&)
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1. EEXEREBRRNKE (B)
BIEEASEEXRERERFIEEHANE
W B4 HBR T {E A 139,595,000/ 7T (2016412
A31H :466,129,000/8 7t) ' ER®E K E
. ARNEEEERTESAEBEZELEE
REBEBTIREBEBELRDR AR FIKE -
AEBWESBELREBRBEE AEEL
BRZEEHE B TMEAR-

B ERBFIETTAFNE - ANEEE JLE
BICORHFT A & X EWHIB 2 EETIREE - 1t
T B A AR B 38 1F A% B 460 B B 3R 360K HY & S fE
W SRIE — = A UL Bl - 60K E 360K 2 fEH) &
FERWRIBIIRGFEENE B2 ERT
RFAEERFTE TE M et IR B o
REEBE  EHOT
At 31 December
M12A831H
2017
HK$’000 T & T

At 31 December
MW12A31H
2016

HK$'000 F&T

Balance at beginning of the year FHEE 49,030 43,332
Impairment loss (reversed)/recognised EERFEBERERKFZIEBEZ

on trade and bills receivables, net RERKL (BL) TRFE (19,849) 21,401
Amounts written-off as uncollectible A 7~ 7] U [ i i B & 58 (998) (15,708)
Balance at end of the year FR s 28,183 49,030

At 31 December 2017, the Group’s trade and bills receivables included
in the allowance for doubtful debts with an aggregate balance of
HK$28,183,000 (31 December 2016: HK$49,030,000) was individually
determined to be impaired. The Group does not hold any collateral over
these balances.

R2017F12A31H BREEREREEBELS KX
4 4 528,183,000/ 7t (2016128318 ¢
49,030,000/ 7T ) B A & B & 5 R 5 E WK
BHEMFETADRE AEETEGEZEE
B A TAEER -

2017 ##% 133
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31 DECEMBER 2017 20174 12AH31H

21. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (continued)

Transferred financial assets that are derecognised in their
entirety

At 31 December 2017, the Group endorsed certain bills receivable
accepted by banks in Mainland China (the “Derecognised Bills”) to
certain of its suppliers in order to settle the trade payables due to such
suppliers with a carrying amount in aggregate of HK$114,944,000 (2016:
HK$115,608,000). The Derecognised Bills had a maturity of one to six
months at the end of the reporting period. In accordance with the Law
of Negotiable Instruments in the PRC, the holders of the Derecognised
Bills have a right of recourse against the Group if the PRC banks default
(the “Continuing Involvement”). In the opinion of the Directors, the
Group has transferred substantially all risks and rewards relating to the
Derecognised Bills. Accordingly, it has derecognised the full carrying
amounts of the Derecognised Bills and the associated trade payables. The
maximum exposure to loss from the Group’s Continuing Involvement in the
Derecognised Bills and the undiscounted cash flows to repurchase these
Derecognised Bills is equal to their carrying amounts. In the opinion of
the directors, the fair values of the Group’s Continuing Involvement in the
Derecognised Bills are not significant.

2. EXREBRWFOR (&)
ERRLBANCEZSHEE

R2017F12A31B AEEREE THER
EEEREAMMNRITEANE TEEERK
RE([BRIEERER]) UWEFEAES
A114,944,0005% 7 (20164 : 115,608,000
TO) RN ZEHERNEERMNFIE - RS
B IR ER M EBR A — 2N E A - RIE
FEIEEE  WPBIARITES AR IEERE
BEBEAUASEBERE ([FELHE]) &
ERE AEBECERERRIIEREENR
RES D R K& Bl R - i B BUS R I
REBMEEEXENFENZIREEE K
SERFEL2HARIIEREZEMEERNZSK
IHERERMNAMBR S REMABRNRKE
EREERABE-ZEERR A5EH I BES
BRI EREENATFEELTEKR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

22. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER

RECEIVABLES

REUBHERME (&)
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22 EMNFIE - EHEREMEBKRFRIR

At 31 December
MW12A31H

2017

HK$’000 T &

At 31 December
M12H31H
2016

HK$'000 F& 7T

Value-added tax recoverable A Y [0 1 (E & 126,551 34,518

Deposits, prepayments and e FENRER
other receivables E {th & U FR08 135,177 101,902
261,728 136,420

23. RESTRICTED BANK DEPOSITS

As at 31 December 2017, restricted bank deposits of HK$13,003,000 (31
December 2016: HK$10,406,000) mainly represented guaranteed deposits
placed in a bank in PRC as securities for the bills payables.

24. SHORT-TERM BANK DEPOSITS AND BANK

BALANCES AND CASH

Short-term bank deposits and bank balances carry market interest rates
ranging from 0.01% to 11.05% (31 December 2016: 0.01% to 3.3%) per

annum.

25. TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES

23. ZRHIRIT I

M2017E12A318 SR HIETHER
13,003,000/ 7t (201612 A31H : 10,406,000
BIT) EBEFRN R E—KIBITIEAZEER
RIBEBH B ERT R

24. BRI ERRRITERRAS

HHBRTEFEARALRBETESRTIEZN F0.01%2
11.05% (201612 A31H : 0.01%%3.3% ) 2
MHFEFEFTB -

25. EXREBENFE

At 31 December
MW12H31H

2017

HK$’000 T & 7T

At 31 December
MW12A31H
2016

HK$'000 F&T

Trade payables &R FRIE 641,859 516,861
Bills payables EHRENKIA 175,208 235,279
817,067 752,140
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25. TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES (continued)

The following is an ageing analysis of trade payables based on the
payment due dates:

25 EXREREMNRE (K)

EERNFARNRIAANREITNT

At 31 December At 31 December
M12A31H M12H31H
2017 2016

HK$’000 F#E7t HK$'000 F &€

Not yet due R EHR 553,549 431,767
Overdue 1-30 days #1 891-30K% 66,510 57,492
Overdue 31-60 days # H#131-60K 11,144 10,661
Overdue >60 days 780 HA B 360K 10,656 16,941

641,859 516,861

All the bills payables of the Group were not yet due at the end of the
reporting period.

As at 31 December 2017, bills payables of HK$43,345,000 (31 December
2016: HK$18,920,000) were secured by the Group’s restricted bank
deposits of HK$13,003,000 (31 December 2016: HK$5,676,000).

The average credit period on purchase of goods ranges from 30 days to
120 days. The Group has financial risk management policies in place to
ensure that payables are within the credit time frame.

26. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

RBEME AEEZAABRBERNRAAR
2Hg

R2017F12 4318  ZEE T T843,345,000
77T (2016512 A31H 18,920,000/ 7T) /5
AN & B 2 < R &l R 17 17 513,003,000/ 7T
(2016512 A831H :5,676,000/8 T ) 1E B &
o

BENTHEEHN FIOREI20R-AEE
ERE MR R E EBRE - AEREN KA
BREEHRA-

26. Hth BN AR EFTEH

At 31 December At 31 December
M12A831H M12H31H
2017 2016

HK$000 Tt HK$'000 F&7T

Other payables H b JE T B
Accruals EEtER

125,117 133,375
182,325 189,470

307,442 322,845
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

27. AMOUNTS DUE TO NON-CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS/AN ASSOCIATE

(a) Amounts due to non-controlling shareholders

The amounts are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.

(b) Amount due to an associate

The amount is unsecured, interest-free and repayable with agreed 30 days
credit period.

28. DEFERRED INCOME

REUBBERMEE (&)
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27. m#}“mﬁi/ BEACENGIEN

(a) K?H‘"Hﬁﬂﬁin
EAFEARERR 2EREEREE-

(b) X —EEtE R RRE

BRFARERMN RENBENORBEEE
HiREE-

28. IR W A
At 31 December At 31 December
M12A831H W12A31H
2017 2016

HK$’000 Tt  HK$000 F&7T

Arising from government grants (note) RS R FTE &£ (H727) 60,611 61,962
Current Ve 1,622 1,592
Non-current ER B 58,989 60,370

60,611 61,962

Note: In 2008, the Group received a government subsidy of HK$72,912,000 for the purchase
of certain assets, which had been deferred to recognise as income over the useful lives
of the relevant assets upon the fulfilment of the relevant conditions. The Group has no
unfulfilled conditions attaching to the government grants.

HtaE - 20084 - A& B B U — T8 BT 4 B 72,912,000
TORARBESTEE WBBRNERBBKGERIZ
EHREEFRFHERARA -AEEY EXSHA
1o B FIT B 255 B oK 28 A1 1 o
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REVBHERMEE (&)
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29. BANK BORROWINGS

20. RITIBEE
At 31 December At 31 December
M12HA31H W12A31H
2017 2016

HK$’000 F¥7x  HK$000 F &7

Unsecured borrowings: mEAEE:
Bank loans RITER 479,083 358,010
Import bills loans EOER 256,146 309,634
735,229 667,644
Repayable as follows: AR T Y EIMEE
On demand or within one year (note (a)) EEXKEBEINFA (Hita) 515,606 488,191
More than one year, but not exceeding two 1F LA HENB@E2F
years 186,309 39,461
More than two years, but not exceeding five 24 LA _E{B B B5EF
years 33,314 139,992
735,229 667,644
Less: Amounts repayable on demand or due & : JE 2 K{EE s 1F N E Hi ¢ 58
within one year shown under current HARBAGBIER
liabilities
— bank borrowings due —1FRNEHMRITEE
within one year (515,606) (488,191)
Amounts due after one year 1FREIHERE 219,623 179,453

Note:

Byat -

(@  As at 31 December 2017 and 2016, the current liabilities include bank loans that are all (a8 H2017%F K%2016F12A31H RBEBEREAMF

scheduled to repay within one year.

NEHEE 2 RITERK-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

29. BANK BORROWINGS (continued)

The bank borrowings of the Group are mainly variable rate borrowings
which carry interest at HIBOR plus a spread, ranging from 1% to 2.6% (31
December 2016: 0.9% to 2.8%) or London Interbank Offered Rate plus a
spread, ranging from 1% to 2.25% (31 December 2016: 0.9% to 1.75%)
per annum in Hong Kong. The average effective interest rates of the bank
borrowings of the Group is 2.63% (31 December 2016: 2.49%) per annum.
Some other bank borrowings of the Group carry interest at fixed-rates
ranging from 2% to 2.09% (31 December 2016: 1.02% to 1.57%) per
annum.

Pursuant to the Group’s banking facilities letters, the Group was required
to maintain a number of covenant ratios and general undertakings
including the limit of annual capital expenditure (the “CAPEX”). As at 31
December 2016, there was a bank borrowing with principal amount of
HK$280,000,000 which carries interest at HIBOR plus 2.6% per annum
(the “term loan”) exceeded the CAPEX limit of general undertakings.
This bank borrowing is repayable in seven equal installments at the date
which falls 18 months, 21 months, 24 months, 27 months, 30 months,
33 months and 36 months from 22 December 2014. As at 31 December
2016, the carrying amount of the term loan is HK$159,225,000. According
to the term of general undertakings, the lender has the right to demand
accelerated repayment. The Group obtained a waiver letter in relation
to the term loan and the lender has agreed not to demand payment
as a consequence of such excess of the CAPEX limit of the general
undertakings. As at 31 December 2017, the Group had complied with all
covenant ratios and general undertakings.

30. SHARE CAPITAL

At 31 December

REUBBERMEE (&)

31 DECEMBER 2017 2017412 A31H

20. RITEE (&)
AEBMRTEETEAZEEE REED
EEBBTREREMNEEEZNT1%E2.6%
(2016512 A31H 1 0.9%%£2.8% ) =k fa F R 17
BEFEMEEENT1%E2.25% (2016F12
H31H :0.9%%E1.75% ) 2 F X B - A&EH
RITEE 2 FHERFFEB2.63% (20164
12HA31H :2.49% ) - ASEEH EMETEE
THZEFEFF RN F2%Z2E2.09% (2016912 A
31H :1.02%E1.57% )5t B °

BEASEMRITRE KT AEEBEFH
EROLER —RAEF BREFEEAAXR
B FEEARMZBEE]) - R2016512 431
B —IEA% A280,000,0008 T A E B RTT R
EFEME26%FF X EMNRITERE ([T
HEZR]BE—MAFNTFEEARAAIRE-
ZIRITEER2014F12 8228 BN E181EA -
21 A -24@ A -27f@ A - 30f@ B - 33f@ A &
3618 A& B9t REEEEE - 11201612 A 31
B FHERKREES159,225,000/8 7€ - BI%
—RAEAFEIRR ERABEERKIERER K
SECDESERETHERNREE  BERA
ERETERABE —MEABRNFEERAFAZR
B ESRKEN - R2017F128318H AEEBEE
BTFTAROLE R —RBERE -

30. g &

At 31 December

R12A31H M12H31H
2017 2016
No. of shares HK$'000 No. of shares HK$'000
Vgt 4 FET REE FET
Ordinary shares, LR BEIR
issued and fully paid HREBRA 1,205,026,960 865,716 1,205,026,960 865,716
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31. NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

Ocean Lanka (Private) Limited, a 60% (2016: 60%) owned subsidiary of
the Company, has material non-controlling interests (“NCI”). The NCI of all
other subsidiaries that are not 100% owned by the Group are considered
not to be material.

Summarised financial information in relation to the NCI of Ocean Lanka
(Private) Limited, before intra-group eliminations, is presented below:

31.#}'%5&1%%5

PAN/N — Bt B A Al Ocean Lanka (Private)
lelted %&*ﬁeso% (20164 : 60% ) IRBEME KR
FEVERRAE R ([FEIEARER]) - WIFR AN EE
E100%Ez 2 FT B KM B AT 2 FE AR
BERAELTEK-

REBARNILE I Z A1 BB Ocean Lanka
(Private) Limited3EiE R EZ I ZETHEE R 2
FEnR

2017
HK$’000 F &7

2016
HK$'000 T &7

For the year ended 31 December

BZE12A31BLEE

Revenue - 651,004 721,900
Profit for the year EFEAT 18,509 49,308
Total comprehensive income %EH&UST&?@ %8 15,290 49,064
Profit allocated to NCI ZIERERNET 7,404 19,723
For the year ended 31 December BZ12A31BILLEE
Cash flows from operating activities EEBIBHGNIRERE 29,870 59,584
Cash flows used in investing activities KEEBFMANBEESRE (19,280) (16,718)
Cash flows used in financing activities mﬁéﬁlﬁ BRAMNBESRE (62,465) (46,638)
Effect of exchange rate changes on EXFHERE R

cash and cash equivalents ZRRCEENTE 923 71
Net cash outflows REmE HE (50,952) (3,701)

At 31 December
M12A831H

2017

HK$’000 T &

At 31 December
MW12A31H
2016

HK$'000 F&T

As at 31 December M12H31H

Current assets mENEE 305,445 353,409
Non-current assets ERBEE 159,639 158,105
Current liabilities mENBE (71,097) (76,504)
Non-current liabilities EREBAE (8,344) (8,674)
Net assets EEFE 385,643 426,336
Accumulated non-controlling interests Rt EIERiE S 154,257 170,534
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

32. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS
The 2002 Scheme

The Company has a share option scheme (the “2002 Scheme”), which
was adopted by the Company at the extraordinary general meeting held
on 25 January 2002. The 2002 Scheme was expired on 24 January 2012
and was early terminated on 20 January 2011. The primary purpose of
the 2002 Scheme is to provide the Company with a flexible mean of giving
incentives to, rewarding, remunerating, compensating and/or providing
benefits to the employees and for such other purposes as the board
of directors of the Company may approve from time to time. Under the
2002 Scheme, the board of directors of the Company may offer to full
time employees, including full time executive directors, of the Company
and/or its subsidiaries who have completed the probation period options
to subscribe for shares in the Company in accordance with the terms
of the 2002 Scheme for the consideration of HK$1 for each lot of share
options granted. The total number of shares in respect of which options
may be granted under the 2002 Scheme is not permitted to exceed
10% of the shares of the Company in issue at the date of approval of
the 2002 Scheme. The Company may seek approval from shareholders
of the Company in general meeting to refresh the 10% limit. In addition,
the maximum number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of
all outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under the 2002
Scheme and any other share option schemes of the Company shall not
exceed 30% (or such higher percentage as may be allowed under the
Listing Rules) of the total number of shares in issue from time to time.
The number of shares in respect of which options may be granted to any
employee in any 12-month period is not permitted to exceed 1% of the
total number of shares of the Company in issue, subject to approval from
shareholders of the Company. Options granted must be taken within 28
days of the date of grant or such longer or shorter period as the board of
directors of the Company may think fit. The minimum period for which an
option must be held before it can be exercised is one year or such other
period as the board of directors of the Company may think fit commencing
from the date of grant (“Holdup period”). An option period, at the absolute
discretion of the board of directors of the Company, shall commence
on the expiry of the Holdup period and expire no later than the 10th
anniversary of the date of grant. The exercise price is determined by the
board of directors of the Company and will be at least the highest of the
followings:

REUBHERME (&)
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2. UBRDBERZNARKS
20024 5t &

RARMER —TEHBERBE S ([20024F 5
21) TR AR A R2002F1 A25H £ 17 2 %
BRI AE R4 - 20024 51 8 B HR20124F
1H248 &m0 2011F1 A208 2 AT & IE -
2002F FTEIMEZEEMAREAARIREESA
TEE - 2E R mERKIREER R
ARRZEEETHMENEMBENMEIRE—
E2EE AN - RIE2002F 518 ARARIEEZES
AT $Z2002F 5 8GR B F AR A &, S B K
BRRACBBAAHANEZRES (BE2BH
TEZ)BEREUZBRIARD BAAER
ERENNRERIE T RIE2002F 51 &) AT %
HEEREMBEITHORMNDEE 2 TEBA
2002F BEM AT S EHEE BB BTN A
HH10% - ARFAIEREAG SRR
A EFTIE10%A) LR o b ol - R IE2002F 512
KA R REM E AR B H BB ERTT
FREREETEMRITARORE &Z T
SHAARQBTREZFHTRMBESHMI0% (2
BIELETRUATFNRS ER) -BREEAR
A% B L A S TR E B R T 1218 A 5
A HETESERBREORDEAE &
S EBBAARNTERTRNDEHEN1% - EB
WEEBRERY ALBRNKARAESTS
AIEERR A E MY H M B R ok B2 HA A N 3% 4R A
ERTHERE - BELARKLORIRL BB
1FHIARAESTSNEHERAEENEMERE
([FEHDHEERER T EFHRE R
BHAARAFESSRBYHMISRET  BH
BEHEREARTERTERE T BZ10E
FEM-TEERARAESSHT BHAE
BUTIERN TS E
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32. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS
(continued)

The 2002 Scheme (continued)

(@) the closing price of shares at the date of grant of a share option;

(b) the average closing price of the shares for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of grant; and

(¢) the nominal value of a share.

Under the 2002 Scheme, 22,400,000 options were granted on 17
September 2010. The closing price of the Company’s shares immediately
before the date of grant was HK$1.29. All the share options granted under
the 2002 scheme were lapsed in the year 2016. Details of the movements
of those options and other information of the grant are set out below.

The 2011 Scheme

On 20 January 2011, the 2002 Scheme was early terminated and the
Company adopted a new share option scheme (the “2011 Scheme”)
pursuant to a resolution passed at the extraordinary general meeting held
on the same date (the “Adoption Date”). Further details are set out in the
announcement of the Company dated 10 December 2010.

The terms and conditions of the 2011 Scheme are basically the same
as those of the 2002 Scheme except that the eligible participants of the
2011 Scheme include, among others, directors and full-time or part-time
employees whereas the eligible participants of the 2002 Scheme cover
only directors and full-time employees. In addition, there is no specific
period for accepting the share options granted and also no specific Holdup
period, which are determined by the board of directors upon the grant of
share options as they think as appropriate.

The 2011 Scheme shall valid and effective for a period of 10 years
commencing on the Adoption Date, after which period no further option will
be granted.

Under the 2011 Scheme, share options of 3,352,000 and 23,045,000 were
granted on 18 May 2011 and 18 August 2011, respectively. The closing
prices of the Company’s shares immediately before the dates of grant
were HK$1.80 and HK$1.21, respectively, among which share options
comprising 1,980,000 shares were exercised on 30 June 2015, and the
remaining share options comprising 24,417,000 shares were lapsed due to
not being exercised or resignation of grantees.

2. URBBERZNRRS (&)
20024 5t & (4%)
(a) BRIAMEBARAER I B HAM UL (8 5

() BOREERRLBRHZASEZXBNF
BUWHE: &

) BiyHEREE-

R IE2002F 51 8| B R2010F9A17H R
22,400,000 B - AR AR H R BEEER D
B Hi gl 2 W T8 A1.2958 7T ° IR IF20024F 51 2
REMNEBREDN2016E RN - BHZE

BRESEHEERELN I EMEREIRT
Yo
2011535138

HR201141 A20H » 2002F 51 2| 2 W2 A1 &8
I mARABEREARAB ([RHB])#T2
REFFIARE @By —THAREEMN BN
AR AT 2l ([2011F 5T 81]) i —FFFIEH
RARE HEA2010F1210B Z R ER

2011 5T 8l 2 R R A E AN _E 812002 4F 51 2
AR 2011 FBI 2 A B BERE (K
FEBIEERE2BAFEBES  M2002F 5
BIZAER2HEEREESREHES It
S EREEeRNEREREINEET 28
MERHERESTHR  TESTHEH (10
WERAHER) -

0MFFEIZAMHBERMABER  BH0
F-REPREBGAIBRTEERE-

BIE2011F 51 &) B2011FE5818H KX2011
F8A18HE » B FE B 53,352,000% &
23,045,000 J2 10 2 B AR #E - AR AR (9 X &
BEROEBAZKTES B A1.808 T &k1.21
BT EFR 8 51,980,0000% B () 2 AL E S 7
201556 A30E T - M &R T B 524,417,000
B& B 17 2 B A% 4 R PR BR AT R 15 DA 7T (8 s A A I
N3N
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

The following table discloses movements of the Company’s share options
granted under the 2002 Scheme and the 2011 Scheme.

REUBERME (&)

31 DECEMBER 2017 2017412 A31H

2. URMDAERZARKS (&)

TRFEARDTRIE2002F 512 2011 E 512
ERHBEREZZHIFNR-

Outstanding Expired  Outstanding at
at 1 January during 31 December
Scheme Date of grant Exercise price 2017 the year 2017
R2017% R2017%
1818 12A31H
BE R AH TR i RTE FRERER i RTE
Director
E
Dr. YEN Gordon 2011 18 August 2011 HK$1.21 1,320,000 (1,320,000) -
BREHEL 2011 201148 A18H 1218 7T
Exercisable at the end of REFELE
the year B A F1T6E 1,320,000 -
Outstanding Forfeited Outstanding at
at 1 January during 31 December
Scheme Date of grant Exercise price 2016 the year 2016
120165 P20165
1A1H 12A31H
FTE R AH 1% E HARITER FREEN HARITER
Directors
B
Mr. HA Kam On, Victor 2002 17 September 2010 HK$1.29 4,600,000 (4,600,000) -
ERTEE 20026 201059 A17H 1.29% L
2011 18 August 2011 HK$1.21 3,300,000 (3,300,000) -
20114 20118 A18H 1.2187T
Dr. YEN Gordon 2011 18 August 2011 HK$1.21 1,320,000 - 1,320,000
BE#HEL 2011 201148 A18H 12187
Total A 9,220,000 (7,900,000) 1,320,000
Exercisable at the end of REFERE
the year B a] F1768 6,060,000 1,320,000
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32. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS
(continued)

Share options granted on 17 September 2010 under the 2002 Scheme are

exercisable during the period from 17 March 2014 to 17 March 2017 in

three tranches, being

° 17 March 2014 to 17 March 2017 (up to 30.00% of the share options
granted are exercisable)

e 17 March 2015 to 17 March 2017 (up to 60.00% of the share options
granted are exercisable)

° 17 March 2016 to 17 March 2017 (all share options granted are
exercisable)

Share options granted on 18 May 2011 under the 2011 Scheme are
exercisable during the period from 18 May 2012 to 17 May 2015 in three
tranches, being

° 18 May 2012 to 17 May 2015 (up to 32.52% of the share options
granted are exercisable)

e 18 May 2013 to 17 May 2015 (up to 65.04% of the share options
granted are exercisable)

e 18 May 2014 to 17 May 2015 (all share options granted are
exercisable)

R2.URMDAERZARKS (&)

A2010F9 17 B AR ¥E 20024 51 81 I 7 BE IR
R R2014E3 178 £201743 178 B/
DIERE R T LATTE - BN

o 2014%F3A17THE2017E3AI7TE (£ %
1B & BB 2 30.00%08] F171E)

o 2015%F3A17THE2017E3AITE (£ %
1HE R B 260.00%0] F171F)

o 2016F3A17THE2017ESIAITR (A
BEEZERERN FITE)

A2011E5 A18B R E201 14518 B T 7 R
HEA] 201245 H18H £2015%5 8178 B/
D 3ME R B T ATTfE - 8D

e 20124 5A18A £2015F5A17R (& %
B RHERE 232.52%0] F171F)

e 2013%F5H18H £2015FE5A17H (& %
HE R B E 265.04%0] F171F)

e 2014%5A18H £2015F5A17R (1A
BEYZERERN FITE)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

32. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

(continued)

Share options granted on 18 August 2011 under the 2011 Scheme are
exercisable by 2 batches as follows:

Batch 1: 15,900,000 share options are exercisable during the period from
19 August 2012 to 18 August 2017 in five tranches, being

19 August 2012 to 18 August 2017 (up to
options granted are exercisable)

19 August 2013 to 18 August 2017 (up to
options granted are exercisable)

19 August 2014 to 18 August 2017 (up to
options granted are exercisable)

19 August 2015 to 18 August 2017 (up to
options granted are exercisable)

20.00%

40.00%

60.00%

80.00%

of the

of the

of the

of the

share

share

share

share

19 August 2016 to 18 August 2017 (all share options granted are

exercisable)

Batch 2: 7,145,000 share options are exercisable during the period from
19 August 2012 to 18 August 2015 in three tranches, being

19 August 2012 to 18 August 2015 (up to 34.15% of the share

options granted are exercisable)

19 August 2013 to 18 August 2015 (up to 68.31% of the share

options granted are exercisable)

19 August 2014 to 18 August 2015 (all share options granted are

exercisable)

REUBHERME (&)
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R2.URMDAERZARKS (&)

A2011E8H18B IR E201 145181 I 2 BB IR
R Do F AT &AM T

14t 1 15,900,00017 8 & #E AT 702012F 8 A 19
HZ201748 A 18 H EARI D 5@ EX T LATT I
Zll

201258 A19H £2017F8A18H (HZ %
HERHERRE Z220.00%7] F17{#)

e 20134 8HA19H E2017FE8A18H (& %
12 LB HE 240.00%8] F171(F)

e D2014%8A19H E201748A18H (£ %
HE R ERE 260.00%0 F17{E)

e 20154 8HA19H E2017F8A18E (& %
HE &R BB #E 280.00%A] F171F)

e D2016%8A19H E2017E8A18H (AT A
EREZERETTFITE)

2t 1 7,145,000 88 I #E 7] ) 20129F8 A19
HZ2015%8 A 18 B BRI D 3MER E& F LATTIE -
Al

e 201248H19H £2015FE8A18H (& %
HE R ERE 234.15%0] F17{E)

e 20134 8H19H £2015F8A18R (& %
HEREERE268.31%0 F171#)

e 2014%8H19H £2015E8A18A (A
BEREZERETTFITE)
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32. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

(continued)

The fair values of the share options were determined using the Binomial

model:

Annual Report 2017

R2.URMDAERZARKS (&)

Under the
2002 Scheme
Share options

Under the
2011 Scheme
Share options

BhEsATFEEDERA -EAELEE:

Under the
2011 Scheme
Share options

granted on granted on granted on

17 September 2010 18 May 2011 18 August 2011

1R 152002F 5+ & RIE2011F 5+ 2 R IE2011 F 5+ 2

M2010F97817H M2011E5818H 20115685 18H

B % B8 AR R SR NERE B % AR R

Number of options EREHE 22,400,000 3,352,000 23,045,000
Grant date fair value EEA#Hc AT ER HK$15,812,000 7T HK$2,718,000/87C HK$13,156,0007% 7T
Grant date share price EEBBRKRE HK$1.297%8 7T HK$1.807& 7T HK$1.2178 7T
Exercise price 7B HK$1.297% 7T HK$1.917 7T HK$1.2178 7T
Suboptimal exercise factor REFTERZ 2 2 2
Contractual life &4 FH 6.5 years F 4 years 4-6 years F
Expected volatility ERHR I 58.25% 66.97% 59.96%-66.16%
Dividend yield k8% 0% 0.58% 0.88%
Risk-free interest rate 3 B ) R 1.59% 1.23% 0.48%-0.99%
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

32. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS
(continued)

Expected volatilities were determined by using historical volatilities of
the stock return of the Company over the previous 4 to 6.5 years. The
risk-free interest rates used in the model were determined based on the
yield of Hong Kong Sovereign Curve for the share options granted on 17
September 2010 and the yield of Hong Kong Exchange Fund Note for the
share options granted on 18 May 2011 and 18 August 2011.

In 2016, the Group recognised a net reversal of HK$292,000 in relation to
share options granted by the Company. Out of the amount, total expense
of HK$51,000 was incurred that related to the directors of the Company.

There was no remaining contractual life of the options as at 31 December
2017 (31 December 2016: The options outstanding had a weighted
average remaining contractual life of 0.6 years).

At the end of the reporting period, the Group revises its estimates of the
number of options that are expected to ultimately vest. The impact of the
revision of the original estimates, if any, is recognised in profit and loss over
the remaining vesting period, with a corresponding adjustment to the share
options reserve.

The Binomial model has been used to estimate the fair value of the share
options. The variables and assumptions used in computing the fair value of
the share options are based on the directors’ best estimate. The value of
an option varies with different variables of certain subjective assumptions.

REUBHERME (&)

31 DECEMBER 2017 2017412 A31H

R2.URMDAERZARKS (&)

FEHRIE DR AR QR IBE4IZ6.5F R E[
WMeBELREET - BXPARAZERRF
KIHIRE D B £ #E ih 47 [0 3 X (yield of Hong
Kong Sovereign Curve) (3201095178 E
B ZERE) REBINEESEHLRE (5
20114657180 k2011 F8A18AE R E 2 B
f&#E) BE -

M201645 » AEB B AR AR 2 B A% &
R EHEE292,000/8 T Rk & fh - AR X
51,0008 L ARG EEHR-

R2017F 12831 H - BERRHE W £ R 52 & 49 F 5
(201612 A31 8 = (4 AR 1T1F A B8 I 4 &9 hn 4
FHFEREHOFHE0.6F) o

RBEME AEEETEH AR REN
BREHBEB A -EIRAGHELEZRE
(WBE)RFGEBFRNBRRAER LR
BREREELAERE-

BREZAFEEFA -ZBEAEA G -FE
BEREAFEEMRAZEIRZLBRIIR
BEECREMRIMEE BREZEERS
TEIBRRZEPEAZTEHEMTR-
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33. RESERVES 33. #E
The Company b /NI
Investment Share
revaluation options Retained
reserve reserve earnings Total
REEMRE BRERE REEA #E
HK$'000 F/Er  HK$'000 F&Er  HK$'000 F&r  HKS000 Fi&ET
At 1 January 2016 201651718 2,231 7,475 1,333,630 1,343,336
Transfer from share options reserve  MEBREREARZ R EZEF
to retained earnings - (6,352) 6,352 -
Profit for the year ”REFEM - - 46,290 46,290
Net gain arising on revaluation of ~ FRERAEHESBEEELY
available-for-sale financial assets Wz 5 E
during the year 1,410 - - 1,410
Release upon disposal of RETHNECHEERED
available-for-sale financial assets (3,012) - - (3,012)
Dividend recognised as distribution ~ E R AN &2 & - - (48,201) (48,201)
Equity-settled share-based DEREENRDARE
payments reverse R E - (308) - (308)
At 31 December 2016 #2016F12A31H 629 815 1,338,071 1,339,515
Transfer from share options reserve MR EHEAREREZRT
to retained earnings - (815) 815 -
Profit for the year REFAM - - 76,560 76,560
Net gain arising on revaluation of ~ FRERAEHESCBEEELY
available-for-sale financial assets Wz FE
during the year 272 - - 272
Release upon disposal of RETHNECHEERED
available-for-sale financial assets (901) - - (901)
Dividend recognised as distribution ~ E R AN &2 & - - (63,866) (63,866)
At 31 December 2017 R2017F12H31H - - 1,351,580 1,351,580
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
mEMBHMERME (F)

31 DECEMBER 2017 2017412 A31H

34. HOLDING COMPANY’S STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL 34. R AT 2 ERRB R

POSITION

At 31 December

At 31 December

®W12A31H MW12A31H
2017 2016
Notes M3 HK$’000 F %7 HK$'000 57T

Non-current assets kRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME HEREE 3,674 3,264
Investment in life insurance policies ASRBREZEE - 20,050
Investments in subsidiaries MERRIRE 19,181 20,111
22,855 43,425

Current assets RBEE
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables BARE R REMEWNGE 2,020 2,163
Amounts due from subsidiaries NG $ ] 2,662,610 2,984,541
Tax recoverable BENEE 18 256
Bank balances and cash RITERRE S 40,508 48,912
2,705,156 3,035,872
Current liabilities mEEE

Other payables and accruals HEMNFERENER 8,535 7,811
Amounts due to subsidiaries RHIBA B FIA 501,757 866,255
510,292 874,066
Net current assets RBEEFE 2,194,864 2,161,806
Total assets less current liabilities EEABRRBER 2,217,719 2,205,231

Non-current Liabilities krRBAE
Deferred tax liabilities ELHIBAR 423 -
Net assets EERE 2,217,296 2,205,231

Capital and reserves EXRfE
Share capital B 30 865,716 865,716
Other reserves Hithfis 33 1,351,580 1,339,515
Total equity EREE 2,217,296 2,205,231

ZHAO Yao LAN Jiang
Director Director
EBEFE -
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35. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the Company at 31 December
2017 and 31 December 2016 are as follows:

3. fEBARRE

M2017F12 A31H k2016512 A31H A R &
TEWBERAIMFEBLT

Place/country of

incorporation/ Issued and fully  Proportion of issued share
registration and paid share capital/ capital/registered capital
Name of subsidiary operation registered capital held by the Company Principal activities
MR BERER BRIRBEH ERR R
WEAR AR BEMELER BEA/BEkhE EBERTRE/BERFHLE FEEE
Directly Indirectly
E# B
% %
RREIEREARAR The PRC HK$14,000,000 - 100 Production and sales of garments
(note a) (Hizta) F 14,000,000 7T HERHERK
Dongguan Shatin Lake Side Textiles Printing & The PRC HK$307,500,000 - 95 Knitting, dyeing, printing and sales of
Dyeing Co., Ltd. (note b) dyed fabrics
RYHBEHENABERATF FE 307,500,000/ 7 A 46 HENHEEER
(Htb)
Fountain Set Limited Hong Kong HK$3,000,000 100 - Trading of dyed fabrics and yarns
BHEZERAF B 3,000,000/ 7T EnkeYES
Highscene Limited Hong Kong HK$3,000,000 100 - Trading of yarns
ERERLA B0 3,000,0007% 7T RYES
Hiway Textiles Limited Hong Kong HK$2 - 100 Trading of garments
BEHBBRADF B 28T KREH
Jiangyin Fuhui Textiles Limited (note a) The PRC USD110,000,000 - 100 Knitting, dyeing and sales of dyed
fabrics and yarns
IRRESBERAIR (Mita) g 110,000,000% & HE RENHEEEMREY
Lake Side Printing Factory Limited Hong Kong HK$2 100 . Investment holdings
BEHOTEHRERAR B0 28T REZK
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

35. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Place/country of
incorporation/
registration and

Issued and fully
paid share capital/

REUBHERME (&)

31 DECEMBER 2017 2017412 A31H

35. (B ARE (&)

Proportion of issued share
capital/registered capital

Name of subsidiary operation registered capital held by the Company Principal activities
EMRL BER BRTRARH NI B
WELREE BEMEY/ AR BRE/ZERE ERORE/ZZREANLE FEEE
Directly Indirectly
E# &
% %
Ningbo Young Top Garments Co., Ltd. (note a) The PRC USD26,000,000 - 55.5 Production and sales of garments
ERERRRERDA (Hita) e 26,000,000 7 BEREERK
Ocean Lanka (Private) Limited Democratic Socialist Sri Lanka Rupee - 60 Knitting, dyeing, printing and sales of
Republic of Sri Lanka (“LKR") 985,000,000 dyed fabrics
HEBRRE 985,000,000 - FE HENHEEETH
HEFRAME  HEHREL ([EX])
Oceanstar Textiles International Limited Hong Kong HK$2 - 100 Trading of garments
BEHBABRERAR Bk 2B KRESH
Ocean Yarn Dyeing Factory Limited Hong Kong HK$2 100 - Investment holding
BELYBERAA Bk 2B RERR
Prosperlink (Macao Commercial Offshore) Macao Macau Pataca 100,000 - 100 Trading of yarns, dyestuffs and
Limited chemicals
EE(RMBEAERE)BRAF R 100,0002 5% RYRELCHES
HERESBESERRA The PRC RMBS5,000,000 - 100 Trading of dyed fabrics
(note a) (fiiita) H AR #5,000,0007 BNHESH
RNENGHBRAERRA The PRC RMB35,000,000 - 100 Trading of dyed fabrics
(note a) (Hiita) FE A #35,000,00075 ehES
Sugian Young Top Garments Co., Ltd. (note g) The PRC USD800,000 - 55.5 Production and sales of garments
BRAMERERRE (Mita) HE 800,000% 7T BERHERK
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35. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

35. B AR E (&)

Place/country of

incorporation/ Issued and fully  Proportion of issued share
registration and paid share capital/ capital/registered capital
Name of subsidiary operation registered capital held by the Company Principal activities
HEMRY BER ERIRBEH VNG E 3
WEAR AR BEREN AR BA/BTREA ERTRA/BTRAMNLE IBEE
Directly Indirectly
H# k3
% %
Triumph Luck Limited Hong Kong HK$1,000,000 - 556.5 Trading of garments
ABERRA B 1,000,0007% 7. KREH
REGRZMNERERAT The PRC RMB50,000,000 - 100 Heating supply
(note a) (Hiita) FE AE#50,000,0007T Bt
B EEGBERAT The PRC USD60,500,000 - 100 Knitting, dyeing and sales of dyed
(note a) (Hiita) fabrics and yarns
HE 60,500,000% 7T HE ZEAHEETREY
Notes: B it -
a. Companies are established as wholly foreign owned enterprise in the PRC. a. RABEAINEIBEDER I AR

b. Companies are established as cooperative joint ventures in the PRC.

The above table includes the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the
opinion of the directors of the Company, principally affected the results of
the Group for the year or formed a substantial portion of the assets and
liabilities of the Group at the end of the reporting period. To give details of
other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors of the Company,
result in particulars of excessive length.

b RPEBENEGELENAIETAKIZINOATE -

AERRBOMBRARLDERARREERR
HUASERFEXGEAEZVESIBNASE
ERBREHRNEERABEER MK -
ARBEEZRRHINEMHBARNFEE S
HREAER TR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

36. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group will
be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the return to
stakeholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The
Group’s overall strategy remains unchanged from prior years.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debts, which include the
borrowings disclosed in note 29, and equity attributable to owners of the
Company, comprising issued share capital and reserves.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure on an on-going
basis. As part of this review, the directors consider the cost of capital and
the risks associated with the share capital. Based on recommendations of
the directors, the Group may balance its overall capital structure through
the payment of dividends, new share issues and share buy-backs as well
as the issue of new debts and the redemption of existing debts.

37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(a) Categories of financial instruments

REVBBERME (&)

31 DECEMBER 2017 2017412 A31H

36. EXEKRER

AEEEREAZEN ERNERASEESE
BEUBERLE ANEENSESEZERZ
MNREFE RFOEFREALDR KK
B ERREETEFE B

AEENERARBRREEY (B R2EMF29
FIRBEHER) MARRER AR GER (B
ERITIRANMER)

ARBEERFEEERTERARE -ERR
B0 BEFEEEE NN ER AR A
MER - REEFNER AKESNERIK
BB BITHREBEEROIARETHER
LRERRBEEBATEHEBBEREE-

37.€®MIT A
(a) €M T EER

At 31 December
M12H31H

2017

HK$’000 F &7

At 31 December
M12H31H
2016

HK$'000 F&T

TREE
AfthESREE
(ANEBRRREZERE)

Financial assets
Available-for-sales financial
assets (Investment in life
insurance policies)
Loans and receivables
(including cash and cash equivalents)

R R AR

Financial liabilities EHmas
Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost & &t B &R E K Nt &

(ERBASIERARELER)

- 20,050
2,153,108 2,114,917
1,730,681 1,598,332
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REVBHKRMEE (&)

31 DECEMBER 2017 20174 12H31H

37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies

The major financial instruments of the Group include investment in life
insurance policies, trade and bills receivables, other receivables, restricted
and short-term bank deposits, bank balances and cash, trade and bills
payables, other payables, amounts due to non-controlling shareholders,
amount due to an associate and bank borrowings. Details of these financial
instruments are disclosed in respective notes. The risks associated with
these financial instruments include market risk (currency risk and interest
rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The policies on how to mitigate
these risks are set out below. Management manages and monitors these
exposures to ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a timely
and effective manner.

Market risk

(i) Currency risk

Certain entities in the Group have foreign currency transactions, which
expose the Group to foreign currency risk.

The Group manages and monitors foreign exchange exposures to ensure
appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and effective manner.
To mitigate the risk of foreign currency, the Group manages the foreign
currency bank balances by performing regular review. The Group will
continue to assess if the use of the foreign currency hedging strategy as
appropriate in order to mitigate the foreign currency risk.

37. ¢RI H (&)
(b) HHEEABEEBEERBE

AEENTIZSRTABREASRRREZR
B ERLFHREWE KM EYEE  XR
HREHRTER ROTERERE EER
SREN KR EMENFHIR RIFEBRER
BRI R—REBE RARNRBERRITEE -
ZEEMTAZHFBORNEAMETRE &
ZEFeMTAARNAREREM SRR (8%
Rl kAERRE) EERRERBE SRR -
TXHEIIA RN EZ SRR AR - B8
BEBREEZSZRAR  AHERRENA R
REUEE 6 -

™ 5 & b
() BXEER

AEEETERAINER S  BMAKE Y RI
% m s -

AEETERESNERR  ARR LG
M RBEE o ARIESNE AR AEE
B B S A AN 2 SRR o A
s 0 ST 2 T R OB S 5 DA
oM LR -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

Market risk (continued)
(i) Currency risk (continued)
At the end of the reporting period, the carrying amounts of foreign currency

denominated monetary assets and monetary liabilities of the Group that are
considered significant by the management are as follows:

REVBBERME (&)

31 DECEMBER 2017 2017412 A31H

37. ¢RI H (&)
(b) A EBREEEZERBEEK (&)

miEEE (&)
() E¥mEpE (&)

RBEHL EEERRBEANNEE I
BIENEKEEREHBENEREEN T

Monetary assets and monetary liabilities: EMEENEEAG:
Assets Liabilities
BE =R

At 31 December At 31 December At 31 December At 31 December
M12831R M12H31H M12A31H M2A31H
2017 2016 2017 2016
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET
usD ET 628,376 723,616 627,063 646,545
RMB N 447,973 392,716 342,098 318,396
CAD iz 2,910 21,596 - -
LKR =454 1,010 1,353 2,955 645
HK$ BT 15,097 3,684 1,393 7,654
Indonesian Rupiah (“IDR”) e’ 1,597 1,621 1,303 1,226
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37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

Market risk (continued)

(i) Currency risk (continued)
Sensitivity analysis

The Group is mainly exposed to the risk of fluctuation of USD, RMB,
CAD and HK$ when such currencies are different from the relevant group
entities.

The following table detail the sensitivity of the Group to a 5% increase and
decrease in the above foreign currencies against the functional currency
of the corresponding group entity, except for HK$ against USD since HK$
is pegged to USD. 5% is the sensitivity rate used when reporting foreign
currency risk internally to key management personnel and represents
management’s assessment of the reasonably possible change in foreign
exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding foreign
currency denominated monetary items at the year end for a 5% change in
foreign currency rates. On this basis, there will be an increase/(decrease) in
pre-tax profit for the year where foreign currencies strengthen against the
functional currencies of the corresponding group entity by 5%, and vice
versa. The analysis is performed on the same basis for 2016.

Monetary assets and monetary liabilities:

37. ¢RI H (&)
(b) BEEBREEEERKE (&)

miEEE (&)
() EfmkE (&)

AEBEI2HNET AR WMTET (8
ZEEREABEEEEENNEER TRE)
B R B LB

TRFAY AN S H AR REEREE
BIHEREZES%MERE - M BT EE T
8 H BT HRTBRIN 5% /M EBREIEA
BERNH2MmINERR N EEABHERAES
EEPHTEARANGEREL R - FERED
EEERREEAIINEINENERIER I
REFRIZERMINERE B FREAME - WU E
B BINE LA EEERYEERITESYS
~REEBRMANG RN ORD)  R2ZT
R BRI IHIR2016F MR T -

EREEREREE:
At 31 December At 31 December
MA12A831H M12A31H
2017 2016

HK$’000 F¥7x  HK$000 F&7T

Increase/(decrease) in
pre-tax profit for the year

REEHAAFNEN O

USD against CAD EITH T - 2
RMB against HK$ AR R BT 5,546 3,990
CAD against HK$ AT 143 1,078
HK$ against RMB BILTHARE 498 -

6,187 5,070
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

Market risk (continued)

(ii) Interest rate risk

The Group is mainly exposed to cash flow interest rate risk primarily in
relation to variable-rate bank balances and borrowings. It is the Group’s
policy to keep its bank borrowings at floating rate of interests so as to
minimise the fair value interest rate risk. The Group’s cash flow interest
rate risk is mainly concentrated on the fluctuation of HIBOR arising from
the Group’s Hong Kong dollars denominated borrowings. In light of low
interest rate expected to be maintained in long period of time, the Group
shall monitor the interest rate fluctuation closely and arrange appropriate
financial instruments to minimise the interest rate risk.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on the exposure
to interest rates for non-derivative instruments (included variable-rate
borrowings only as the directors consider the exposure on bank balances
is not significant) at 31 December 2017 and 2016. The analysis is prepared
assuming the amount of liability outstanding at the end of the reporting
period was outstanding for the whole year. A 50 (31 December 2016: 50)
basis points increase or decrease in interest rate is used when reporting
interest rate risk internally to key management personnel and represents
management’s assessment of the reasonably possible change in interest
rates.

For non-derivative bank borrowings, if interest rate had been 50 basis
points higher/lower and all other variables were held constant, the Group’s
pre-tax profit for the year would increase/decrease by HK$3,181,000 (31
December 2016: increase/decrease in pre-tax profit by HK$3,348,000).

REUBBERME (&)

31 DECEMBER 2017 2017412 A31H

37. ¢RI H (&)
(b) A EBREEEZEREEK (&)

misE b (&)
(i) FF @

AEENRSREFEREREBREFSRITHE
HRREEREH AKRBENBRRRERFERTE
ERFBMEINBUERFEENERER A%
l%ﬁ%mzﬂ*ﬂﬁi£%¢#m$glu
BT ENBEELZEBRTRAERBK
@ m%ﬁﬂfﬁﬂ@% &E%ﬁ AEE
ETYEENE RS YLHFAENERITA
Mﬁﬂ%ﬂ&

BT

THSFEESMIBBETET R (EBEFE
EE AEZRERBITESRAEZRRYT
TEKR)R2017F K20165F 12 A31 BB A & &
BMET - AEIMIHERRERREREED
BESREEAFEAFENYAREENRR
MiEE-MEZEBEABRNBE2FRFERAR T

R A501E (2016412 831 H : 501# ) £ 25 A4 F+
B REREBEHMNERAIEEEZBHFTMG-

g

A

METERTEEM S MAREH T B
S0BEES mMABHMEHERITE  BIAE
B2 FER AT EIG MR 3,181,000
7T (2016512 A31 8 : B AT & F 3% hn/§ 4
3,348,000/ 7T ) °
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37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

Credit risk

As at 31 December 2017 and 2016, the maximum exposure to credit risk
by the Group which will cause a financial loss due to failure to discharge an
obligation by the counterparties is arising from the carrying amounts of the
recognised financial assets as stated in the statements of financial position.

In order to manage the credit risk, management of the Group has
delegated a team responsible for determination of credit limits, credit
approvals and other monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up action
is taken to recover overdue debts. Credit sales of products are only made
to customers with good credit quality and repayment history. In addition,
the Group regularly reviews the recoverable amount of debt on both
collective and individual basis to ensure that adequate impairment losses
are made for irrecoverable amounts. During the year ended 31 December
2017, a net impairment loss of HK$19,849,000 in respect of the trade
and bills receivables was reversed (31 December 2016: a net impairment
loss HK$21,401,000 in respect of the trade and bills receivables was
recognised).

Furthermore, the Company only provides financial guarantees to its
subsidiaries after a careful consideration of its subsidiaries’ financial
conditions. In this regard, the directors of the Company consider that the
Group’s credit risk is significantly reduced.

The credit risk on liquid funds of the Group is limited because the
counterparties are banks with high credit ratings assigned by reputable
credit-rating agencies.

Other than concentration of credit risk on liquid funds which are deposited
with several banks with high credit ratings, the Group has no significant
concentration of credit risk with exposure spread over a number of
counterparties.

37. ¢RI H (&)
(b) BEEBREEEERKE (&)

FEER

R2017FE K2016F12A31H  AEBRESFH
REEBTEAMBRYBEIANESEERR
ABEBEUBUAKRZIEBREHEEN
BRESE-

AEREZERER AEENEREDZR—4A
ANEBEETEERE FERM R EMET
B BREIBE TSR EEEEE - ER
EEHEERETEESRUEEERRENRT
BHEFE AN NEE S T HIRE 8 & (E R
B 5 (E TE A 1] UR B BB - AR AR Bh AR UK
O REEEL RAMRERL - REE2017F12
AB1BLFEER AEBERLERZEER
FXIE 3 B B 18 R 1819,849,000/%8 7T (2016
F12A310  FEREBREWFIAERBER
R F{E21,401,0008 7T ) °

oSN ARBEREEEEENE QRN B
RS 12 73 [F) EL B 8 X AR AR B A5 PR AR o Bh ot T
FARREERAAKENERERRE KR
B o

AEEHEBELEEARER BYTHY
BARBNERIRRBLTEREIRNE
7o

BRERERARE THEEFARTHORBES
ZIEERBERIN AEBYEBHERES
EERE  EARRSBRZEEFT -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors and maintains a
level of cash and cash equivalents deemed adequate by the management
to finance the Group’s operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in
cash flows. Management monitors the utilisation of bank borrowings and
ensures compliance with the relevant loan covenants.

Other than equity, the Group relies on bank borrowings as a significant
source of liquidity. As at 31 December 2017, the available unutilised
banking facilities of the Group are approximately HK$2,915 million (31
December 2016: HK$3,037 million).

The following tables detail the Group’s remaining contractual maturity for
their non-derivative financial liabilities based on the agreed repayment
terms. The tables have been drawn up based on the undiscounted
cash flows of the financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which
the Group can be required to pay. The tables include both interest and
principal cash flows. To the extent that interest is floating rates, the
undiscounted amount is derived from interest rate at the end of the
reporting period.

REVBBERME (&)

31 DECEMBER 2017 2017412 A31H

37. ¢RI H (&)
(b) A EBREEEZERBEEK (&)

REBEEE R

REERBDECRRE NEESERNER
EEERARAKFNRENERREER
NN AEBZ2EMTRERSRERBH
TE - EEESERRBITEENERBER I
FE 4R 38 <7 AR B B R4

BRigmih NEEFBBRITEBEIEAEERY
BE KR R2017F12A831H  KAEERH AT H)
RERERIRITEERLA2,915,000,000/%8 7T
(2016412 A31H :3,037,000,000/%& 7T ) °

TERFIREZEERGRAKEIFTESR
BEMNBRTERZMBER ZRIEBRAKHE
AREEERNFNZEAMRESRAGBNR
MARERERHE ZREBENELRAEHE
ME-EMNERBEBMNEZRENR  RER
SRR ERRZANEFH-

Weighted Carrying
average Less than Total amount at
effective 1 month or 3 months to undiscounted 31 December
interest rate on demand 1-3 months 1year  Over 1 year cash flows 2017
R201746
mELH SRR AHERE  12A3HK
ERH = FEEXR 1Z3f8A MBAEIE BBIE RERE REE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET FET FET FET FAET FET
Non-derivative FTESRER
financial liabilities
Trade, bills and other payables B ZRRAMEN
B - 618,478 244,971 46,617 - 910,066 910,066
Amounts due to non-controlling RIFERREFIE
shareholders - 80,100 - - 80,100 80,100
Amount due to an associate R—HBERRRE - 5,286 - - 5,286 5,286
Bank borrowings RITEE
- variable rate —%8 2.95 143,503 134,387 147,214 222,213 647,317 635,229
- fixed rate -EL 2.04 - - 100,831 - 100,831 100,000
847,367 379,358 294,662 222,213 1,743,600 1,730,681
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REVBHRMEE (&)

31 DECEMBER 2017 20174 12AH31H

37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies

37. ¢RI H (&)
(b) EEMEEEERRE (&)

(continued)
Liquidity risk (continued) REESEKE (&)

Weighted Carrying
average Less than Total amount at
effective 1 month or 3 months to undiscounted 31 December

interest rate on demand 1-3 months 1 year QOver 1 year cash flows 2016
20165
mETH PMEARR RrEBRRE 12A31A K
ERFIX [EEX 1Z3fE A SEAEIE BR1E MELE EEE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FHET FHET FHET FET
Non-derivative FTESREE
financial liabilities
Trade, bills and other payables X FEREMER
A - 552,076 252,029 40,984 - 845,089 845,089
Amounts due to non-controlling RIEERR IR FE
shareholders - 80,100 - - - 80,100 80,100
Amount due to an associate R—EBERAFFE - 5,499 - - - 5,499 5,499
Bank borrowings RITEE
- variable rate -28 2.35 3,077 167,011 329,023 184,647 683,758 667,644
640,752 419,040 370,007 184,647 1,614,446 1,598,332
The amounts included above for variable interest rate instruments for non- REIEEZ

derivative financial liabilities is subject to change if changes in variable
interest rates differ to those estimates of interest rates determined at the
end of the reporting period.

(c) Fair value
(i) Financial instruments not measured at fair value

Financial instruments not measured at fair value include cash and cash
equivalents, trade and bills receivables, other receivables, trade and bills
payables, other payables, amounts due to non-controlling shareholders,
amount due to an associate, and bank borrowings.

Due to their short term nature, the carrying value of cash and cash
equivalents, trade and bills receivables, other receivables, trade and bills
payables, other payables, amounts due to non-controlling shareholders
and amount due to an associate approximates fair value.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial instruments carried at cost
or amortised cost are not materially different from their fair values as at 31
December 2017 and 31 December 2016.

il ¥ BY | R 2 FEEY A Bl e A
MEMGEF B EAETAESRMBEZ YR IA
ZERABE AN E -

(c) ¥ EE
(i) AFULAFEEFEZEMIA

jﬁé‘FL‘A’A?ﬁTﬁﬁ%Z@%ﬂIﬂFjéiﬁ{ﬁ&g
RARESHEE EXNFEBRENRKE HibERK
PR EEMFBREMNKR OB NHRE R
3H P B R IR~ R — [ B & R B O RO0R Ko iR

TEE-

HRBEHEE RehFERBRLER EX
Ko 2245 e MR IR~ EL At B MRIR ‘“%&?ﬁ%ﬁ
& A R IR ﬁﬁﬂﬁgﬁ RIE R IE PR BB R R
&7( LA o/N Iﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁfﬁéﬁiﬁi\ﬁifﬁﬁ
EES

REBZKASBEHEXATENER TENK
HE - HEEER2017F12A31H K20165F12
AB1HM AT EETEEZEKRER -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
(c) Fair value (continued)
(ii) Financial instruments measured at fair value

Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the fair value of the Group’s financial
instruments measured at the end of the reporting period on a recurring
basis, categorised into the three-level fair value hierarchy as defined in
HKFRS 13, Fair value measurement. The level into which a fair value
measurement is classified and is determined with reference to the
observability and significance of the inputs used in the valuation technique
as follows:

o Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using only Level 1 inputs i.e.
unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities at the measurement date.

o Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using Level 2 inputs i.e.
observable inputs which fail to meet Level 1, and not using significant
unobservable inputs. Unobservable inputs are inputs for which market
data are not available.

e |evel 3 valuations: Fair value measured using significant unobservable
inputs.

At 31 December 2016, all of the Group’s investment in life insurance
policies was grouped into Level 2 category.

There were no transfers between the three Levels during the year and prior
year.

REUBBERME (&)
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37.¢®MI A (&)

(c) A¥EE (&)

(i) AAFEEFEZERMIEA
AP EELEE

TREJZLEFUEEENRERKAENLE
FemTANAFEE LIRBEVHREE
AIZE135%% [ 2 FEEE ] AR ENIRAFE
BEEEAE RFEEAEEMNIERETE
TIRBAEERMAEREAS BRI BERIER
EZMFEL HIIMT

s FIAME:AFEEEERFIRBAZ
FAHE AEREELRENTERHRHE
BTG R ARG BERE -

o F2QMEE:AFEENERAFE2RBAZ
e TR EFIRRENITBRREA
28 ATEEATAERNEABAZ
B-AABERGAZBRYETSEIEN
tE2EE-

o FEIMAE:AFEENIEAEATAERE
BWAZHETE-

R2016F12831H AEB A ASRBRE
ZIRETIRERE2HA -

RERNLBEFELERIERR < EIELE
%O
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31 DECEMBER 2017 20174 12H31H

37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
(c) Fair value (continued)
(ii) Financial instruments measured at fair value (continued)

Valuation techniques and inputs used in Level 2 fair value
measurements

The fair value of investment in life insurance policies is determined based
on account value as stated in cash surrender value statement issued by
insurers.

38. NOTES SUPPORTING CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF CASH FLOWS

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities:

37.2®MIE (&)

(c) AFEHE (&)

(i) AXFEEFEZSBIT A (&)
240 A FEE 5 B A E 1915 (B 5 7t R 3 A
28

RAFRBRIZE 2 BE0AFEEDRBER
AAFEBHIRER S RIREERSFHI0E
PlEMEtE-

B.EEHEREBERME

MESHEENAGBZHE:

Bank borrowings
RITHEE

(note 29)
(Ht7#29)
HK$'000 F&T

At 1 January 2017 R20175F1A1H 667,644
Changes from cash flows: ReEREEH:

New bank borrowings raised FESEZRITEE 1,600,618
Repayment of bank borrowings EEBRITEER (1,534,107)
Bank facilities arrangement fees paid XNRITHMELHER (480)
Total changes from financing cash flows MER S REZBEE 66,031
Other changes: H i)

Amortisation of bank facilities arrangement fee RITRMELRHER 2% 1,554
Total other changes HibBEE 1,554
At 31 December 2017 M2017F12H31H 735,229
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

39. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

REVBBERME (&)

31 DECEMBER 2017 2017412 A31H

39. E AR AR

At 31 December At 31 December
M12H831H M12H31H
2017 2016

HK$000 F#T HK$'000 F& T

Capital expenditure contracted for but not
provided in the consolidated financial
statements in respect of acquisition

HEEYE HELREHEEZ
ERNERGZAMERE
ARBEELERBZERHAX

of property, plant and equipment 66,663 116,959
40. OPERATING LEASES 40. € EHE
As lessee ERAEA
2017 2016

HK$000 FE7r  HK$'000 F&T

Minimum lease payments paid under
operating lease during the year:

Land and buildings
Plant and machinery

EFEREEREMm A

HEHEEZH:
i KR Y 36,065 34,370
5 5 Mo i 23 5,039 4,949

41,104 39,319
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REVBHRMEE (&)

31 DECEMBER 2017 20174 12AH31H

40. OPERATING LEASES (continued)
As lessee (continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had commitments for future
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases which fall
due as follows:

At 31 December

40. € EHE (&)
EREBAA (&)

RBERE AEBRAATBUEEEREN R
R EHE AR THIEIH B

At 31 December

R12A31H ®12A31H
2017 2016

Land and Plant and Land and Plant and
buildings machinery Total buildings machinery Total
T REEY B E R BF  THREED Bz Ries At
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FAT FAT FET FET FHET
Within one year 1ER 36,722 742 37,464 35,219 1,300 36,519

In the second to fifth year inclusive FEEFESFER

(ERMEBEEN) 109,128 - 109,128 111,348 501 111,849
Over five years 5P+ 177,151 - 177,151 193,098 - 193,098
323,001 742 323,743 339,665 1,801 341,466

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the Group for
certain of its office premises, factories, and plant and machinery. Leases
are negotiated for terms ranging from one to fifty years for land and
buildings and from one to five years for plant and machinery. There is no
contingent rental arrangement.

As lessor

Gross rental income earned from investment properties of the Group during
the year was approximately HK$10,121,000 (2016: HK$10,756,000). The
related outgoings amounted to HK$466,000 (2016: HK$600,000).

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had contracted with tenants,
in respect of rented premises, for the following future minimum lease
receipts.

EEMEXHNDAKEREETHAE TR
KB REREOENES KERNEEFH
L RREY TN F1ES0F 2 H - BLEE
MEEANINE2F 2B - ARBHAEE L
B

EREHEA

REFRN AEERLEVERESHNA
LW A HIEXA10,121,0005% 7T (20164 ¢
10,756,000/ 7t ) ° & B X It} £466,000/% 7T
(20164 : 600,000/ 7T ) °

REBERE ARERBSREEN LD
5 IS TR E WA ST -

At 31 December
M12H31H

2017

HK$’000 T &7

At 31 December
M®12A31H
2016

HK$'000 F & T

Within one year 1F R 7,571 9,145
In the second to fifth year inclusive FOFEFSFN

(ERRMFEBEER) 4,376 5,278

11,947 14,423
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

41. RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

The Group operates a defined contribution scheme registered under the
Occupational Retirement Schemes Ordinance (the “ORSO Scheme”) and
a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) established
under the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme Ordinance for all the eligible
employees of the Group in Hong Kong. The assets of both schemes
are held separately from those of the Group in funds under the control
of trustees. The retirement benefits cost charged to the profit or loss
represents the contributions payable to the funds by the Group at rates
specified in the rules of the schemes.

Employees of the Group in other jurisdictions currently participate in state-
sponsored pension scheme or defined contribution schemes operated by
the Government of such jurisdictions. The Group is required to contribute a
certain percentage of their payroll to the schemes to fund the benefits. The
only obligation of the Group with respect to the schemes is to make the
required contributions.

During both years, there was no significant forfeited contribution, which
arose upon employees leaving the retirement benefits schemes, available
to reduce the contribution payable in the future years.

The retirement benefits scheme contributions, amounting to HK$57,404,000
(2016: HK$56,270,000) have been charged to profit or loss for the year and
included in employee costs as set out in note 9.

42. RELATED AND CONNECTED PARTIES
DISCLOSURES

(a) Related party balances

Details of the Group’s outstanding balances with related parties are set out
in the consolidated statement of financial position and in note 27.

REUBBERME (&)
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41, BIRE R &

7N A5 48 B 22 3R R T B B SE MR A S — B
S B (TR 2R BI ) RIRIBR B
ATEEEHBIEHIER T — BRI AES B
([#@FELEE ) FHREABRNAEEEHE
E-EMEHENEE BTN AEBEEYL
B2 5T A B IR - 72 18 25 BR A I 4 KO 3B KB FI AR
AN AEEREHAEEH R RN ES

e

AEBEMBDE MR ESR E2RZFIEN
iR BR A ‘& 2 1 B SR R A ) A 81 3l R B R
g-AKEAKEEFMNETEDLERT
ZEFEERENES ANEEHZFHEWN
E—EERRAEFEL R

KM EFE - FE 8 R R A& G & R K
B R N B K - L FRIR L A] A VR H0RL R 2R R
JZ # FE 5 5K o

BEREFEEBDERAMNRORKERG B4
& B R57,404,000/ 7T (20164 : 56,270,000
BIr) WEFT AWM FIRME 2 EBR AR -

2.FABREEALTHRE

(a) BAREA LM ASER

AEEHEBER AT RERGHFBHIINER
B BRRR LM FE27TA -
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42, RELATED AND CONNECTED PARTIES
DISCLOSURES (continued)

42. AR BB E AN TRV E (&)

(b) Related party transactions

During the year, the Group entered into the following transactions with

related parties:

Name of related party

Related party Nature of

relationship

transaction

(b) BAEBEALXR 5

EFEAEEEBBALTETTIIRS:

2017

2016

BMEALEE HEBALINBEERE XXB3MEE HK$000 F#t HK$'000 F&7T
HEEMEKEER R A Associate Sewage expenses 30,190 30,366
R B/NE]| SEK R IR B

None of the related party transactions disclosed above constituted
connected transaction or continuing connected transactions as defined in

Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

(c) Connected party transactions

FPRAREZ AL RS TER ETHRRE
ABFIAECHRERZABERERS -

(c) BEALXRS

Name of
connected party Nature of transactions 2017 2016
BEALER REME HK$’000 Tz HK$'000 F&7T

The FM Group (note i)

Sale of fabrics, yarns, fibers and

garment parts 177,841 183,354
FME&EE (Hf7t7) EEME & #4 AR
The AH Group (note ii) Sale of fabrics, yarns, fibers and

garment parts 145,641 160,263
AHE B (H7Ei) EEME 2 #4 KR
The LFK Group (note iii) Sale of fabrics, yarns, fibers and

garment parts 111,210 257,132
LFKER & (4 72iir) EEME A i RACR
Factory Co (note iv) Provision of fabrics knitting services

by Factory Co - 3,542
R~ R) (K ativ) T WNCIE LS a g ) I
Chinatex Group (note v) Purchase of yarns, cotton,

cooking oil and foodstuffs 25,672 29,130

hE B (Aiv)

REY RN EHR M
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

42. RELATED AND CONNECTED PARTIES

DISCLOSURES (continued)

(c) Connected party transactions (continued)

Notes:

(i)

The Company and Mr. Feroz Omar (“Mr. Omar”) entered into a master agreement (the
“2015 FM Master Sales Agreement”) and a renewed FM Master Sales Agreement (the
“2018 FM Master Sales Agreement”) respectively on 19 April 2013 and 18 November
2015 regarding the sales of fabrics, yarns, fibers and garment parts by the Group to the
FM Group. Mr. Omar is a director and substantial shareholder of a non-wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company and hence a connected person of the Company under the
Listing Rules. The FM Group comprises companies which Mr. Omar and his associates
and relatives individually or together exercise or control the exercise of more than 50%
of the voting power at general meetings or control the composition of a majority of the
board of directors. Accordingly, members of the FM Group are associates of Mr. Omar
and hence connected persons of the Company under the Listing Rules. The transactions
contemplated under the 2015 FM Master Sales Agreement and the 2018 FM Master Sales
Agreement constitute continuing connected transactions for the Company under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules.

The 2015 FM Master Sales Agreement is for a term commencing from 1 September
2013 to 31 December 2015 and the 2018 FM Master Sales Agreement is for a term
commencing from 1 January 2016 to 31 December 2018 (both days inclusive).

The four-month cap amount for the period from 1 September 2013 to 31 December 2013
and annual cap amount for the two financial years ended 31 December 2015 for the 2015
FM Master Sales Agreement are HK$77,000,000, HK$230,000,000 and HK$230,000,000
respectively as set out in the announcement of the Company dated 19 April 2013.

The extent of these connected transactions did not exceed the annual cap of
HK$230,000,000 for the year ended 31 December 2015 as set out in the announcement
of the Company dated 19 April 2013.

The annual cap amount for the three financial years ended 31 December 2018 for
the 2018 FM Master Sales Agreement are HK$230,000,000, HK$230,000,000 and
HK$230,000,000 respectively as set out in the announcement of the Company dated 18
November 2015.

The revised FM annual cap amount for the two financial years ended 31 December 2018
for the 2018 FM Master Sale Agreement are HK$300,000,000 and HK$350,000,000 as
set out in the announcement dated 26 January 2017.

Reference is made to the announcement of the Company dated 26 January 2017 in
relation to, among other things, the revision of annual caps for continuing connected
transactions and a circular released by the Company dated 8 March 2017.
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2. B NREEALHKRE (&)

(c) BEALREZ (&)

Wt

(i) KN E] B Feroz Omarst & ([Omarst 4 |) 201344
A198 K2015F11 B18E Bt A £ B RFME B H &M
B4 4 R R ER D RIRT S 4817 3% ([20156F FM
BEEDFH]) REEFTNFMAHE R ([2018FFM

HEHE]) c Omark £ AR R AL EWEA

RIZEEFITERE BB LR HARNARZEH

BAT -FMEBZKE AR BRIEHOMart A REHE

AT EBBAEZEARRKRERS L6 sk E

7T Bk 1 AT B HUA E RO R ORAE - SRS

NAMERSRILDKEMN AR BILFMER 2K 8

AR ABOmark £ 2 BB AL MMRE EHRAAAE

ARz BEEANT RIE ETTRAIE14AE - 2015FFM

BIHE MR R2018FFMBEHERBZB T RIT IR HE

RARRZHEBERS -

2015 FMAR 85 & a8 2 HIRR B2013F9A1H 5T =
2015F12A31H ' M2018FFMBE E e 2 HIR &
2016F1 A1A EE £2018FE12A31H (B EEMW
K)o

MEA QT B HA2013F4 F190 2 A& FT#E 0 2015
FFMA $5 & 8 201398 1H £2013F12A31H
IEEAFE 9418 A EBR & %8 R Bl £20156F 12 A31H IR
E& B EENFE LIRS %D 5 477,000,000/ 7T
230,000,0007% 7t }2230,000,000/% 7T °

ZEMERZF VW EBBAAR B R2013F4A190
ZREMEEE2015F12A3ALFEZFE LR
230,000,000 T ©

BanA xR A A2015F11 A188 2 R & A&l
2018 FMAE 35 & W2 I 8 £2018F 12 A31 A 1k =
B HEFEENFE LR S5 5 /230,000,000 7T
230,000,0007% 7t }2230,000,000/% 7T °

BAA D R B HB2017F1 B268 2 R & #2018
FEFMAEE R ENEE2018512 A31 B IF M E B E
EMEIEEIFME E LR £ %5 5 A300,000,0007% 7T
350,000,000/ 7T °

ZRAARNR B R2017F1 H26HAREH (KB
BB REREZZFELRORASUARARFR
Bl R201793 A8H MR
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42. RELATED AND CONNECTED PARTIES

DISCLOSURES (continued)

(c) Connected party transactions (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(i

The Company and Mr. Anil Kumar Lalchand Hirdaramani (“Mr. Hirdaramani”) entered into
a master agreement (the “2015 AH Master Sales Agreement”) and a renewed AH Master
Sales Agreement (the “2018 AH Master Sales Agreement”) respectively on 19 April 2013
and 18 November 2015 regarding the sales of fabrics, yarns, fibers and garment parts
by the Group to the AH Group. Mr. Hirdaramani is a director and substantial shareholder
of a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company and hence a connected person of
the Company under the Listing Rules. The AH Group comprises companies which Mr.
Hirdaramani and his associates and relatives individually or together exercise or control
the exercise of more than 50% of the voting power at general meetings or control the
composition of a majority of the board of directors. Accordingly, members of the AH
Group are associates of Mr. Hirdaramani and hence connected persons of the Company
under the Listing Rules. The transactions contemplated under the 2015 AH Master Sales
Agreement and the 2018 AH Master Sales Agreement constitute continuing connected
transactions for the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The 2015 AH Master Sales Agreement is for a term commencing from 1 September
2013 to 31 December 2015 and the 2018 AH Master Sales Agreement is for a term
commencing from 1 January 2016 to 31 December 2018 (both days inclusive).

The four-month cap amount for the period from 1 September 2013 to 31 December 2013
and annual cap amount for the two financial years ended 31 December 2015 for the 2015
AH Master Sales Agreement are HK$77,000,000, HK$230,000,000 and HK$230,000,000
as set out in the announcement of the Company dated 19 April 2013.

The extent of these connected transactions did not exceed the annual cap of
HK$230,000,000 for the year ended 31 December 2015 as set out in the announcement
of the Company dated 19 April 2013.

The annual cap amount for the three financial years ended 31 December 2018 for
the 2018 AH Master Sales Agreement are HK$150,000,000, HK$150,000,000 and
HK$150,000,000 respectively as set out in the announcement of the Company dated 18
November 2015.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the total connected transaction amount
received by the Company was approximately HK$160,260,000, which exceeded the 2016
AH annual cap of HK$150,000,000.

The revised AH annual cap amount for the two financial years ended 31 December 2018
for the 2018 AH Master Sale Agreement are HK$300,000,000 and HK$350,000,000
respectively as set out in the announcement dated 26 January 2017.

Reference is made to the announcement of the Company dated 26 January 2017 in
relation to, among other things, the exceeding of the 2016 AH Annual Cap and revision
of annual caps for continuing connected transactions and a circular released by the
Company dated 8 March 2017.

2. FABNRBEALHKRE (R)

(c) BEALREZ (&)

Bzt (5&)

(i

N &) B Anil Kumar Lalchand Hirdaramanist &
([Hirdaramanift 4 | ) 7420134 A19H k20155 11
A1sA AL BEMAHEE &M 4 @i kAKX
B D RIET S 815 (T2015FAHA B E ] ) R
B ETHAHAR B S ek ([2018FAHA &S ) -
Hirdaramanift £ AR AT EMBRARZES
REZRR BELTHA BRAABIZEEAL
AHE[E 7 i 8 A 7] 8 #E i Hirdaramanift 4 & B8 A
TRBEEAEZEARRRAE LERH ok KR T
{5 SR 1 1T 3R 2 B M RORME - TR Z R A
EEGARITPRENAE RLAHEBZKERFA
Hirdaramanisc £ 2 B8 A+ iR R TR A AR
NAZBEAL - RE ETRAE14AT - 2016FAH
B EMFEN2018FAHEHERZE NRITZR5E
RARRZIBEBERS

20154 AHAE 85 & 13 3 2 BAPR 201399 A 1H £2015
F12A31H  M2018FAHE S E 3 2 iR FR20164F
1A1HZE2018F12A31B (REEREMA) ©

WA AT B HA2013F4A198 2 A& FTE - 2015
FAHL S S 3 B2013F981H £2013%F12A31H
IEERFEI 89418 B EPR € %8 R Bk £20156F 12 A31H IEMR
B BFERNFE LRSS R A77,000,000% 7T
230,000,0007% 7t }230,000,000/% 7T °

ZEMELS W EBBARR B AE2013F45198
ZRAEMEEE2015F12A3IBILEEZFE LR
230,000,000 7T ©

A QR HE A2015F11 A18H 2 A E AT EL
2018F AHME S5 & 5 M # £2018F 12 A31H 1k = &
BB 2 /) F E _EBR € %8 5 5l £150,000,0007%8 7T
150,000,0007% 7T & 150,000,000 7T °

HE2016F12A31H IEFE - A QA Y5 # R &
2 5 4 #) 2160,260,0008 7T 0 8 iB20164F A &
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

42. RELATED AND CONNECTED PARTIES

DISCLOSURES (continued)

(c) Connected party transactions (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(ii)

(iv)

The Company and LFK (Holdings) Limited (“LFK”) entered into a master agreement (the
“2015 LFK Master Sales Agreement”) and a renewed LFK Master Sales Agreement (the
“2018 LFK Master Sales Agreement”) respectively on 19 April 2013 and 18 November
2015 regarding the sale of fabrics, yarns, fibers and garment parts by the Group to
members of the LFK Group (i.e. LFK and its subsidiaries). Mr. Ha Kam On, Victor (“Mr.
Ha”) is a former executive Director and hence a connected person of the Company for
12 months from 19 May 2016, the date of resignation of Mr. Ha under the Listing Rules.
LFK is 100% owned by a discretionary trust whose settlor and protectors include Mr. Ha's
relatives. Accordingly, members of the LFK Group are associates of Mr. Ha and hence
connected persons of the Company for 12 months from 19 May 2016 under the Listing
Rules. As at 19 May 2017, Mr. Ha and LFK Group have ceased to be connected persons
of the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The transactions contemplated
under the 2015 LFK Master Sales Agreement and the 2018 LFK Master Sales Agreement
constitute continuing connected transactions for the Company under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.

The 2015 LFK Master Sales Agreement is for a term commencing from 1 September
2013 to 31 December 2015 and the 2018 LFK Master Sales Agreement is for a term
commencing from 1 January 2016 to 31 December 2018 (both days inclusive).

The four-month cap amount for the period from 1 September 2013 to 31 December
2013 and annual cap amount for the two financial years ended 31 December 2015 for
the 2015 LFK Master Sales Agreement are HK$124,000,000, HK$372,000,000 and
HK$372,000,000 respectively as set out in the announcement of the Company dated 19
April 2013.

The extent of these connected transactions did not exceed the annual cap of
HK$372,000,000 for the year ended 31 December 2015 as set out in the announcement
of the Company dated 19 April 2013.

The annual cap amount for the three financial years ended 31 December 2018 for
the 2018 LFK Master Sales Agreement are HK$300,000,000, HK$340,000,000 and
HK$380,000,000 respectively as set out in the announcement of the Company dated 18
November 2015.

The Company and T &€ E2 5145 AR A 7] (‘Factory Co”) entered into a master agreement
(the “2015 Master Services Agreement”) and a renewed Master Services Agreement (the
“2018 Master Services Agreement”) respectively on 19 April 2013 and 18 November 2015
regarding the provision of fabrics knitting services by Factory Co to the Group. Factory
Co is owned as to 51% by the brother of a former director of certain subsidiaries in the
Group, whom is a connected person under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. Thus Factory
Co is an associate of a connected person and deemed to be a connected person of
the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. As at 31 March 2016, the former
director and Factory Co have ceased to be connected persons of the Company under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The transactions contemplated under the 2015 Master
Services Agreement and the 2018 Master Services Agreement constitute continuing
connected transactions for the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The 2015 Master Services Agreement is for a term commencing from 1 September 2013
to 31 December 2015 and the 2018 Master Services Agreement is for a term commencing
from 1 January 2016 to 31 December 2018 (both days inclusive).
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42. RELATED AND CONNECTED PARTIES

DISCLOSURES (continued)

(c) Connected party transactions (continued)

Notes: (continued)

The four-month cap amount for the period from 1 September 2013 to 31 December 2013
and annual cap amount for the two financial years ended 31 December 2015 for the 2015
Master Services Agreement are HK$16,000,000, HK$49,000,000 and HK$49,000,000
respectively as set out in the announcement of the Company dated 19 April 2013.

The extent of these connected transactions did not exceed the annual cap of
HK$49,000,000 for the year ended 31 December 2015 as set out in the announcement of
the Company dated 19 April 2013.

The annual cap amount for the three financial years ended 31 December 2018 for
the 2018 Master Services Agreement are HK$27,000,000, HK$21,000,000 and
HK$18,000,000 respectively as set out in the announcement of the Company dated 18
November 2015.

The Company and Chinatex Corporation Limited (“Chinatex”) entered into a material
purchase framework agreement (the “2015 Material Purchase Framework Agreement”)
and a renewed Material Purchase Framework Agreement (the “2018 Material Purchase
Framework Agreement”) respectively on 19 December 2012 and 18 November 2015 in
relation to the purchase of yarn, cotton, other materials for the manufacture of fabric,
garments, whereas cooking oil and foodstuffs for the provision of meals to the employees
by the Group from the Chinatex Group (i.e. Chinatex and its subsidiaries). Chinatex is a
controlling shareholder of the Company and hence a connected person of the Company
under the Listing Rules. Accordingly, members of the Chinatex Group are associates of
Chinatex and hence connected persons of the Company under the Listing Rules. The
transactions contemplated under the 2015 Material Purchase Framework Agreement
and the 2018 Material Purchase Framework Agreement constitute continuing connected
transactions for the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The 2015 Material Purchase Framework Agreement is for a term commencing from
25 January 2013 to 31 December 2015 and the 2018 Material Purchase Framework
Agreement is for a term commencing from 1 January 2016 to 31 December 2018 (both
days inclusive).

The annual cap amounts for the three financial years ended 31 December 2015 for the
2015 Material Purchase Framework Agreement are HK$310,000,000, HK$411,000,000
and HK$512,000,000 as set out in the announcement of the Company dated 19
December 2012.

The extent of these connected transactions did not exceed the annual cap of
HK$512,000,000 for the year ended 31 December 2015 as set out in the announcement
of the Company dated 19 December 2012,

The annual cap amount for the three financial years ended 31 December 2018 for the
2018 Material Purchase Framework Agreement are HK$100,000,000, HK$200,000,000
and HK$300,000,000 respectively as set out in the announcement of the Company dated
18 November 2015.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

42. RELATED AND CONNECTED PARTIES
DISCLOSURES (continued)

(d) Compensation of key management personnel

The remuneration of directors and other members of key management
during the year was as follows:

REUBBERME (&)
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2. B NREEALHRE (&)

(d) =EEE A B M H M
EFEEENHEMEIZEEABNFTMET

2017
HK$’000 F &7

2016
HK$'000 T8 7T

Fees we 1,050 1,229
Short-term benefits 52 H @ A 3,304 4,174
Post-employment benefits BBz ER 18 36
Discretionary bonuses B e 1,525 1,525
Equity-settled share-based payments NEREEARGD BER 2R - 51

5,897 7,015

The remunerations of directors and key management are decided by the
board of directors and reviewed by the Remuneration Committee, having
regard to the Company’s operating results, individual performance and
comparable market statistics.

(e) Transactions with other state-owned entities in the
PRC

The Group operates in an economic environment currently predominated
by enterprises directly or indirectly owned, jointly controlled or significantly
influenced by the PRC government (collectively the “state-owned
entities”). The Company’s directors consider that state-owned entities are
independent third parties so far as the Group’s business transactions with
them are concerned.

During the year, the Group had transactions with other state-owned entities
including, but not limited to, the sales of finished goods, purchases of raw
materials/utilities and transactions with state-owned banks.
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42, RELATED AND CONNECTED PARTIES
DISCLOSURES (continued)

(e) Transactions with other state-owned entities in the
PRC (continued)

The sales of finished goods and purchase of raw materials/utilities to these
state-owned entities are individually not significant. In addition, the Group’s
bank balances (including short-term bank deposits and restricted bank
deposits) and bank borrowings of HK$433,063,000 and HK$345,754,000
(31 December 2016: HK$468,746,000 and HK$273,071,000) respectively
are placed/arranged with state-owned banks as at 31 December 2017.

43. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING DATE

(@) The Company announced on 12 January 2018 that on 9 January
2018, the Company received notification from Chinatex, an
intermediate controlling shareholder of the Company, that the State-
owned Assets Supervision and Administration Commission of the
State Council of the PRC (the “SASAC”) had transferred its entire
equity interest in Chinatex at nil consideration to COFCO Corporation,
a state-owned enterprise established in the PRC and a directly
wholly-owned subsidiary of SASAC, upon completion of which
COFCO Corporation held 100% of the equity interest in Chinatex,
and became an intermediate controlling shareholder of the Company
(the “Restructuring”). Before and after the Restructuring, Chinatex
remains as an intermediate controlling shareholder of the Company
and SASAC is the ultimate controlling shareholder of the Company.

(b) The Company announced on 19 January 2018 that the Company
offered to grant share options (the “Share Options”) to subscribe for
a total of 26,100,000 ordinary shares of the Company (the “Shares”)
to an executive Director and certain employees of the Company
and its subsidiaries (the “Grantees”), subject to the acceptance of
the Grantees, pursuant to the share option scheme of the Company
adopted on 20 January 2011. Among the total Share Options granted,
a Share Option to subscribe for 300,000 Shares had been granted
to Mr. LAN Jiang, an executive director of the Company, and which
had been approved by the independent non-executive directors of the
Company pursuant to Rule 17.04(1) of the Listing Rules.
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SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION
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Listing Listed on the Main Board of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
since 20 April 1988

Stock Code : 420

Board Lot : 2,000

Shares Issued 1,205,026,960

Financial Calendar 2017

31 December 2017
24 August 2017
26 March 2018

7 —10 May 2018

Financial year end

Interim results announced

Annual results announced

Register of members closed for
determining the right to attend and
vote at Annual General Meeting

10 May 2018

21 — 25 May 2018

Annual General Meeting

Register of members closed for
determining the entitlement to the
proposed final dividend

31 May 2018

Late August 2018

Distribution of final dividend
2018 interim results to be announced

Shareholder Services

For enquiries about share transfer and registration,
please contact the Company’s share registrar:
Boardroom Share Registrars (HK) Limited
Room 2103B, 21/F.

148 Electric Road, North Point

Hong Kong

Tel +852 2153 1688

Fax +852 3020 5058

Investor Relations
Ms. Charmaine CHENG
Joint Company Secretary,
Deputy General Manager,
Corporate Governance Department
Block A, 6/F., Eastern Sea Industrial Building
29-39 Kwai Cheong Road, Kwai Chung
New Territories, Hong Kong
Tel +852 3478 6267
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Global Network * FRBRRR

FOUNTAIN SET (HOLDINGS) LIMITED
BHEX (KE) GRAF

Block A, 6/F, Eastern Sea Industrial Building
29-39 Kwai Cheong Road, Kwai Chung
New Territories, Hong Kong

BBHASRE B IE29-395%
RBTRAREAECE

Tel E5E +852 2485 1881

Fountain Set has overseas marketing/representative offices in the following locations. Addresses, phone numbers and fax numbers
are listed at www.fshl.com

BHEBENTIIMERBBINTSHEENSE/NRRE » il - EFERBREEFIHT5IBEwww.fshl.comi
Ho Chi Minh City | London  Seoul | Shanghai | Tokyo
AT CE O] i R
Production facilities are set up in the following countries:
RTIIBRERE £ ERE:

Cambodia _ China R Indonesia R Sri Lanka
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